
CHAMPLIN - CORCORAN - DAYTON - MAPLE GROVE - MEDINA - PLYMOUTH - ROGERS 

elm creek  
Watershed Management Commission 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
3235 Fernbrook Lane 
Plymouth, MN 55447 
PH: 763.553.1144 
FAX: 763.553.9326 
email: judie@jass.biz 
www.elmcreekwatershed.org 

TECHNICAL OFFICE 
Hennepin County 

Dept. of Environment & Energy 
701 Fourth Ave S  Suite 700 

Minneapolis, MN 55415-1600 
PH: 612.348-7338 • FAX: 612.348.8532 

Email: James.Kujawa@hennepin.us 
 
 

 

February 6, 2019 

Representatives 
Elm Creek Watershed Management 
Commission Hennepin County, MN 

The meeting packets for these meetings may 
be found on the Commission’s website: 
http://www.elmcreekwatershed.org/minute
s‐‐meeting‐packets.html 

Dear Representatives: 

A  regular meeting  of  the  Elm  Creek Watershed Management  Commission  will  be  held  on 
Wednesday, February 13, 2019, at 11:30 a.m. in the Mayor’s Conference Room at Maple Grove 
City Hall, 12800 Arbor Lakes Parkway, Maple Grove, MN.   

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) will meet at 10:00 a.m., prior to the regular meeting.  
TAC meeting materials may also be found on the Commission’s website.  
 
Please email me at  judie@jass.biz to confirm whether you or your Alternate will be attending 
the TAC and the regular meetings.  

Thank you. 

Regards, 
 
 
 

Judie A. Anderson 
Administrator 
JAA:tim 
Encls:  Meeting Packet 
cc:  Alternates  HCEE  Jeff Weiss  BWSR 
  TAC Members  TRPD  Diane Spector  DNR 
  City Clerks  MPCA  Met Council  Official Newspaper 
Z:\Elm Creek\Meetings\Meetings 2019\02 Notice_reg and TAC meetings.docx 

Item 01



*in meeting packet 
**available at meeting 

 
CHAMPLIN  -  CORCORAN  -  DAYTON  -  MAPLE GROVE  -  MEDINA  -  PLYMOUTH  -  ROGERS 

elm creek   
Watershed Management Commission 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE                       TECHNICAL OFFICE 
3235 Fernbrook Lane Hennepin County 
Plymouth, MN  55447 Dept. of Environment and Energy 
PH: 763.553.1144 701 Fourth Ave S  Suite 700 
FAX: 763.553.9326 Minneapolis, MN 55415-1600 
Email: judie@jass.biz PH: 612.348.7338 
www.elmcreekwatershed.org   FAX: 612.348.8532 
 Email: James.Kujawa@co.hennepin.mn.us 

 
AGENDA  

Regular Meeting 
February 13, 2019 

 
1.  Call Regular Meeting to Order. 
  a.  Approve Agenda.* 
2.  Consent Agenda. 
  a.   Minutes last Meeting.*  
  b.   Treasurer’s Report and Claims.** 
3.  Open Forum. 
4.  Action Items. 

a.  Project Reviews – see Status Report.* 
b.  Resolution 2019‐01.* 
c.  Local Plans. 
  1)  Rogers.* 
d.  Work Plans. 
  1)  2018 in Review.* 
  2)  Draft 2019.* 

5.  Old Business. 
6.  New Business. 
7.  Communications.   
  a.  I‐94 UBOL Resurfacing Project Maple Grove to Rogers.* 
8.  Education.   
  a.  WMWA Update.** 
9.  Grant Opportunities and Updates. 
  a.  FEMA Floodplain Mapping – see Staff Report. 
  b.  Fish Lake Alum Project. 
    1)  Annual Report.* 
    2)  2018 Report Card.* 
  c.  Elm Creek Reach D Weekly Report.* 
10.  Project Reviews – also see Staff Report.* 

 
10.  Project Reviews.  (See Staff Report.*) 

a.        AR  2013‐046  Woods of Medina, Medina. 

b.       
  2014‐015  Rogers Drive Extension, Rogers. 

item 01a



*in meeting packet 
**available at meeting 

 
CHAMPLIN  -  CORCORAN  -  DAYTON  -  MAPLE GROVE  -  MEDINA  -  PLYMOUTH  -  ROGERS 

c.       
  2015‐004  Kinghorn Outlet A, Rogers. 

d.        AR  2015‐030  Kiddiegarten Child Care Center, Maple Grove. 

e.        AR  2016‐002  The Markets at Rush Creek, Maple Grove. 

f.       
  2016‐005W  Ravinia Wetland Bank Plan, Corcoran. 

g.       
  2016‐040  Kinghorn 4th Addition, Rogers. 

h.          2016‐047  Hy‐Vee North, Maple Grove. 

i.      R  AR  2016‐052  The Woods at Rush Creek, Maple Grove. 

j.        AR  2017‐014  Laurel Creek, Rogers. 

k.        AR  2017‐016  Territorial Woods, Maple Grove. 

l.        AR  2017‐017  Mary Queen of Peace Catholic Church, Rogers. 

m.        AR  2017‐021  Hindu Society of MN Staff Housing, Maple Grove. 

n.        AR  2017‐029  Brayburn Trails, Dayton. 

o.      R  AR  2017‐034    Plymouth Memory Care, Plymouth.   

p.      R  AR  2017‐037  Corcoran L‐80 Lift Station MCES Project 808520, Corcoran.  

q      R  AR  2017‐038  Bass Lake Estates, Corcoran. 

r.          2017‐039  Rush Creek Apartments, Maple Grove. 

s.    E      2017‐050W  Ernie Mayer Wetland/floodplain violation, Corcoran. 

t.        AR  2018‐001  Rush Creek Commons, Maple Grove. 

u.          2018‐004  Rush Creek Restoration, Maple Grove. 

v.          2018‐005  Sundance Greens, Dayton. 

w.          2018‐014  Refuge at Rush Creek, Corcoran. 

x.        AR  2018‐018   Summers Edge Phase II, Plymouth. 

y.          2018‐020   North 101 Storage, Rogers. 

z          2018‐021  113th Lane Extension/Brockton/101, Rogers. 

aa.        AR  2018‐026  Windrose, Maple Grove. 

ab.        AR  2018‐028   Tricare Third Addition, Maple Grove. 

ac.  A  E      2018‐033  Cloquet Island Estates, Dayton. 

ad.          2018‐038  Vincent Woods of Roger. 

ae.        AR  2018‐043  BeeHive Homes, Maple Grove. 

af.        AR  2018‐044  OSI Phase II, Medina. 

ag.          2018‐046  Graco, Rogers 

ah.        AR  2018‐048  Faithbrook Church Phase 2, Dayton. 

ai.          2018‐052  Rogers Tennis Center, Rogers. 

aj.          2018‐053  Elm Creek Stream Stabilization, Champlin. 

ak.          2018‐054W  C&D Order 9120 Trail Haven Road, Corcoran. 

al.  A  E      2019‐001  Fernbrook View Apartments, Maple Grove. 

am.  A  E      2019‐002  Parkside Villas, Champlin. 

an.          2019‐003  Rogers High School Tennis Court, Rogers. 

ao.          2019‐004  Rogers Middle School Chiller Units, Rogers. 
A = Action item    E = Enclosure provided    I = Informational update will be provided at meeting    RPFI ‐  removed pending further information 
R = Will be removed   RP= Information will be provided in revised meeting packet….. D = Project is denied      AR awaiting recordation 
 
 

11.   Other Business.  
  a.  Responses to Solicitation of Interest Proposals.* 
  b.  Nomination of Officers.  Election of Officers will occur at March meeting.  

        Z:\Elm Creek\Meetings\Meetings 2019\02 TAC and Regular Meeting Agenda.docx 

item 01a



CHAMPLIN  -  CORCORAN  -  DAYTON  -  MAPLE GROVE  -  MEDINA  -  PLYMOUTH  -  ROGERS 

 

elm creek  
Watershed Management Commission 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
3235 Fernbrook Lane 
Plymouth, MN  55447 
PH: 763.553.1144 • FAX: 763.553.9326 
Email: judie@jass.biz 
www.elmcreekwatershed.org   

TECHNICAL OFFICE 
Hennepin County 

Dept. of Environment and Energy 
701 Fourth Ave S  Suite 700 

Minneapolis, MN 55415-1600 
PH: 612.348-7338 • FAX: 612.348.8532 

Email: James.Kujawa@hennepin.us 
 

Minutes 
Regular Meeting  
January 9, 2019 

I.  A regular meeting of the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission was called to order 
at 11:30 a.m., Wednesday, January 9, 2019,  in the Emergency Operations Center, Maple Grove City 
Hall, 12800 Arbor Lakes Parkway, Maple Grove, MN, by Chairman Doug Baines. 

Present were: Bill Walraven, Champlin;  Tom Anderson, Corcoran; Doug Baines, Dayton;  Joe 
Trainor, Maple Grove; Elizabeth Weir, Medina; Fred Moore, Plymouth; James Kujawa, Jason Swenson, 
and Kirsten Barta, Hennepin County Dept. of Environment and Energy (HCEE); Brian Vlach, Three Rivers 
Park District (TRPD); Jeff Weiss, Barr Engineering; and Judie Anderson, JASS.  

  Not represented:  Rogers. 

Also present:  Todd Tuominen, Champlin; Kevin Mattson and Jon Bottema, Corcoran; Derek Asche 
and Mark  Lahtinen, Maple Grove; Catherine Cesnik, Vanessa Strong, and Ben Scharenbroich, Plymouth; 
Andrew Simmons, Rogers; and Dave Spatafore and Joe Randall, Fish Lake Area Residents Association (FLARA).   

A.  Motion by Weir, second by Walraven to approve the revised agenda.* Motion carried 
unanimously. 

B.  Motion by Walraven, second by Weir  to approve  the minutes* of  the December 14, 
2018, regular meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

C.  Motion by Walraven, second by Moore to approve the January Treasurer’s Report and 
Claims* totaling $56,748.49.  Motion carried unanimously. 

II.  Open Forum ‐  Fish Lake.   

Spatafore  spoke  to  the  Commissioners  regarding  the  carp  population  in  Fish  Lake.  Carp 
assessment studies completed by WSB and Associates  for Fish and Rice Lakes  in 2018 showed that 
common carp biomasses in the two lakes were above the ecological threshold that potentially can have 
impacts on water quality and aquatic vegetation within each lake. It is anticipated that a carp study or 
carp removal efforts will occur in 2019.   

A carp study would be a cost‐share project between the City of Maple Grove, FLARA and RLAA 
(Rice  Lake  Area  Association).  Spatafore  expressed  concern  that  it  will  be  difficult  for  FLARA  to 
contribute to all of the different projects they are currently involved with and also pay the increased 
amount of their cost‐share for the 2019 alum treatment. 

Two bids were received for the second alum treatment. HAB Aquatic Solutions, the contractor 
who performed the first treatment,  submitted the lowest bid ‐ $199,092.00. 

item 02a



elm creek Watershed Management Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 9, 2019 
Page 2 

 

 

CHAMPLIN  -  CORCORAN  -  DAYTON  -  MAPLE GROVE  -  MEDINA  -  PLYMOUTH  -  ROGERS 

 

Asche addressed the proposed increase in cost‐share contributions by the parties to the Fish 
Lake Alum Treatment Cooperative Project Agreement due to a significant increase in the cost of the 
second alum treatment. The original cost‐share amount was $300,000. With the inclusion of the second 
treatment, the cost‐share amount has risen to $375,471. FLARA is seeking assistance from the other 
parties to the agreement (the Board of Water and Soil Resources [BWSR], the Commission, the City of 
Maple Grove, and Three Rivers Park District) in order to reduce their cost‐share portion so that they 
can continue to fund the other water resource activities in their budget. 

Barta  noted  that  Hennepin  County  funds may  be  available  to  pay  for  those  other  FLARA 
activities, freeing up additional funds to commit to the second alum treatment.  

Motion by Trainor, second by Weir directing Staff to pursue this added source of funding and 
to allocate $18,867.75  from  the Commission’s operating budget  line  item, Projects  ineligible  for ad 
valorem,  to  fund  the  Commission’s  portion  of  the  proposed  increased  cost‐share. Motion  carried 
unanimously. 

III.  Action Items. 

  A.  Resolution 2019‐01 Regarding the Role of the … Commission as the Local Government 
Unit ….*  Motion by Weir, second by T. Anderson to table approval of the resolution to the February 
meeting in order to insert language pertaining to the administration of outstanding projects. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

B.  Champlin Local Plan. Staff received the draft Champlin Surface Water Management Plan 
on November 29, 2018.  Based on their review, the plan meets the requirements for a community’s 
stormwater management plan as outlined  in MS103B.231 and.235.   Staff also noted  it has not yet 
received Met Council’s comments on the plan. Motion by Walraven, second by Weir to approve the 
Champlin plan contingent upon addressing Staff’s comments as outlined in their memo dated January 
4,  2019  and  any  pertinent  comments  received  from  the  Metropolitan  Council.  Motion  carried 
unanimously. [Met Council’s comments were received January 10, 2019. Six items required responses.] 

C.  Motion by Weir, second by Walraven to make the following annual appointments: 
    1.  Official newspaper – Osseo‐Maple Grove Press. 

  2.  Official depositories – US Bank and the 4M fund. 
  3.  Deputy Treasurer – Judie Anderson. 
  4.  Auditor – Johnson & Company, Ltd. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

IV.   Old Business. 

V.  New Business. 

VI.  Water Quality. 

A.  Included  in  the meeting packet  is  the  January 2, 2019 weekly  construction update* 
provided  by  Lucius  Jonett, Wenck Associates,  on  the  City  of  Plymouth’s  streambank  stabilization 
project.  Stabilization  work  should  be  substantially  completed  by  early  March  2019.    Follow‐up 
vegetation work will continue through mid‐June.

item 02a



elm creek Watershed Management Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 9, 2019 
Page 3 

 

CHAMPLIN  -  CORCORAN  -  DAYTON  -  MAPLE GROVE  -  MEDINA  -  PLYMOUTH  -  ROGERS 

 

  B.  The Buffer Law requirements going forward require Staff to check each parcel  in 
the county at  least once every three years and spot check up to 15% of the parcels. Hennepin 
County staff have opted to section the county into thirds and check 1/3 each year, beginning in 
2019. Those residents identified to have spot checks done will be notified by letter.  A copy of the 
buffer inspection map* is included in the packet.  

VII.  Grant Opportunities and Updates. 

A.  FEMA Floodplain Mapping. Preparation of the Hydrologic Model (HEC‐HMS) utillizing 
mapping information from GIS continues. Model outputs will be shared at future meetings as they 
become available.  

B.  Clean Water Fund Grants. Staff’s application for a BWSR Clean Water Fund grant to 
implement the recently completed North Fork Rush Creek SWA was approved for funding at the full 
amount requested ‐ $142,110.00.  A 25% match is required. The Rural Conservationist will take the 
lead on recruiting and implementing projects.  

VIII.  Education and Public Outreach ‐ West Metro Water Alliance (WMWA). 

A.  Watershed PREP and Education and Outreach Events.   Educators  are  currently 
scheduling spring classroom visits.  The final results for 2018 have been tallied. Overall, 143 fourth 
grade classes with 3,593 students participated in Lesson 1: What is a watershed and why do we 
care? Of those participants, 1,755 students  in 69 classrooms also received Lesson 2: Water, the 
incredible journey. The Educators also participated in four community events. The educators are 
also available to table at city and school events; contact Amy Juntunen at amy@jass.biz. In 2019 
the educators will be putting together some potential presentations for lake associations. 

B.  Ten Things You Can Do Brochure. Final edits to the text have been made to the 
popular brochure that WMWA first developed in 2009, and is used extensively locally and metro 
wide.  In general,  the  text  is being  refreshed and  condensed, and additional emphasis  is being 
placed on water conservation, proper deicer use, and lawn turf alternatives. The group is working 
with Hennepin County to update the design and layout and it is expected that Hennepin County 
will print the brochure at no cost to the watershed organizations. 

C.  Website/Social Media.  The  website  Google  Analytics  for  2018  along  with  the 
Facebook insights for the last 28 days for both Shingle Creek Commission and WMWA are included 
in Staff’s memo.* There were almost 2,500 unique visitors to the website  last year. Winter  is a 
slow time for social media about water quality. At the January 8, 2019 meeting, WMWA agreed to 
again hire Dawn Pape to prepare 1‐2 Facebook and Twitter postings per week for 2019 about water 
quality, AIS, salt use, natural resources issues, and the Pledge to Plant campaign. The contract also 
provides for one boosted post per month. Pape has been managing social media for the Bassett 
Creek Commission and has found that boosting one or two posts per month dramatically increases 
reach and engagement. 

D.  2019  Budget.  Each  of  the  four  watersheds  budgeted  funds  for  2019  WMWA 
administrative/technical services, Watershed PREP, and Special Projects based on estimated 2019 
needs . Based on actual expenses for 2018 and taking into account unspent funds available to carry 
over to 2019, WMWA recommends a 2019 budget of $36,00.  The Shingle Creek Commission acts  

item 02a



elm creek Watershed Management Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 9, 2019 
Page 4 

 

CHAMPLIN  -  CORCORAN  -  DAYTON  -  MAPLE GROVE  -  MEDINA  -  PLYMOUTH  -  ROGERS 

 

as the fiscal agent for WMWA and invoices the other three watersheds at the beginning of the year 
and  in  the  third  quarter  of  the  year  if  necessary.  An  initial  invoice  for  2019  of  $12,000  for 
administrative/technical services and $8,000 for Watershed PREP will be mailed this month. Each 
WMO pays one‐fourth of the cost of WMWA programming. 

E.  The next WMWA meeting  is scheduled for 8:30 a.m., Tuesday, February 12, 2019, at 
Plymouth City Hall. 

IX.  Communications. 

A.  Beginning  in 2020,  the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency  (MPCA) will officially 
begin its work for the Second Cycle (Cycle II) for the Mississippi River – Twin Cities HUC8 Level 
watershed.  As  with  Cycle  I,  the  Cycle  II  process  will  contain  the  following  watershed  scale 
elements: 1) Intensive Watershed Monitoring, 2) Waterbody Assessment and Impairment Listing, 
3) Stressor Identification, and 4) TMDL and WRAPS Development. During the first two monitoring 
seasons (2020 and 2021) the MPCA’s Surface Water Monitoring group will conduct biological and 
chemical  sampling  at  sites  throughout  the  watershed’s  streams  and  lakes.  While  the  basic 
watershed framework between Cycle I and II will largely remain the same, the Cycle II monitoring 
plan may differ from Cycle I depending on the data needs of MPCA and local partners.  

Cycle II will begin with a kickoff meeting sometime in late January/early February to 
present MPCA’s  initial site selections as well as outline the process for  local partners to submit a 
proposal for their monitoring needs. MPCA is inviting representatives from watershed organizations, 
agencies, etc. involved in or interested in surface water monitoring efforts to respond to a Doodle 
poll to choose one of two dates to attend a kickoff meeting at the MPCA Central Office in St. Paul. 
Individuals are asked  to  respond  to  the Doodle poll by Friday,  January 11. Questions  should be 
directed to Eric Alms, eric.alms@state.mn.us. 

B.  A Simple Horse Manure Composting System.* A flyer describing the composting 
system developed by LuAnn Brenno on their hobby farm in western Hennepin County was included 
in the packet. 

X.  Other Business. 

  A.  The  following projects are discussed  in  the  January Staff Report.*  ("W" denotes 
wetland project.) 

1.  2013‐046 Woods of Medina, Medina.  
  2.  2014‐015 Rogers Drive Extension, Rogers. 
  3.  2015‐004 Kinghorn Outlet A, Rogers. 
  4.  2015‐030 Kiddiegarten Child Care Center, Maple Grove. 

5.  2016‐002 The Markets at Rush Creek, Maple Grove. 
  6.  2016‐005W Ravinia Wetland Bank, Corcoran. 
  7.  2016‐040 Kinghorn 4th Addition, Rogers. 
  8.  2016‐047 Hy‐Vee Maple Grove #1, Maple Grove. 
  9.  2016‐052 The Woods at Rush Creek, Maple Grove. 
  10.  2017‐014 Laurel Creek, Rogers. 
  11.  2017‐016 Territorial Woods, Maple Grove. 
  12.  2017‐017 Mary Queen of Peace Catholic Church, Rogers 

13.  2017‐019 Medina Senior Living Community, Medina. 

item 02a



elm creek Watershed Management Commission  
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 9, 2019 
Page 5 

 

CHAMPLIN  -  CORCORAN  -  DAYTON  -  MAPLE GROVE  -  MEDINA  -  PLYMOUTH  -  ROGERS 

 

  14.  2017‐021 Hindu Society of MN Staff Housing, Maple Grove. 
  15.  2017‐029 Brayburn Trails, Dayton. 
  16.  2017‐034 Plymouth Memory Care, Plymouth. 

    17.  2017‐037 L‐80 Lift Station MCES, Corcoran. 
18.  2017‐038 Bass Lake Estates, Corcoran. 

  19.  2017‐039 Rush Creek Apartments, Maple Grove. 
  20.  2017‐050W Ernie Mayer Wetland/floodplain violation, Corcoran. 
  21.  2018‐001 Rush Creek Commons, Maple Grove. 
  22.  2018‐004 Rush Creek Restoration Project, Maple Grove. 
  23.  2018‐005 Sundance Greens, Dayton. 

    24.  2018‐014 Refuge at Rush Creek, Corcoran. 
    25.  2018‐018 Summers Edge Phase III, Plymouth. 
    26.  2018‐020 North 101 Storage, Rogers. 
    27.  2018‐021 113th Lane Extension, Brockton Lane/CSAH101 Intersection, Rogers. 
    28.  2018‐026 Windrose, Maple Grove. 
    29.  2018‐028 Tricare Third Addition, Maple Grove. 
    30.  2018‐032 Encore Development, Corcoran. 
    31.  2018‐033 Cloquet Island Estates, Dayton. 
    32.  2018‐035 Edgewater East, Maple Grove. 
    33.  2018‐038 Vincent Woods, Rogers. 

34.  2018‐043 Bee Hive Homes, Maple Grove. 
35.  2018‐044 OSI Phase II, Medina. 
36.  2018‐046 Graco Expansion, Rogers. 
37.  2018‐048 Faithbrook Church, Phase 2, Dayton. 
38.  2018‐049 Pheasant Ridge 2nd Addition, Corcoran. 
39.  2018‐051 23405 CR10 Wetland Delineation, Corcoran. 
40.  2018‐056 Rogers Tennis Courts, Rogers. 
41.  2018‐053 Elm Creek Restoration, Champlin. 
42.  2018‐054W Cease and Desist Order, 9120 Trail Haven Road, Corcoran. 

B.  Topics for the next Technical Advisory Committee meeting, February 13, 2019, will 
include 1) potential SWA, 2) CIPs, and 3) internal load projects. 

C.  Solicitation of interest proposals for technical, legal and administrative services will 
be published in the January 14, 2019 edition of the State Register. 

D.  Nomination of officers will be accepted at  the  February meeting; elections will 
occur at the March meeting. 

E.  Adjournment. There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:40 
p.m. 

Respectfully submitted,  

 
 
 

Judie A. Anderson 
Recording Secretary//JAA:tim      Z:\Elm Creek\Meetings\Meetings 2019\01 Regular meeting minutes.docx 

item 02a



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
 
Italics indicates new information                                                                                                                                                              indicates enclosure 
 

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA •PLYMOUTH • ROGERS 

elm creek   
Watershed Management Commission 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
3235 Fernbrook Lane 
Plymouth, MN 55447 
PH: 763.553.1144 
FAX: 763.553.9326 
email: judie@jass.biz 
www.elmcreekwatershed.org 

TECHNICAL OFFICE 
Hennepin County 

Environment and Energy Dept 
701 Fourth Ave S  Suite 700 

Minneapolis, MN 55415-1600 
PH: 612.348-7338 • FAX: 612.348.8532 

Email: James.Kujawa@hennepin.us 
  

STAFF REPORT 
February 7, 2019  

2014‐015  Rogers Drive  Extension,  Rogers.  This  project  involves  improvements  along  Rogers Drive  from 
Vevea Lane to Brockton Lane. The project is located east of I‐94, south of the Cabela development. The total 
project area is 8.0 acres; proposed impervious surfaces total 5.6 acres.  Site plans received July 1, 2014 meet 
the requirements of the Commission with the exception of the nutrient control.   The Commission approved 
the  site  plan  contingent  upon  the  City  deferring  4.6  lbs.  of  phosphorus  for  treatment  in  future  ponding 
opportunities as the easterly corridor of Rogers Drive develops. 2.3 lbs. will be accounted for in the Kinghorn 
Spec. Building site plan, with 2.3 lbs. still outstanding. This item will remain on the report until the total deferral 
is accounted for. 

2015‐004 Kinghorn Outlot A, Rogers.  This is a 31‐acre site located between the Clam and Fed Ex sites on the 
west side of Brockton Road and  I‐94. The proposed site will have  two warehouse buildings with associated 
parking  and  loading  facilities.  In  June  2015  the Commission  approved  this  project with  three  conditions. 
Revisions have yet to meet the Commission’s approval conditions. This project was extended by the City of 
Rogers earlier this year.  It will remain active on the Staff Report. 

2016‐005W Ravinia Wetland Replacement Plan, Corcoran.  In December 2016  the Commission approved 
Staff’s  findings and  recommendations on  this wetland  replacement plan.  Final wetland  impacts are 1.22 
acres.   Wetland credits created on site will be 4.01 acres. Excess credits of 0.75 acres are proposed to be 
used on Lennar’s Laurel Creek development in Rogers (2017‐014). All approval contingencies have been met 
and  construction  completed..  Vegetation  planting  and management  took  place  throughout  2017.  Barr 
Engineering  is providing monitoring  to ensure  the  replacement meets  the performance  standards of  the 
approved plans. Their first annual report was submitted to the US Army Corps of Engineers on February 7, 
2019. 

2016‐040 Kinghorn 4th Addition, Rogers. This  is a 13.7‐acre parcel  located  in  the northwest corner of  the 
intersection of Brockton Lane and Rogers Drive.   An  industrial warehouse with 8.8 acres of new  impervious 
area  is proposed  for  the  site. The plan  includes  the use of a NURP pond and a biofiltration basin  to meet 
Commission requirements for rates, water quality and abstraction. The adjacent site is likely to be developed in 
the near future and some of the stormwater features were oversized to accommodate future development. In 
November 2016 the Commission approved the project conditioned on: 1) approval of only this phase; future 
phases  will  need  additional  review  and  approval;  2)  final  modifications  to  the  hydrologic  modeling;  3) 
additional  details  are  provided  for  a  proposed water  re‐use  system;  4)  an  O&M  Plan  for  the  pond  and 
biofiltration basin is completed and recorded on the final plat; 5) modification of the storm sewer system to 
maximize the area draining to the NURP pond; and 6) receipt and review of wetland‐related documentation if 
wetlands are present. Condition #1 required no action, so has been met.  Condition #2 has been met for the 
current  design;  however,  any  future  design modifications  will  require  additional  review.  Conditions  #3‐6 
remain outstanding and are expected to be addressed during final design. Staff has discussed the project with 

item 04a



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
 
Italics indicates new information                                                                                                                                                              indicates enclosure 
 

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA •PLYMOUTH • ROGERS 

Staff Report 
February 7, 2019 
Page 2 

the City and been in contact with the project engineer to receive an update, but no new information has been 
provided. 

2016‐047 Hy‐Vee North Maple Grove.   The applicant  is proposing  to disturb 13 acres of a 20.4‐acre site 
located at the northeast corner of Maple Grove Parkway and 99th Avenue for the purpose of constructing a 
grocery store, fuel station, convenience store and parking facilities.  Staff sent preliminary review comments 
and  requested  revisions on December 14.    In  their  findings dated  January 10, 2017, Staff  recommended 
approval of this project subject to (1) receipt, approval, and recordation of an Operations and Maintenance 
Plan  for  the  pond  and  the  iron‐enhanced  filtration  system,  (2)  revisions  for  items  relating  to  buffer 
requirements and erosion and sediment control as enumerated  in the findings, and (3) receipt of a signed 
and  dated  final  plan  set.  The  Commission  approved  Staff’s  recommendations  at  their  January  11,  2017 
meeting with  the  additional  requirement  that  the  Commission  receive  and  comment  on  a WCA  impact 
notice.  No new information has been received to date. 

2017‐039 Rush Creek Apartments, Maple Grove.  This project is located in the southwest quadrant of the 
intersection of Bass Lake Road (CSAH 10) and Troy Lane (CSAH 101).  The project area is 8.2 acres in size and 
includes two phases of construction.  Phase I is 236 apartment units located on 6.0 acres; Phase II is a future 
76‐unit apartment building located on 2.2 acres in Outlot C of this development. The Commission will review 
this project  for conformance  to Rules D, E and  I.   Findings with no  recommendations dated November 15, 
2017, were provided to the applicant and the City. The applicant requested and was granted an extension of 
the deadline per MN statute 15.99 to December 31, 2018. According to the agent for this project, a new layout 
and project application was submitted to Maple Grove in January 2019. If the application remained active at 
the City and  the applicant  requests an extension,  this project will be  reviewed under 2017‐039.    If not,  this 
project will be denied and a new project number assigned.  Staff is awaiting clarification from the City. 

2017‐050W  Ernie Mayers Wetland/floodplain  violation,  Corcoran.  The  City  of  Corcoran  contacted  the 
Commission  in December 2017 concerning drainage complaints on Mayers’ property. Multiple violations 
appear to have occurred on land owned by Mayers. Technical Evaluation Panels were held on December 
11,  2017,  January  30,  2018, May  22,  2018  and  July  20,  2018  to  assess  the  nature  and  extent  of  the 
violations.   A restoration order was  issued  to Mayers giving him until September 15, 2018  to respond or 
restore the violation areas to their original conditions.  A request from Mayers’ attorney  for an extension to 
November 1, 2018 was granted by the DNR.  

On October 30 an appeal to the restoration order was received by BWSR.  BWSR issued an order of abeyance 
(stay) on the appeal until April 1, 2019.  An application for replacement plan was received from Mayers on 
January 29, 2019.  The application addresses the wetland fill (4:1 replacement request) and drain tile (disable 
existing  tile)  impacts,  but  requests  additional  time  to  submitt  an  application  to  address  the  ditch  (WCA 
jurisdiction)  and  floodplain  (Commission  jurisdiction)  impacts.    A  technical  evaluation  panel  is  being 
scheduled for the week of February 18th to address the replacement plan and provide guidance to the LGU.  
Note: the City of Corcoran will be taking over the WCA LGU responsibilities on this project on March 1, 2019.  

2018‐004 Rush Creek Restoration Project, Maple Grove.  The City is proposing to restore 2,400 feet of Rush 
Creek  just north of Territorial Road adjacent  to  the Enclave on Rush Creek development. This  is within  the 
Three River Parks corridor that was obtained when the development was platted and  is being reviewed for 
compliance with the Commission’s grading and floodplain requirements. Staff has completed its review. This 
item was pulled  from  the agenda at  the Commission’s  June 2018 meeting due  to concerns  from a partner 

item 04a



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
 
Italics indicates new information                                                                                                                                                              indicates enclosure 
 

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA •PLYMOUTH • ROGERS 

Staff Report 
February 7, 2019 
Page 3 

agency.    The City  and  Three Rivers  Park District  are  in  the process of working  through  their  concerns.    If 
available, an update will be provided to the Commission at their meeting. 

2018‐005  Sundance Greens, Dayton.  This site consists of seven parcels totaling 310 acres.  Approximately half 
is  the Sundance Golf course and  the other half  is agricultural  land.   The applicant  is proposing a  long‐term, 
phased residential development with 665 residential units while maintaining a portion (9 of the 18 holes) of 
the golf course.  Total new impervious area will be 71 acres.  This review will cover Commission Rules D, F, and 
I.  Only the Sundance Greens West (phase I grading) erosion and sediment control plans are being reviewed at 
this time for the Commission’s requirements for erosion control.  Future phasing of the grading plans must be 
submitted separately for the Commission’s review for Rule E and consistency with other approvals from the 
Commission. In their findings dated October 3, 2018, Staff approved the grading and erosion control plans for 
Sundance West.  No other action is requested at this time for the remainder of the site pending (1) receipt of 
final  erosion  control  plans  for  each  phase  as  it’s  developed;  (2)  fulfillment  of  stormwater management 
requirements per  item #11 of  their  findings;  (3) receipt of wetland buffers plans meeting  the Commission’s 
requirements; and (4) receipt of floodplain mitigation plans meeting Commission’s requirements. This project 
was extended to March 9, 2019 by the applicant. No new information has been received as of this update. 

2018‐014 Refuge at Rush Creek (formerly Fehn Meadows 2nd Addition), Corcoran.  The site is currently a 
63‐acre agricultural property located west of Cain Road on CR 117.  The applicant proposes to subdivide the 
site into 14 residential lots. Pubic road and trail access will impact two wetland basins, totaling 16,537 SF of 
type 1 wetland  impacts.   Replacement at a 2:1  ratio  in Bank Service Area  (BSA) 7, Major Watershed 20 
(Metro Mississippi), is proposed.  The wetland replacement plan has been noticed per WCA requirements.  
The Commission approved this project with conditions at their August meeting:   (1) Certification from MN 
BWSR that 0.7593 acres of wetland banking credits from account #1643 have been transferred for use on 
this site or an escrow of $90,000 is received from the applicant, (2) Preservation and buffer areas meet the 
Commission and City requirements for buffer and preservation, (3) $4,000 per acre escrow is secured by the 
ECWMC for buffer/preservation compliance and 5‐year monitoring plan, and (4) operation and maintenance 
plans for stormwater ponds are approved by the Commission and City and recorded on the property title. 
No new information has been received as of this update. 

2018‐020 North 101 Storage, Rogers.  This is an existing 3‐acre lot in the northwest corner of Highway 101 and 
CR144.  The current land use is a combination of mini‐storage units and outdoor storage.  The site is proposed 
for complete demolition and the construction of seven new mini‐storage buildings.  At their July meeting the 
Commission approved Staff findings dated July 9, 2018, pending four items relating to abstration requirements 
and the infiltration system.  The applicant requested and was granted an extension for this project approval to 
December 31, 2019, provided the review process with the City of Rogers does not expire. 

2018‐021  113th  Lane  Extension/Brockton/101,  Rogers.  The  City  is  proposing  to  extend  113th  Lane  to 
provide a second access  to  the proposed second phase of  the Laurel Creek development.   The proposed 
road will extend from Brockton Lane to the development entrance. It will inlude a 4‐lane divided roadway; 
an  off‐road  trail  north  of  113th  Lane;  and  construction  of  an  intersection  meeting  County  turn‐lane 
requirements. The project will create 2.13 acres of new  impervious surface. The project was conditionally 
approved  at  the  July  Commission meeting.    The  conditions  include  submittal  of  signed  final  plans  and 
finalization of the wetland mitigation plan. The project has been delayed until 2019, so submittals to meet 
the conditions have not yet been received. 

item 04a



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
 
Italics indicates new information                                                                                                                                                              indicates enclosure 
 

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA •PLYMOUTH • ROGERS 

Staff Report 
February 7, 2019 
Page 4 

2018‐033 Cloquet Island Estates, Dayton. This is a proposal to develop approximately 77 acres of farmland 
near the intersection of North Diamond Lake Road and Dayton River Road.  It will include the construction of 
193  single‐family homes and  increase  imprevious area by approximately 24.4 acres.    Stormwater will be 
managed  through  seven wet detention ponds, one  filtration bench, and one new  infiltraion bench.   The 
developer  submitted  a  revised plan on December  21.  Staff’s  review  is  included  in  the  February meeting 
packet with a recommendation for a conditional approval. 

2018‐038  Vincent Woods, Rogers.  This is a 19 acre parcel that was previously approved for eight apartment 
buildings by the Commission in 2015.  The new site plans propose two apartment buildings with 4.25 acres of 
impervious  areas.  The  project  includes  two  stormwater  ponds  to  provide water  quality  treatment  and  a 
filtration bench has been proposed in one of the ponds to meet the abstraction requirements which were not 
in  place  as  of  the  last  project  approval.    The  Commission  approved  the  project  at  their  September  2018 
meeting subject to the submittal of minor revisions.  Staff is working with the applicant on these items.  Staff 
approval to begin grading prior to final approval was also provided. Staff recently received revised information 
to review for conformance with the minor revisions requested. 

2018‐046 Graco Expansion, Rogers. This project is the explansion of an existing building.  The site is located 
in an area that has regional ponding provided for rate control purposes, but does need to account for water 
quality and abstraction requirements on site prior to discharging offsite as part of the improvements.  The 
Commission considered this project at their October meeting and granted conditional approval.  Conditions 
of approval were to submit a SWPPP plan meeting requirements, clarify maintenance responsibilities for the 
iron enhanced sand filter, and the City of Rogers to submit a  letter stating their  intentions to provide the 
water quality deficit in an upcoming project.  This item will remain on the Staff report until such time as the 
water quality deficit has been made up. Staff confirmed several minor plan revisions remain in conformance 
with the original approval of the project in December.   

2018‐052 Rogers  Tennis Courts, Rogers.  This  is  a 13‐acre  lot owned by  the City of Rogers  just north of 
Rogers High School.    In 2017 Staff approved some  initial grading on  the site provided  future grading and 
stormwater management is reviewed and approved by the Commission. This is the City’s submittal for the 
final grading and  stormwater management on  the property.   The  initial project  review did not meet  the 
Commission’s requirements.  Revised plans were submitted on February 6, 2019, not in time to be included in 
this month’s packet.  Rogers requested an extenstion to the 15.99 deadline to March 27, 2019. 

2018‐053 Elm Creek Restoration, Champlin. The proposed project  is phase 3 of Champlin’s  improvement 
projects  within  the  Elm  Creek  watershed.  This  project  includes  2,580  LF  (linear  feet)  of  stream  bank 
restoration of Elm Creek, including approximately 950 LF west of Cartway Trail, 950 LF east of Cartway Trail, 
and 680 LF of the existing oxbow  located at the northwest corner of the Mill Pond. Staff  is completing  its 
review of the project and will bring forth a recommendation at the February Commission meeting. 

2018‐054W Cease and Desist Order 9120 Trail Haven Road, Corcoran.   The DNR issued a cease and desist 
order for wetland drainage work being done on PIDs 1011923310008 and 1011923330003.  The landowner is 
working to replace an existing drain tile inlet that controls the water elevation on an existing wetland.  In doing 
so their work drained a portion of the wetland.  Staff met with the landowner and issued a leter of voluntary 
compliance to restore the area to its original condition.  Ultimately the inlet will need to be set at an elevation 
to  ensure  the  existing wetland  remains  at  its  historic  elevation  and  boundary.    Staff will  follow  up with 
Corcoran to ensure this project is inspected when the work is completed.  This item will be removed from the 
report.  

item 04a



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
 
Italics indicates new information                                                                                                                                                              indicates enclosure 
 

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA •PLYMOUTH • ROGERS 

Staff Report 
February 7, 2019 
Page 5 

2019‐001 Fernbrook View Apartments, Maple Grove.  This is a 4.85‐acre rural residential lot located at the NE 
intersection of CSAH 81 at Fernbrook Lane.  The applicant proposes to construct a 2‐story, 42‐unit apartment 
building.  The review is for compliance to the Commission’s 3rd Generation STWMP Rules and Standards, Rules 
D, E and I.  The project review and a contingent approval are included in this month’s packet.   

2019‐002 Parkside Villas, Champlin.  This is two adjacent rural parcels totaling 13.9 acres that are proposed to 
be split into 56 single‐family residential lots.  It is located on the east side of Goose Lake Road just south of its 
intersection with Elm Road (CR 202). The review is for compliance to the Commission’s 3rd Generation STWMP 
Rules and  Standards Rule D and Rule E. The project  review and a  contingent approval are  included  in  this 
month’s packet.   

2019‐003  Rogers High School Tennis Courts., Rogers.  The project area is just north of the east parking lot on 
the high school property. The developed site will include eight tennis courts, a reconstructed bituminous path, 
concrete sidewalk, and concrete viewing area between  the courts. The disturbed area  is approximately 2.91 
acres and  is currently occupied by athletic  fields. Runoff drains north  towards an existing onsite stormwater 
management pond.  New impervious area will be 1.49 acres.  Commission standards require reviews for erosion 
and sediment controls and stormwater management.  The site plans were not received in time to be included in 
this month’s packet.  It will be presented at the March meeting. 

2019‐004 Rogers Middle School Chiller Unit Project, Rogers.  This project will disturb over an acre of land, but 
will actually decrease the impervious area on the Middle School Site.  Staff will review for erosion and sediment 
controls only.   

FINAL RECORDINGS ARE DUE ON THE FOLLOWING PROJECTS:   (Staff reached out to the cities for an update on these 
projects on February 5, 2019.) 

2013‐046 Woods of Medina. Medina. In January 2015 the Commission approved this project with two conditions. This 
project  remained    active  throughout  this  period with  the  final  plat  recently  approved  by  the  City.   No  significant 
changes were made to the original plans.  The two conditions were 1) compliance to the WCA requirements and 2) final 
approval and  recording of  the O & M plans.   The WCA  condition has been met with only  the O&M plan  condition 
remaining.  On February 5, 2019 Dusty Finke reported that the City is awaiting final plat application for this project. 

2015‐030 Kiddiegarten Child Care Center, Maple Grove.  Approved December 9, 2015.  If the City does not take over the 
operation  and maintenance of  the underground  system  and  the  sump  catch basins,  an O&M  agreement  for  the 
underground trench/pond system must be approved by the Commission and the City and recorded with the title. On 
February 5, 2019 Derek Asche contacted the owner requesting a copy of the recorded maintenance agreement. 

2016‐002 The Markets at Rush Creek, Maple Grove.  This is a proposal to develop 40 acres of a 123‐acre PUD located in 
the southwest quadrant of the intersection of CSAH 101 and CSAH 10.  In 2016 the Commission granted Staff authority to 
administratively approve  the project and  report any updates.   Updated plans with  some minor  layout  revisions were 
reviewed by Staff and administratively approved on  July 24, 2018, contingent upon the Operation and Maintenance 
Plan approval and recordings.   On February 5, 2019 Derek Asche contacted the project manager requesting a copy of 
the recorded maintenance agreement. 

2016‐052 The Woods at Rush Creek, Maple Grove.    In   March 2017,  the Commission approved Staff’s  findings and 
recommendations dated February 15, 2017.  Outstanding items are the biofiltration pond, O & M plans, and recording. 
These items have been received and this project will be removed from the report. 

   

item 04a



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
 
Italics indicates new information                                                                                                                                                              indicates enclosure 
 

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA •PLYMOUTH • ROGERS 

Staff Report 
February 7 , 2019 
Page 6 

2017‐014 Laurel Creek, Rogers. In June 2017 the Commission approved this project with four conditions. All contingency 
items have been provided with the exception of the O&M agreement which is being negotiated by the City as to whether 
the City or the HOA will be responsible for the operation and maintenance of the stormwater management facility. On 
August 31, 2017, Andrew Simmons responded that the O&M agreement is still being negotiated. 

2017‐016 Territorial Woods, Maple Grove. Approved at the September 13, 2017 Commission meeting contingent upon 
receipt of an O & M agreement meeting the Commission’s rules.  The agreement was approved by the City and is in the 
process of being recorded. On February 5, 2019 Derek Asche contacted the project manager requesting a copy of the 
recorded maintenance agreement. The applicant responded on February 7, 2019.  The City will draft an agreement and 
forward to the applicant for execution. 

2017‐017 Mary  Queen  of  Peace  Catholic  Church,  Rogers.    In  June  2017  the  Commission  granted  Staff  approval 
authority pending satisfactory compliance with Staff’s findings.  All items from the findings have been completed with 
the exception of the O&M agreement for the stormwater facilities. On June 7, 2018 Andrew Simmons reported that the 
Church  is  in  the process of revising  the stormwater management plan  for  the site  to  include water reuse  instead of 
biofiltration pond. The Commission should receive a revised application  in the near future. There are also underlying 
utility easement issues with this project that are holding up the final recording of the plat against which to record the 
maintenance agreement.  On February 5, 2019 Andrew Simmons reported that the final plat has yet to be recorded. 

2017‐021 Hindu Society of MN, Maple Grove. At their June 14, 2017 meeting, the Commission approved this project per 
Staff’s recommendations.  All the recommendations have been met with the exception of the O&M plan agreements. 
On  February  5,  2019 Derek  Asche  contacted  the  project manager  requesting  a  copy  of  the  recorded maintenance 
agreement. 

2017‐029 Brayburn Trails, Dayton.  At their August 2017 meeting the Commission approved Staff’s findings dated August 
2, 2017 with five conditions. All of the conditions have been met with the submission of revised plans, with the exception 
of the final recordings of the O&M agreements and easements. On March 7, 2018, the City reported: final plat approval 
has not been granted, easements will be recorded as plats are approved. Ponds will be maintained by the City of Dayton. 
An agreement, and additional easement, will be required for a water re‐use system within one of the ponds (between the 
City and HOA). This system  is not part of the  first addition –  the  timing of said  improvements/agreement  is unknown. 
Construction is expected to start in 2018. 

On February 7, 2019, Jason Quisberg provided the following information: The 1st Addition was scaled back from what 
was  proposed;  associated  construction  activity  is  significantly  completed.  Extension  of  trunk  utilities  through 
Sundance Golf Course are complete. The proposed 2nd Addition  is under review.  Improvements  to 117th Avenue 
(East French Lake Road to Fernbrook Lane) will be part of the work done with the 2nd Addition. Construction start 
anticipated this spring. Pond easements are being recorded with the platting process for each addition (those [that 
are] part of the 1st Addition are in place). The water re‐use system is not part of the 2nd Addition (will be with future 
addition). 

2017‐034  Plymouth Memory Care, Plymouth.  This project was approved by the Commission at its September 2017 
meeting  subject  to  the  receipt  of  an O&M  agreement  acceptable  to  the  Commission. On  June  7,  2018,  city  staff 
reported that the applicant  is working with them to finalize the maintenance agreement. On February 5, 2019 Ben 
Scharenbroich provided a copy of the recorded agreement. This project will be removed from the report. 

2017‐037 Corcoran L‐80 Lift Station, Corcoran. Staff recommended  the Commission approve  this project contingent 
upon  the project meeting  the Commission wetland buffer  requirements.  This  item was  approved by  the  Executive 
Committee of  the Commission  in October 2017. Revised plans meet the Commission’s buffer requirements with the 
exception of the final easment recordings. On March 6, 2018, city staff informed the Commission that they are working 
with a land surveyor and will complete the recordations before construction is completed. On February 5, 2019 Kevin 
Mattson provided a copy of the recorded conservation easement.  This project will be removed from the report. 

item 04a



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
 
Italics indicates new information                                                                                                                                                              indicates enclosure 
 

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA •PLYMOUTH • ROGERS 

Staff Report 
February 7, 2019 
Page 7 

2017‐038 Bass  Lake Estates, Corcoran. At  their March 14, 2018 meeting,  the Commission approved Staff’s  findings 
which recommended approval contingent upon the applicant recording the maintenance agreements and easements 
within 90 days of final plat recording.  On February 5, 2019 Kevin Mattson provided copies of the recorded documents.  
This project will be removed from the report. 

2018‐001  Rush Creek Commons, Maple Grove.  Approved at the February 14, 2018 meeting contingent upon meeting 
the  Commission’s  operation  and  maintenance  requirements  on  the  stormwater  facilities,  i.e.,  all  ponds  and 
biofiltration  basins must  have  drainage  and  utility  easements  and  operation  and maintenance  agreements  over 
them.  These must  be  recorded  on  the  property  title  and  a  copy  of  the  recordations must  be  provided  to  the 
Commission within 90 days after final plat approval. On February 5, 2019 Derek Asche contacted the project manager 
requesting a copy of the recorded maintenance agreement. 

2018‐018 Summers Edge Phase  III, Plymouth. The Commission approved Staff’s  recommendations at  their  June 13, 
2018 meeting, subject to receipt of final easements over the wetland buffers within 90 days of final platting in a format 
acceptable to the Commission. On February 5, 2019 Ben Scharenbroich provided an unsigned copy of the final plat.  

2018‐026 Windrose, Maple Grove.   The Commission approved  Staff’s  finding and  recommendations dated  July 20, 
2018.  Final plan approval is contingent upon verification of the wetland approvals by the City of Maple Grove and the 
approval and recording of the operation and maintenance plan on the filter basins. On February 5, 2019 Derek Asche 
reported that the City will receive the agreement for the filter basins with the grading permit application. 

2018‐028 Tricare Third Addition, Maple Grove    In their findings dated August 7, 2018, Staff recommended approval 
contingent on approval and recordation of the operations and maintenance plan on the filter basins. The Commission 
further recommended that the City of Maple Grove consider an oil/debris type of seperator in the parking lot manhole.  
Derek Asche  contacted  the  project manager  on  February  5,  2019.    It  is a  condition  of  the  grading  permit  that  the 
maintenance agreement is provided.  

2018‐043 BeeHive Homes, Maple Grove.   This project was approved by  the Commission at  their October meeting 
contingent on an approved stormwater system O&M plan being recorded on the property title or the City accepting 
O&M plan responsibility. On February 5, 2019 Derek Asche reported that the City and the applicant each have a signed, 
unrecorded copy of the agreement.  It is the latter’s responsibility to have the agreement recorded; however, if that does 
not occur the City will record its copy.  

2018‐044 OSI Phase II, Medina. Staff findings dated October 9, 2018 were approved by Commission at their October 
meeting contingent upon receipt of an approved stormwater system operation and maintenance plan being recorded 
on the property title. On February 5, 2019 Dusty Finke reported that the City is awaiting final plat application for this 
project. 

2018‐048 Faithbrook Church, Phase 2, Dayton. This is an application for review of an expansion of an existing church 
located northeast of the intersection of Fernbrook Lane and Elm Creek Road.  The Commission approved this project at 
their November meeting conditioned upon receipt of a SWPPP meeting NPDES requirements and the City of Dayton 
accepting maintenance responsibility or recording a modified O&M plan for the stormwater features on the site in a 
form acceptable to the Commission.  On February 7, 2019, Jason Quisberg reported that this project has gone idle; it 
is believed to be due to funding needs of the applicant. It is expected activity will resume this spring, with potential 
construction this summer. 

LOCAL PLANS 
Champlin. Approved January 9, 2019. 

Corcoran.  Approved November 14, 2018. 

Dayton Surface Water Management Plan.  Approved October 10, 2018.   

Maple Grove Draft Surface Water Management Plan.  Approved November 14, 2018. 

item 04a



RULE D ‐ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT    RULE G ‐ WETLAND ALTERATION 
RULE E ‐ EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL     RULE H – BRIDGE AND CULVERT CROSSINGS 
RULE F – FLOODPLAIN ALTERATION    RULE  I  – BUFFERS 
 
Italics indicates new information                                                                                                                                                              indicates enclosure 
 

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA •PLYMOUTH • ROGERS 

Staff Report 
February 7, 2019 
Page 8 

Medina.  Approved December 8, 2017. 

Plymouth.  Approved November 14, 2018.  

Rogers.  2040 Comprehensive Plan received January 2, 2019. Staff findings included in February meeting packet. 

FEMA FLOODPLAIN MAPPING 
Elm Creek Floodplain Mapping: GIS work and integration with the HEC‐HMS model contrinues in February.  Staff plans 
to share initial hydrology results at the March meeting. 

item 04a



RESOLUTION 2019‐01REGARDING ROLE OF COMMISSION AS LGU FOR WCA V2 
 

RESOLUTION 2019‐01 
 

REGARDING THE ROLE  
OF THE ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION 

AS THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT 
TO ADMINISTER THE WETLAND CONSERVATION ACT OF 1991 

 
 
  WHEREAS, the Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act of 1991 (WCA) requires local 
government units (LGUs) to implement the rules and regulations promulgated by the Board of 
Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) pertaining to wetland draining, filling and excavation; and 

WHEREAS, the WCA and Minnesota Rule Chapter 8420 authorizes a city to contract with 
and delegate to a watershed management organization local government unit responsibilities; 
and 

  WHEREAS, by Resolution 1993‐124, the City of Corcoran (City) designated the Elm Creek 
Watershed Management Commission (Commission) to server as its Local Government Unit; and 

  WHEREAS, on December 13, 2017, the Commission voted to invoice back to the 
member cities all future costs for WCA LGU activities performed by the Commission where the 
Commission is designated as the LGU for said communities; and  

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Commission and the City that effective March 1, 
2019, the City will re‐assume primary LGU responsibilities under the WCA and no longer 
delegate that primary role to the Commission, and the Commission will continue to provide the 
City with technical and support services as customarily provided to member communities 

  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Elm Creek Watershed Management 
Commission, as follows: 

  1.  Effective March 1, 2019, the Commission will continue to provide services to the 
City of Corcoran as the Local Government Unit under the Watershed Conservation Act and will 
invoice back to the City all costs related to its role as the Local Government Unit for the 
Wetland Conservation Act.  

  2.  Effective March 1, 2019, the Commission will continue to provide services to the 
City for wetland replacement monitoring for the  Ravinia Development as approved by the 
Commission under project 2016‐005W.  

3.  Effective March 1, 2019, the City will assume LGU responsibilities for the Ernie 
Mayers Access Drive wetland violation reviewed by the Commission under project 2017‐050W 
with administrative support provided by Commission staff. 

4.  Effective March 1, 2019, the City will assume LGU responsibilities for the 
Bellwether 2nd project reviewed by the Commission under project 2018‐032 Encore and 
participate in any pre‐application meetings to facilitate the transition. 

item 04b



RESOLUTION 2019‐01REGARDING ROLE OF COMMISSION AS LGU FOR WCA V2 
 

Adopted by the Commissioners of the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission the 
thirteenth day of February, 2019. 

              _________________________________ 

              ___________________, Chairman 

 

 

Attest: 

 

_______________________________ 

_____________________ Administrator 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA  
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN  

  I,  Judie A. Anderson, do hereby  certify  that  I  am  the  custodian of  the minutes of  all 
proceedings had and held by the Board of the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission, 
that I have compared the above resolution with the original passed and adopted by the Board of 
said Commission at a regular meeting thereof held on the thirteenth day of February, 2019, at 
11:30 a.m., that the above constitutes a true and correct copy thereof, that the same has not 
been amended or rescinded and is in full force and effect.  

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto placed my hand and signature this thirteenth day 
of February, 2019. 
 
 
 
______________________________         (NO SEAL) 
Judie A. Anderson 
 

item 04b



elm creek  
Watershed Management Commission 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
3235 Fernbrook Lane 
Plymouth, MN 55447 
PH: 763.553.1144 
FAX: 763.553.9326 
Email: judie@jass.biz 

TECHNICAL OFFICE
Hennepin County DES

701 Fourth Avenue South, Suite 700
Minneapolis, MN 55415

PH: 612.348-7338
FAX: 612.348.8532

Email: james.kujawa@co.hennepin.mn.us
 

 

CHAMPLIN-CORCORAN- DAYTON- HASSAN TOWNSHIP-MAPLE GROVE-• MEDINA •PLYMOUTH-ROGERS   

 

DATE: JANUARY 30, 2019 

TO ELM CREEK WATERSHED COMMISSION 

FROM: JIM KUJAWA 

RE: CITY OF ROGERS DRAFT 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

Background 

Commission staff reviews Member Community Comprehensive Plans for conformance with the 
Commission’s 3rd Generation Stormwater Management Plan.  The review focuses on the requirements of the 
communities as outlined in MS 103B.231 and .235.   

Updates to the local stormwater management plans are expected to include: 

• Updated land use, hydrologic, and hydraulic data, and existing or potential water resource related 
problems that may have changed since the last LWMP. 

• An explanation of how the member city will help to implement the actions set forth in the Commission’s 
Plan, including specifically addressing adoption and enforcement of a manure management ordinance. 

• Show how the member city will act to achieve the load reductions and other actions identified in and 
agreed to in TMDL Implementation Plans. 

• Updated Implementation Plan identifying the specific structural, nonstructural, and programmatic 
solutions to the problems and issues identified in the LWMP. 

• Set forth an implementation program including a description of adoption or amendment of official 
controls and local policies necessary to implement the Rules and Standards; programs; policies; a capital 
improvement plan; and estimates of cost and funding mechanisms. 

Information 

Staff received the draft Roger 2040 Comprehensive Plan for review and comment on January 2, 2019.  Staff 
concentrated on Chapter 8, Water Resources, in said plan. 

Based on our review, none of the requirements from MS 103B are addressed in this draft plan. 

Action 

None required at this time.   

 

jck 

item 04c1)



1 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2018 WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

elm creek 
Watershed Management Commission 
Z:\Elm Creek\Work Plans\2018  EC Work Plan in Review.doc2/4/2019 5:13 PM 

 

2018 WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

Minnesota Rule 8410.0150 requires the Commission to submit to the Board of Water and Soil Resources a 
financial report, activity report and audit report for the preceding fiscal year.  8410.0150 Subp. 3 outlines the 
content of the annual activity report.  It includes an assessment of the previous year’s annual work plan and 
development of a projected work plan for the following year.   

Following is a summary of the work undertaken by the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission in 2018 
to meet the goals, objectives, and projected work plan outlined in its 2017 Annual Report. The Commission 
identified the following activities for 2018: 

●  Continue to review local development/redevelopment plans for conformance with the standards 
outlined in the Commission’s Third Generation Watershed Management Plan.  Review the current 
project review fee schedule for fiscal conformity. Fifty‐four projects were reviewed by the Commission 
in 2018.  The Commission does not have a permit program.  The current fee schedule was not reviewed 
in 2018.  

●    Continue to serve as the local government unit (LGU) for administering the Wetland Conservation Act 
(WCA) for the City of Corcoran. The Commission continued to serve as the LGU for Corcoran. In 2018 
Technical staff assisted approximately 50 landowners/agency/developer contacts with wetland‐related 
questions.  On behalf of the Commission they reviewed the following types of wetland applications: 47 
wetland boundary/type; ten no‐loss, three exemptions, three sequencing, and three wetland replacement 
plans. Wetland impacts totaled 40,240 SF; wetland replacement totaled 78,698 SF. Five WCA violations 
were investigated and resolved.  Two others were determined to not be WCA/Commission violations. One 
violation is on‐going.  The Commission was involved in 12 Technical Evaluation Panels (TEPs) throughout 
the watershed. The Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission does not have a wetland banking 
program. 

●  Enter into a new five‐year cooperative agreement with Three Rivers Park District (TRPD) to share in the 
costs of conducting lake and stream monitoring in the watershed. A new five‐year cooperative 
agreement was approved at the Commission’s March 14, 2018 meeting.  Under the agreement TRPD 
will be responsible for monitoring three of twelve sampling stations every year for continuous flow 
measurements.  The Commission may request the collection of water quality nutrient data at the 
continuous flow monitoring stations under the agreement.  Water quality nutrient analysis requested 
for the flow measurement sites would be analyzed for Total Phosphorus, Soluble Reactive Phosphorus, 
Total Nitrogen, and Total Suspended Solids.  

TRPD will also be responsible for monitoring four of fifteen lakes in the Elm Creek watershed annually 
plus other specific lakes that have been approved for monitoring by the Commission.  The four Category 
I “sentinel” lakes will be monitored every year; the eight Category II lakes that have had data collected 
within the last ten years will be monitored occasionally; and the three Category III lakes that currently 
have insufficient data for an assessment determination of trophic conditions will be monitored within 
the next five‐year cycle. The water quality constituents that will be analyzed for surface samples on all 
lakes (classified as deep or shallow) will include total phosphorus, soluble reactive phosphorus, total 

item 04d1)



2 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2018 WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

nitrogen, and chlorophyll‐a.  Those lakes that are classified as deep lakes will also have water quality 
samples collected at the top of the hypolimnion and 1‐m from the bottom, and will be analyzed for 
total phosphorus and soluble reactive phosphorus.    

In addition, under the agreement, the Commission and the Park District will provide financial support to 
assist the monitoring efforts of the USGS stream gauging station on Elm Creek within the Elm Creek 
Park Reserve. 

●  Conduct lake and stream monitoring programs to track water quality and quantity conditions. The 
Commission undertook stream monitoring for continuous flow at monitoring sites DC on Diamond 
Creek, RT on Rush Creek main stem, and EC77 on Elm Creek above Rice Lake. In 2018, there were no 
water quality samples collected for analysis of nutrients that were requested under the Commission’s 
contract.  However, continuous flow and water quality nutrient data was collected for a separate 
contract agreement with the City of Plymouth at three sampling sites that were within the Elm Creek 
Watershed.  A total of 74 water quality samples (27 composite storm event and 47 grabs) were 
collected for the analysis of nutrients from these three sampling sites in 2018.  In addition, a dissolved 
oxygen (DO) longitudinal survey was conducted on Diamond Creek. The Commission monitored the four 
sentinel lakes (Fish, Weaver, Diamond, and Rice Lake‐main basin) on a bi‐weekly basis for water 
quality.  There was a total of 78 water quality samples collected and analyzed water quality nutrients 
for the four lakes monitored in 2018.  A point‐intercept aquatic vegetation survey was also completed 
on Diamond Lake in the spring and fall for 2018.  All monitoring outlined in this section was conducted 
in cooperation with Three Rivers Park District.  

●  Fund the monitoring of two lakes through Metropolitan Council’s Citizen Assisted Monitoring Program 
(CAMP).  Lake Jubert was monitored through the CAMP program in 2018.   

●  Continue to operate the monitoring station in Champlin in cooperation with the United States Geological 
Survey (USGS).  Discharge measurements were made to define changes to the stage‐discharge relation 
over the range of flows that occurred in order to compute an accurate record of streamflow. Twelve 
manual samples were collected monthly to represent the variations in hydrologic conditions that occur 
during the year. A refrigerated automatic sampler was used to collect eight composited samples of 
runoff events.  Composite samples were collected during increasing or peak streamflow, when many 
selected concentrations are expected to be greatest.  Samples are analyzed for Total Phosphorus, 
Dissolved Phosphorus, Total Ammonia plus Organic Nitrogen, Dissolved Ammonia Nitrogen, Dissolved 
Nitrite plus Nitrate Nitrogen, Total Suspended Solids, Volatile Suspended Solids,* Oxygen Demand, 
Dissolved Chloride, Water Temperature,* Specific Conductance, pH, and Dissolved Oxygen.*  
(*Denotes not auto‐sampled.) 

●  Promote river stewardship through Hennepin County’s RiverWatch program with three sites in 2018. 
Seven sites were monitored through RiverWatch in 2018 – Crow River at St. Michael Water Treatment 
Plant (CR‐2); Rush Creek on west side of 101st Lane, Maple Grove (RC‐1b);  Rush Creek on east side of 
101st Lane, Maple Grove (RC‐1a); Elm Creek at Peony Lane behind Wayzata High School in Plymouth 
(EC‐2); Elm Creek downstream from Rice Lake in Maple Grove (EC‐4); Elm Creek at the Maple Grove 
Arboretum in Maple Grove (EC‐6); and Rush Creek at the Elm Creek Park Reserve in Maple Grove (RC‐
3). County staffers also hosted a streamside survey with a group of 4th graders on Elm Creek. 

●  Participate in the MN Wetland Health Evaluation Program (WHEP) with four wetlands in 2018.  Five 
sites were monitored as part of the WHEP program in 2018 – (EC‐1) Blundell Restoration, (EC‐2) Bulduc 
Restoration, and (EC‐3) Bulduc wetland, all in the City of Rogers; (EC‐4) Cedar Hollow, Plymouth; and 
(EC‐5) Northwest Greenway, also in Plymouth.  

●   Assist member communities in preparing and adopting their local water management plans. Under Rule  
8410.0160, subp. 6, local plans must be approved by the Commission by December 31, 2018. At year‐

item 04d1)



3 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2018 WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

end the Commission had reviewed and approved the local surface water plans of the cities of Corcoran, 
Dayton, Maple Grove, Medina, and Plymouth. The plans for Champlin and Rogers were under review on 
December 31. 

●   Conduct the biennial solicitation of interest proposals for administrative, legal, technical and wetland 
consultants.  This task was not required in 2018. Solicitations for 2019‐2020 will be published in the 
January 14, 2019 edition of the  State Register. 

●   Continue as a member of the West Metro Water Alliance (WMWA).  Continued to support the WMWA 
Educator Program and contributed to its e‐newsletter Water Links.  Promoted the Watershed PREP 
program to reach every 4th grade science class in the watershed. Participated in the Planting for Clean 
Water project. Conducted native plant sales at various city events around the watershed. Chairman Doug 
Baines attended the monthly WMWA meetings to represent the Commission. 

●  Co‐sponsor Rain Garden Workshops in conjunction with WMWA as part of the Commission’s Education 
and Public Outreach Program. WMWA sponsored four Resilient Yard workshops and two Turf 
Alternative workshops presented by Metro Blooms in 2018.  In the Elm Creek watershed Resilient Yard 
workshops were held in Champlin on April 4 and in Plymouth on April 17.   

●   Continue as a member of Blue Thumb and WaterShed Partners and a partner in the NEMO (Nonpoint 
Education for Municipal Officials) program. These memberships were renewed in 2018 with Staff 
regularly attending Blue Thumb and WaterShed Partner meetings.   

●  Develop a model manure management ordinance/policy regulating the placement of new small 
nonfood animal operations using the City of Medina ordinance as a reference. At their September 12, 
2018 meeting the Commission adopted a “Recommended Livestock Management Policy.”  It was 
transmitted to the member cities for its adoption or adoption of other ordinances and practices that 
will accomplish its objectives.   

●  Work in partnership with the University of Minnesota’s agriculture specialist to help build relationships 
with the agricultural community in the watershed in order to encourage TMDL implementation. This is an 
ongoing activity. 

●  Work with the Hennepin County Rural Conservation Specialist.  The Rural Conservation Specialist assisted 
cities as they worked to incorporate the Commission’s Recommended Livestock Management Policy into 
their own ordinances/policies.  She also assisted  landowners to identify BMPs for implementation as part 
of the Rush Creek Subwatershed Assessment and in other areas of the watershed. 

●  Seek grant funding to assist with the costs associated with projects identified on the Commission’s 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP). A call for CIPs went out to the cities in January 2018.  Proposed 
CIPs and CIP updates were reviewed for inclusion on the Commission’s CIP by the Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) and their recommendation forwarded to the Commission. This activity required a 
Minor Plan Amendment to the Commission’s Third Generation Watershed Management Plan to add 
eight new projects and shift funding for two existing projects.  A public meeting was held on May 9, 
2018, to hear the proposed amendment, which was adopted by the Commission on that date.  

●   Undertake the Internal Phosphorus Loading Control Project on Fish Lake.  This project spans the years 
2017‐2019. An initial alum treatment occurred in September 2017.  In 2018 TRPD collected sediment 
cores to determine the effectiveness of the first alum treatment by analyzing the Al:P binding capacity, 
determine the alum dosage calculations,  and monitored the in‐lake water quality.  A report was 
completed for the sediment analysis study in 2018.  At year‐end the Commission sought bids to conduct 
the second treatment, which will occur in spring 2019.   

item 04d1)



4 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2018 WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

●   Undertake the Rush Creek Headwaters Subwatershed Assessment Project.  In December 2017 an Open 
House was held for property owners living in the Corcoran portion of the Study Area. The approximately 
50 folks who attended the Open House shared information about known problems, issues, and 
observations about conditions in their area. Wenck Associates and the Core Team reviewed this 
information as they moved forward with the assessment. The final report was published in July 2018 
and identified high priority projects, along with their cost‐benefit, across the Study Area.  

●   Continue to support City‐sponsored projects using the ad valorem funding mechanism. At a public 
hearing on September 12, 2018, the Commission approved four projects for ad valorem funding .  On 
November 6, 2018, the County Board approved the Commission’s request to fund the following: 

Project 2018‐01:  Rush Creek Main Stem Stream Stabilization Phase 3, Maple Grove. Stabilize and 
restore approx. 11,000 feet of Rush Creek stream bank.  Estimated project cost is $1,650,000, with 
$1,575,000 borne by the City of Maple Grove and other sources and $75,000 by the Commission 
through the ad valorem process. 

Project 2018‐02: Elm Creek Stream Restoration Reach D, Plymouth. Stabilize and restore 3,850 feet of 
stream bank. Estimated project cost is $850,000, with $637,500 borne by the City of Plymouth and 
other sources and $212,500 by the Commission through the ad valorem process. 

Project 2018‐03: Elm Creek Stream Restoration Phase III, Champlin.  Restore streambank and aquatic 
habitat on 2,287 LF of streambank. Estimated project cost is $400,000, with $300,000 borne by the City 
of Champlin and other sources and $100,000 by the Commission through the ad valorem process. 

Project 2018‐04:  Downs Road Trail Rain Gardens, Champlin. Construct rain gardens and other BMPs 
for areas tributary to Mill Pond and Elm Creek, include in Elm Creek Mill Pond Education Program. 
Estimated project cost is $300,000, with $225,000 borne by the City of Champlin and other sources and 
$75,000 by the Commission through the ad valorem process. 
 

●  Adopt a 2019 operating budget. At its June 13, 2018 regular meeting, the Elm Creek Watershed 
Management Commission approved a 2019 operating budget totaling $943,296. The budget is based in 
part on the projected costs found in the Implementation section of the Commission’s Third Generation 
Watershed Management Plan and includes Capital Improvement Projects totaling $462,500. To fund 
the 2019 operating budget the Commission approved an increase in member assessments to $230,400, 
a 2.40% increase over the 2018 assessments.   

●   Continue to populate and maintain the Commission’s website www.elmcreekwatershed.org to provide 
news to residents, students, developers and other individuals interested in the water resources of the 
watershed. Using the tool Weebly, continued to update and enhance the website, adding links to other 
websites as well as to other useful information.   

●  Publish an annual activities report summarizing the Commission’s yearly activities and financial 
reporting.  The 2018 Annual Activity Report will be available on the Commission’s website by the April 
30, 2019 statutory deadline. 

●  The Commission will continue to meet with representatives from the Board of Water and Soil 
Resources, other water management organizations, counties, and cities regarding a possible move from 
a competitive funding model towards a more systematic Clean Water Funding model for local water 
management authorities on a watershed basis.  On May 16, 2018 Hennepin County convened a formal 
meeting of eligible participants in the Board of Water and Soil Resources‘ (BWSR’s) Watershed‐Based 
Funding Pilot Program. Prior to the convening meeting a working group of representatives of the 11 
watersheds in the county met informally to identify potential funding options for the $1,018,000 
allocated to Hennepin County watersheds for state fiscal years 2018 and 2019. The working group 
identified three potential options for allocating those funds: (1) Set aside a funding amount for chloride 

item 04d1)



5 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2018 WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

management, allocate the balance on either (2) or (3); (2) Allocate the full amount to basins based 50% 
land area/50% tax base; basin WMOs would then allocate based on their own strategies; and (3) 
Allocate the full amount to WMOs based 50% land area/50% tax base. For this pilot program it was a 
consensus to proceed with Options (1) and (3). The Elm Creek Stream Restoration Project Phase IV in 
Champlin was selected for funding through the pilot program. Funding for this project will total 
$134,486. 

Activities that were not included in the 2018 Work Plan: 

●  The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) awarded the Minnesota Dept. of Natural 
Resources (MnDNR) a grant to update the Special Flood Hazard Areas in the Twin Cities HUC8 
watershed.  Pass‐through grants were provided so that WMOs can complete some or all of this work.  
FEMA’s plan was to leverage existing data wherever possible so the Twin Cities WMOs within the HUC8 
watershed were approached to see if they have any data that can support this effort. Since leveraged 
data will reduce overall project cost, WMOs providing data were offered the remaining funds allotted 
for that watershed for such activities as flood risk reduction or communication activities. All 
deliverables must be submitted to MnDNR by April 2020. Cost estimates were based on MnDNR staff 
developing new hydrologic and hydraulic models using HEC‐HMS and HEC‐RAS, delineating all 
floodplains and x‐section shapefiles, and developing the depth grids.  Unused funds will be passed 
through to the WMO for those activities described above.   

The Commission’s Technical Staff , working with MnDNR, put together a scope of work and cost 
estimate. Hennepin County staff have the capacity and will do the work.  The total budget for this 
project is $92,772.45 and does not require a local match. A contract agreement in the foregoing 
amount was approved and executed by the Commission at their May 9, 2018 meeting. 

●  At the July meeting the Commission approved a request from the City of Dayton to undertake a 
subwatershed assessment (SWA) of the Diamond Lake watershed. The Hennepin County Rural 
Conservationist volunteered to write the application. The County submitted this SWA to the Metro 
Conservation District (MCD) as a placeholder for future SWA funding.  

●  On December 19, 2019 the BWSR Board approved an application from the MCD for implementation of 
the existing Rush Creek SWA which will be managed by Hennepin County. The application was funded in 
the full amount requested ‐ $142,110.00, with a required match of 25%. 

●  The City of Corcoran requested that grant finding be sought for a South Fork Rush Creek Subwatershed 
Assessment. This project will not be submitted until implementation occurs on the North Fork SWA.  It 
was agreed that it would be advantageous to work on the North Fork SWA first to see what kind of 
results are obtained or what lessons could be applied to future projects.  

●  Contributed $500 from the Education Budget for the 15th Annual Crow‐River Clean‐up Day on September 
15, 2018.  Donations are used to provide food, beverages and T‐shirts with donor logos for every 
volunteer in the event. In the past 14 years nearly 3400 volunteers from 30 communities have donated 
their time to remove 67 tons of garbage and debris from 503 miles of shoreline of the Crow River and its 
tributaries.   

●  The City of Maple Grove also requested funding assistance from the Commission to complete a 
subwatershed assessment for Fish Lake. The SWA will consist of hydrologic and water quality models to 
verify existing watershed conditions for the lake. The City’s consultant estimates the cost to complete 
the SWA to be $35,000. The City’s request was approved at the Commission’s October meeting.  

●  In response to the increasing number of SWA requests from cities, Staff implemented a system for 
applications to bring before the Commission for consideration in the early part of the year to determine 
funding and better align with grant application due dates for BWSR accelerated implementation 

item 04d1)



6 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2018 WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

grants. In addition to creating a more structured timeline, priorities and criteria for selection were 
agreed upon by the Commission to aid in the selection of which SWA applications would be funded. The 
first round of applications is due January 15, 2019. 

●  On November 14, 2018, the Commission adopted a Capital Improvement Program Closed Project 
account policy.  In addition to creating a closed project account, the policy also addresses the issue of 
insufficient tax settlements received from the County, and will be in place beginning with the 2019 levy 
(payable 2020). 

 

The 2018 Work Plan accomplishments were accepted at the _______ meeting and are described in more detail in 
the Commission’s 2018 Annual Activity Report. 

 

item 04d1)



 

 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2019 DRAFT WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

elm creek 
Watershed Management Commission 
Z:\Elm Creek\Work Plans\2018  EC Work Plan in Review.doc2/4/2019 5:24 PM 

 

DRAFT 2019 WORK PLAN  

Minnesota Rule 8410.0150 requires the Commission to submit to the Board of Water and Soil Resources a financial 
report,  activity  report  and  audit  report  for  the  preceding  fiscal  year.  8410.0150  Subp.  3  outlines  the  required 
content of  the  annual  activity  report.    It  includes  an  assessment of  the  previous  year’s  annual work  plan  and 
development of a projected work plan for the following year. The 2018 Work Plan accomplishments were accepted 
at the ________2019 meeting. 

The Commission’s Third Generation Watershed Management Plan identifies issues, priorities and goals for the ten‐
year period 2015‐2024. As a reminder, they are enumerated on the last pages of this memo. 

Following is a projected work plan for 2019.  Please review and be prepared to make modifications at the February 
meeting.  

1.  Continue to review local development/redevelopment plans for conformance with the standards 
outlined in the Commission’s Third Generation Watershed Management Plan.  Review the current 
project review fee schedule for fiscal conformity.  

2.    Continue to serve as the local government unit (LGU) for administering the Wetland Conservation Act 
(WCA) for the City of Corcoran on three projects that were carried over as the City transitioned to 
becoming its own LGU for WCA. Costs associated with these projects will be billed back to the City.  

3.  Continue to partner with the Three Rivers Park District (TRPD) to share in the costs of conducting lake 
and stream monitoring in the watershed. Under a five‐year cooperative agreement approved in 2018 
TRPD will be responsible for monitoring three of twelve sampling stations every year for continuous flow 
and monitor water quality nutrient data upon request from the Commission. TRPD will also be 
responsible for monitoring four of fifteen lakes in the Elm Creek watershed annually plus other specific 
lakes that have been approved for monitoring by the Commission.  In addition, the Commission and the 
Park District will provide financial support to assist the monitoring efforts of the USGS stream gauging 
station on Elm Creek within the Elm Creek Park Reserve. 

4.  Fund the monitoring of one lake through Metropolitan Council’s Citizen Assisted Monitoring Program 
(CAMP).   

5.  Continue to operate the monitoring station in Champlin in cooperation with the United States Geological 
Survey (USGS). 

6.  Promote river stewardship through Hennepin County’s RiverWatch program with three sites in 2019.  

7.  Participate in the MN Wetland Health Evaluation Program (WHEP) with four wetlands in 2019.   

8.  Complete the review of member communities’ local water management plans. Under Rule  8410.0160, 
subp. 6, local plans were to be approved by the Commission by December 31, 2018. At 2018 year‐end 
the plans for Champlin and Rogers were still under review. 

9.  Conduct the biennial solicitation of interest proposals for administrative, legal, technical and wetland 
consultants.   

item 04d2)



 

 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2019 DRAFT WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

10.  Continue as a member of the West Metro Water Alliance (WMWA).   

11.  Co‐sponsor Rain Garden Workshops in conjunction with WMWA as part of the Commission’s Education 
and Public Outreach Program.  

12.  Continue as a member of Blue Thumb and WaterShed Partners and a partner in the NEMO (Nonpoint 
Education for Municipal Officials) program.  

13.  Continue to work in partnership with the University of Minnesota’s agriculture specialist to help build 
relationships with the agricultural community in the watershed in order to achieve TMDL load reductions.  

14.  Work with the Hennepin County Rural Conservation Specialist.  Assist landowners in identifying BMPs for 
implementation throughout the watershed. 

15.  Seek grant funding to assist with the costs associated with projects identified on the Commission’s 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP). Adopt Minor Plan Amendments to support proposed CIPs and CIP 
updates.  

16.  Conduct a second alum treatment as part of the Internal Phosphorus Loading Control Project on Fish 
Lake.   

17.  Undertake high priority projects identified in the Rush Creek Headwaters Subwatershed Assessment.  

18.  Continue to support City‐sponsored projects using the ad valorem funding mechanism. Conduct public 
hearings for identified projects.  

19  Adopt a 2020 operating budget.  

20.  Continue to populate and maintain the Commission’s website www.elmcreekwatershed.org to provide 
news to residents, students, developers and other individuals interested in the water resources of the 
watershed.  

21.  Publish an annual activity report summarizing the Commission’s yearly activities and financial reporting.   

22.  Work to identify projects eligible for BWSR Watershed‐Based funding.  In 2018 the Commission was a 
recipient of $134,486 to fund Phase IV of the Elm Creek Stream Restoration Project in Champlin through 
the Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Watershed‐Based Funding pilot program. The pilot 
program extends through December 31, 2020. BWSR is now meeting with a group comprised of 
representatives of each of the groups of stakeholders to try to come to a consensus recommendation on 
how to fund future projects under this program.  

23.  Continue to update the Special Flood Hazard Areas on the FEMA Floodplain maps located within the 
watershed into current modeling packages.  The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
awarded the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (MnDNR) a grant to update the Special Flood 
Hazard Areas in the Twin Cities HUC8 watershed.  Pass‐through grants were provided so that WMOs can 
complete this work.  The total budget for this project in Elm Creek is $92,772.45 and does not require a 
local match. The term of the contract extends into the year 2020. 

24.  Support the City of Maple Grove as it undertakes a subwatershed assessment for that portion of Fish 
Lake within the Elm Creek watershed.  

25.  Prioritize subwatershed assessment applications received in the first round of SWA Cost Share 
Applications. 

26.  What else??

item 04d2)



 

 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2019 DRAFT WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Issues 

The Commission, along with the Citizen and Technical Advisory Committees (CAC and TAC), identified the following 
issues during the planning process: 

  Water quality—numerous lake and stream impairments, impact of land use changes, stream stability issues 

  Agricultural impacts on water quality—need to increase agricultural BMPs, develop effective mechanisms to 
encourage voluntary adoption, more effective outreach 

  Funding—maintaining a sustainable funding level; funding capital projects 

  Other issues—lack of information and knowledge of water quality issues and actions by multiple stakeholders; 
need to be realistic and prioritize actions; increase member city involvement; foster collaboration with other 
agencies 

Priorities 
Through the identification of these issues, the Commission developed the following priorities to guide water resources 
planning and management functions:  

Begin implementing priority projects in 2015, providing cost‐share to member cities to undertake projects to help 
achieve WRAPS lake and stream goals 

Use results of WRAPS study to establish priority areas, complete subwatershed assessments to identify specific 
BMPs that feasibly and cost‐effectively reduce nutrient and sediment loading to impaired water resources 

Develop model manure management ordinance to regulate placement of new small non‐food animal operations 
using the City of Medina ordinance as a guide; require member cities to adopt that or other ordinances and 
practices to accomplish its objectives 

Partner with other organizations to complete pilot project for targeted fertilizer application, increase and focus 
outreach to agriculutral operators 

Continue participating in joint education and outreach activities with WMWA and other partners 

item 04d2)



 

 
ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION – 2019 DRAFT WORK PLAN IN REVIEW 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Goals 
Water Quantity 

Maintain post‐development 2‐year, 10‐year, and 100‐year peak rate of runoff at pre‐development level for the 
critical duration precipitation event. 

Maintain post‐development annual runoff volume at pre‐development volume. 

Prevent loss of floodplain storage below the established 100‐year elevation. 

Reduce peak flow rates in Elm, Diamond, and Rush Creeks and tributary streams to the Crow and Mississippi and 
preserve conveyance capacity. 

Water Quality 
Improve Total Phosphorus concentration in the impaired lakes by 10% over the 2004‐2013 average by 2024. 

Maintain or improve water quality in the lakes and streams with no identified impairments. 

Conduct a TMDL/WRAPS progress review every five years following approval of the TMDLs and WRAPS studies. 

Use information in the WRAPS to identify high priority areas where the Commission will partner with cities and 
other agencies to provide technical and financial assistance. 

Groundwater 
  Promote groundwater recharge by requiring abstraction/infiltration of runoff from new development/ 

redevelopment. 

  Protect groundwater quality by incorporating wellhead protection study results into development and 
redevelopment Rules and Standards. 

Wetlands 

  Preserve the existing functions and values of wetlands within the watershed. 

  Promote the enhancement or restoration of wetlands in the watershed. 

Drainage Systems 
  Continue current Hennepin County jurisdiction over county ditches in the watershed. 

Operations and Programming 
  Identify and operate within a sustainable funding level that is reasonable to member cities. 

  Foster implementation of priority TMDL and other implementation projects by sharing in their cost and proactively 
seeking grant funds. 

  Operate a public education and outreach program to supplement NPDES Phase II education requirements for  
member cities.  

  Operate a monitoring program sufficient to characterize water quantity, water quality, and biotic integrity in the 
watersheds and to evaluate progress toward meeting goals. 

  Maintain rules and standards for development and redevelopment consistent with local and regional TMDLs, 
federal guidelines, source water and wellhead protection requirements, nondegradation, and ecosystem 
management goals. 

  Serve as a technical resource for member cities. 

item 04d2)



elm creek 
Watershed Management Commission

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
3235 Fernbrook Lane
Plymouth, MN 55447
PH: 763.553.1144
FAX: 763.553.9326
Email: judie@jass.biz

TECHNICAL OFFICE
Hennepin County DES

701 Fourth Avenue South, Suite 700
Minneapolis, MN 55415

PH: 612.348-7338
FAX: 612.348.8532

Email: james.kujawa@co.hennepin.mn.us

CHAMPLIN-CORCORAN- DAYTON- MAPLE GROVE-• MEDINA •PLYMOUTH-ROGERS

DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019 

TO ELM CREEK WATERSHED MANAGEMENT COMMISSION 

FROM: JIM KUJAWA 

RE: 1-94 UBOL RESURFACING MAPLE GROVE TO ROGERS AND 
BROCKTON INTERCHANGE EAW 

Background 

I- -
 -

 

  

• - - -
 

• -  

• -foot- -
-  

• In-  

• 
 

• -
 

•  

• -
 

•  

•  

item 07a



• -
 

• 
 

• -  

•  

•  

•  

 

Information 

on  

On behalf of the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission (ECWMC), please find my comments as they relate to 
the I-94 UBOL Resurfacing Maple Grove to Rogers and Brockton Interchange EAW.  The EAW was reviewed for 
compliance to the Commission’s Third Generation Stormwater Management Plan, Appendix C-Rules and Standards.  Based 
on EAW and the ECWMC standards I have the following comments:  

ECWMC Floodplain Rule F; 

1) There are several FEMA flood zones along this corridor.  The EAW addresses the requirements of the Commission 
for floodplain impacts (i.e. compensatory floodplain mitigation is provided at a 1:1 ratio by volume).  In addition, it 
addresses the Commission’s standards for floodway impacts, albeit in the Municipalities section of the report. 

2) The ECWMC has two upland storage areas in Maple Grove that are not considered FEMA floodplains but are 
regulated as floodplains in the ECWMC stormwater management plan (see attached map).  These are located at; 

a.  West of I-94 along DNR protected waters 27-027100 and 27-027400.  The ECWMC 100-year elevation on 
this basin is 922.5 (1929 NAVD), and 
b.  Just south of the intersection of CSAH 30 along DNR unnamed stream M-062-008.  The ECWMC 100-year 
elevation along this basin is 903.5 (1929 NAVD) 
 

3) ECWMC and FEMA floodplain elevations and impacts must be determined by the existing elevations as determined 
by LiDAR or a current topography survey, not by the FEMA overlay map. 

ECWMC Stormwater Management Rule D. 

1) Abstraction; ECWMC requires 1.1” abstraction for no more than 48 hours for all new impervious surfaces.  33.7 
acres of new impervious area will require ~134,565 cubic feet of abstraction. 

2) Water Quality; ECWMC requires post-development total phosphorus and suspended solids to be equal to or less than 
pre-development loads. 

ECWMC Stormwater Management Rule D 

1) Abstraction; ECWMC requires 1.1” abstraction for no more than 48 hours for all new impervious surfaces.  33.7 
acres of new impervious area will require ~134,565 cubic feet of abstraction. 

2) Water Quality; ECWMC requires post-development total phosphorus and suspended solids to be equal to or less than 
pre-development loads. 

item 07a



a. Ponds proposed for stormwater treatment must be designed to NURP standards or better with dead storage 
volume equal to or greater than the volume of runoff from a 2.5” storm event or BMPs providing a similar level of 
treatment- 80-85% TSS removal and 60% TP removal. 
 

3) Rate Controls; ECWMC requires post development flow rates be equal to or less than pre-development flow rates for 
the 2, 10 and 100-year storm events. 

ECWMC Erosion and Sediment Control, Rule E;   

1) Erosion control plans must use Best Management Practices and be consistent with the NPDES General Construction 
Permit requirements. 

Temporary Impervious Areas During Construction; 

1) Where permanent BMP’s are not designed to treat temporary increases for new impervious areas to widen 
and/or accommodate traffic during construction (i.e. temporary traffic lanes etc.), abstraction, TP and TSS loads must be 
accounted for on these temporary areas and temporary BMP’s designed to offset said loads. 

Final site plans must be submitted to the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission (ECWMC) for review and 
approval. 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this EAW.  Please contact me if you have any questions on thin 
information. 

 

Action;  For informational purposes only.  None necessary 

 

item 07a



 

 
 

 

item 07a



Fo
un

ta
in

s
W

ay
 

6 9
th

A v
e 

Tim
be

r C
re

st
Dr

 

WedgewoodLa 

Ith
ca a La

Berkshire La 

Su
n n

y 
S l

op
e D

r 

Pheas na t La 

Berkshire Way 

E
Fi

sh
La

ke
Rd

 

73
rd

 P
l 

75
th

 A
ve

 

Fish Lake Rd 

LarchLa 

75
th

Pl
 

DallasLa 

Deerwood La 

Pineview La 

Empire La 

78
th

Pl
 

76t
h Ave 

Ea
gl

e 
La

ke
 B

lvd
 

Yucca La
 

Ti
m

be
rCrestCt 

Ti

Ar
bo

rL
ak

es
Pk

wy
 

AnnapolisL
a 

She
ffi

el
d 

La
 

Kirkw oodLa 

Rosewood La 

AnnapolisCir 

Re
im

er
Dr 

70
th

 A
ve

 

Wed
gewoodCt 

Xenium La 

Fish Lake Cir 

Cr
es

t D
r 

71
st

Ave 

78
th

Av
e 

N a
ge

ll C
ir 

Jonuil La 

79
th

Av
e 

K i
rk

w o
od

Ct
 

C he

Timber La 

FernbrookLa 

Be r
ks

hi
re

Ct 

Care
yL

a 

72ndAve 

70
th

 P
l 

7 4
th

Av
e 

Ives L

W
ed

ge
wo

od
 W

ay
 

71
st

Pl
 

Vi
ne

wo
od

Ct
 

MSAS101 

We dgew
oo

d
R d

 

Chesshire
La 

Dall
as

Ct
 

Fou nta
ins

Dr
 

Te
ak

wood Cir 

Zin
nia

W
ay

 

Maplewood Dr 

VinewoodW
ay

 

Teakwood La 

Willow Rd 

BirchViewRd 

Vinewood La
 

FishLakeParkRd 

Ma
in

St
 

Hemlock La 
Hemlock La 

Hemlock La 

El
m

Cr
ee

k
Bl

vd
 

Hemlock La 

77
th

Av
e 

77
th

Av
e 

sh
ire

 C
t 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 

74
th

 P
l 

Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure6A_ChosenAlternative.mxd Date Saved: 12/27/2018 

Zinnia La

Fi
gu

re
 6

A
 -

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e

I-9
4 

U
B

O
L 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 to
 R

og
er

s 
an

d 
B

ro
ck

to
n 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

0 
1,

00
0

S
.P

. 2
78

0-
97

M
nD

O
T 

an
d 

C
ity

 o
f D

ay
to

n,
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 
¯ 

1 
in

ch
 =

 1
,0

00
 fe

et
 Fe

et
 

YuccaCir

M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 

%
 

&
 

f(
 

W

73
rd

 A
ve

 

m
b e

r L
a 

q

!"b$
 

a

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

C
ity

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

a stvi eewL For

item 07a



WFishLakeRd 

La 

Berkshire La 

M-984 

Sh
ad

ow
Cree

kRd 

Quarles Rd 

84
th

Av
e 

Ta
rle

to
n

Cr
st

 

Be
rk

sh
ire

W
ay

 

Underwood La 

76th Pl 

th
Pl

 

Da
lla

s L
a 

77t
h Ave 

Revelwood Pl 

78
th

Pl
 

Pineview La 

TerraceviewLa 

LanewoodLa

81
st

Av
e 

Fish Lake Rd 

Yucca La
 

AnnapolisLa 

GlacierLa 

84
th

Pl
 

Rice Lake Rd 

80
th

 P
l 

80
th

 A
ve

 

Shenandoah La 

Niagra La 

Orch
id

La 

Grotte
La

 

Re
im

er
Dr 

Xnium La 

KingsviewLa 

83
rd

 P
l 

Rhview La 

Zinnia La 

Ithaca La 

83
r d

 

85
th

Av
e 

Zinnea Way 

Gr
ov

e D
r 

E Fish Lake Rd 

78
th

Av
e 

81
st

 L
a 

M-
97

3 

Ar
bo

r L
ak

es
 P

kw
y 

79
th

Av
e 

Sycamo

83
rd

Hi
gh

R
d 

Rosewo

85
th

Pl
 

Po
lar

is
La

 

Wedgewood La 

Mari
ne

rP
t 

77
t h

Pl
 

Map
le

KnollW
ay 

8

Ri
ce

La
ke

Ci
r 

Upland La 

Maple La 

Cheshire La 

Wea
ve

r L
ak

e Rd N 

ShadowCreekDr 

82
nd

 A
ve

 

Chesshire
La 

Juneau La

od Rd 

80
th

Cir
 

Vinewood La
 

Elm Creek Blvd 
Elm Creek Blvd 

W
ea

ve
r L

ak
e R

d 

El
m

 C
re

ek
R

es
t A

re
a 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
n 

C
ity

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 

Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure6B_ChosenAlternative.mxd Date Saved: 12/27/2018

anc

n ssfieldTur Pa

Nigr aaa

M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 

!"b$
 

79
Ch

es
hi

re
 C

t 

Fi
gu

re
 6

B
 -

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e

I-9
4 

U
B

O
L 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 to
 R

og
er

s 
an

d 
B

ro
ck

to
n 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

0 
1,

00
0

S
.P

. 2
78

0-
97

M
nD

O
T 

an
d 

C
ity

 o
f D

ay
to

n,
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 
¯ 

1 
in

ch
 =

 1
,0

00
 fe

et
 Fe

et
 

e

86
th

 A
ve

 

W
ay

 

W dge ewo

re La

3r
d 

Av
e

odLa 

item 07a



Ma
ple

gr
ov

ePkw
yN 

ComstockLa 

90
th

 P
l N

 

91
st

Av
e 

92
nd

Av
eN

 

LanewoodLa 

Inlan
d La 

GlacierLa 

Harbor La 

Dunkirk La 

88
th

Av
e 

JuneauLa 

ArcherCt 

Minnesota La 

KingsviewCt 

Jewel La 

Kingsview La 

WestonLa 

Comstock La N 

GarlandLaN 

96
th

Pl
 

87
th

Pl
 

96
th

Av
e 

Ranchview La 

Upland La 

Holly
LaN 

Pl
N 

90
th

Av
eN

 

Je
we

l Ct 

94
th

 A
ve

 

Polaris La

94
th

Pl 

enandoah La 

M-1
104 

HollyLa 

M1
102 

87
th

Av
e 

thPl 

90
th

Av
e 

Upland

Niagra La 

Comstock Ct 

95
th

Pl
 

Bl
ac

k 
Oa

ks
Ct

 

M-86 

90thCtN 

Wea
ve

r La
ke

Rd 

Lanewood Ct 

Quantico La 

Garland La

89
th

Av
e 

Archer La N 

Everest La 

Inla dn Ave
 

91
st

Av
e N 

Orchard La 

Grove Cir N 

FountainLa 

Map
leGrov

ePkw
y 

92
nd

Av
e 

Zanzibar L
a 

91
st

Pl
 

Blackoaks

La 

93
rd

Av
e N

 

95
th

Av
9

e
5th

Ave 

93
rd

Av
e 

Fernbrook La 

95
th

Av
e 

CSAH 121 

9

93
rd

 P
l 

89

Grl aandAveN

- ht

ZnzibrL aaaN
M

ap
le

 G
ro

ve

N La

!"b$
 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
n 

C
ity

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 

Sh

93
rd

 A
ve

 

92
nd

 P
l 

Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure6C_ChosenAlternative.mxd Date Saved: 12/27/2018

88

Fi
gu

re
 6

C
 -

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e

I-9
4 

U
B

O
L 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 to
 R

og
er

s 
an

d 
B

ro
ck

to
n 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

0 
1,

00
0

S
.P

. 2
78

0-
97

M
nD

O
T 

an
d 

C
ity

 o
f D

ay
to

n,
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 
¯ 

1 
in

ch
 =

 1
,0

00
 fe

et
 Fe

et
 item 07a



!"b$
 

?óA@
 

GÛ WX
 

M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 

10
1s

t A
ve

 

99
th

Pl 

Dunkirk La 

Holly La N 
10

0t
h 

Av
e 

Ranchview La 

TroyLaN 

Gr
ov

e 
Ci

r N
 

10
6t

h
Pl

 

10
7t

hA
ve

 

Holly La 

98
th

 P
l N

 

Garland La 

10
5t

h 
Av

e 

Troy La 

Lawndale La 

CS
AH

81
 

Hospital Dr 

Te
rri

tor
ial

Rd 

I-9
4-

1b
: W

es
tb

ou
nd

 tr
av

el
 la

ne
be

tw
ee

n 
TH

 6
10

 a
nd

 T
H

 1
01

 

I-9
4-

2b
: E

as
tb

ou
nd

 tr
av

el
 la

ne
be

tw
ee

n 
TH

 6
10

 a
nd

 T
H

 1
01

 

Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure6D_ChosenAlternative.mxd Date Saved: 12/27/2018 

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
n 

R
ai

lro
ad

 

C
ity

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 

Fi
gu

re
 6

D
 -

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e

I-9
4 

U
B

O
L 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 to
 R

og
er

s 
an

d 
B

ro
ck

to
n 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

0 
1,

00
0

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 

S
.P

. 2
78

0-
97

Fe
et

M
nD

O
T 

an
d 

C
ity

 o
f D

ay
to

n,
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 
¯ 

1 
in

ch
 =

 1
,0

00
 fe

et
 

item 07a



11
7t

h 
Av

e 
N 

JustenCir 
11

3th
Av

e N 

Holly La N 

E French Lake Rd 

LawndaleLa 

French Lake Rd 

M-
24

7 

Troy La N 

Ho
lly

La
 

Du
nk

ir k
L a

 

Brockton La N

CSAH 81 

Territo
rial Rd 

I-9
4-

1b
: W

es
tb

ou
nd

 tr
av

el
 la

ne
be

tw
ee

n 
TH

 6
10

 a
nd

 T
H

 1
01

 

R
og

er
s 

D
ay

to
n 

Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure6E_ChosenAlternative.mxd Date Saved: 12/31/2018 

I-9
4-

2b
: E

as
tb

ou
nd

 tr
av

el
 la

ne
be

tw
ee

n 
TH

 6
10

 a
nd

 T
H

 1
01

 

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

D
ee

r C
om

po
st

 A
re

a 

R
ai

lro
ad

 

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
n 

C
ity

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 

!"b$
 

C
or

co
ra

n 
M

ap
le

 G
ro

ve
 

Fi
gu

re
 6

E 
-C

ho
se

n 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e
I-9

4 
U

B
O

L 
R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 M

ap
le

 G
ro

ve
 to

 R
og

er
s 

an
d 

B
ro

ck
to

n 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
0 

1,
00

0
S

.P
. 2

78
0-

97
M

nD
O

T 
an

d 
C

ity
 o

f D
ay

to
n,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 

¯ 
1 

in
ch

 =
 1

,0
00

 fe
et

 Fe
et

 item 07a



!"b$
 

Gl WX
 

D
ay

to
n

R
og

er
s 

Norbert
W

e b
er

 L
a 

Lin
de

n D
r

FletcherLa

Go
ld

en
ro

d 
La

 

Va
lle

y V
iew

 T
er

 

Troy La N 

12
4 t

h 
Av

e 
N 

French Lake Rd 

Brockton La 
Brockton La N 

CSAH
81

 

CSAH 13 

IrmaPl 

Madison Cir 

JustenCir 

Malisa
Ct 

Iro
nwood

Cir 

M-
24

7 

Te
rri

tor
ial

Rd
 

I-9
4-

2b
: E

as
tb

ou
nd

 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 V
eh

ic
le

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Si

te
 

I-9
4-

1b
: W

es
tb

ou
nd

 tr
av

el
 la

ne
be

tw
ee

n 
TH

 6
10

 a
nd

 T
H

 1
01

 

tr
av

el
 la

ne
 

be
tw

ee
n 

TH
 6

10
 a

nd
 T

H
 1

01
 

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
n 

R
ai

lro
ad

 

C
ity

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 

Fi
gu

re
 6

F 
-C

ho
se

n 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e
I-9

4 
U

B
O

L 
R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 M

ap
le

 G
ro

ve
 to

 R
og

er
s 

an
d 

B
ro

ck
to

n 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
0 

1,
00

0
S

.P
. 2

78
0-

97
M

nD
O

T 
an

d 
C

ity
 o

f D
ay

to
n,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 

¯ 
1 

in
ch

 =
 1

,0
00

 fe
et

 Fe
et

 Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure6F_ChosenAlternative.mxd Date Saved: 12/31/2018 
item 07a



!"b$
 

?ûA@
 

R
og

er
s 

Un
io

n 
St

 

13
4t

h 
Av

e 

S 
D i

am
on

d 
La

ke
Rd

 

Rogers Dr 

WellsteadDr

Commerce Blvd

NorthdaleBlvd 

Robe
rtLa 

Jo
hn

Mille
ss

Dr 

Di
am

on
d 

La
ke

 R
d 

12
8t

h 
Av

e 

Jo
hn

Dee
re

La

WeinardCir

Gray Fox Tr 

SugarS
t 

Do
ug

la
s D

r 

MS
AS

11
0 

Ro
ui

lla
rd

 A
ve

 

12
9t

h 
Pl

 

12
9t

h 
Av

e 

13
0t

h 
Av

e 
M-229

OttoSt

Ro
ge

r s
M

em
or

ial
Dr

 

Brookside Tr 

13
3r

d 
Av

e 

Fle
tch

er
La

 

pl
eA

ve
 

13
5t

h 
A v

e 
N 

Da
vi

d 
Ko

ch
 A

v e
Ch

ur
ch

 A
ve

 

Wilfred La 

GeorgeWeberDr 

Ah
ls

tro
m

 R
d 

Industrial Ct Ro
ui

lla
rd

 B
lvd

 

Ve
ve

a L
a 

Brooksi
de La

Brockton La

MainSt
Main St 

Ind
us

tria
l B

lvd
 

Industr
ial

Blvd

MainStMainSt 

CSAH 81 

CSAH 13 

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

R
ai

lro
ad

 

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
ns

 

C
ity

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 

I-9
4-

1b
: W

es
tb

ou
nd

 tr
av

el
 la

ne
be

tw
ee

n 
TH

 6
10

 a
nd

 T
H

 1
01

 

I-9
4-

2b
: E

as
tb

ou
nd

 tr
av

el
 la

ne
be

tw
ee

n 
TH

 6
10

 a
nd

 T
H

 1
01

 

Fi
gu

re
 6

G
 -

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e

I-9
4 

U
B

O
L 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 to
 R

og
er

s 
an

d 
B

ro
ck

to
n 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

0 
1,

00
0

S
.P

. 2
78

0-
97

Fe
et

M
nD

O
T 

an
d 

C
ity

 o
f D

ay
to

n,
 M

in
ne

so
ta

 
¯ 

1 
in

ch
 =

 1
,0

00
 fe

et
 

Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure6G_ChosenAlternative.mxd Date Saved: 12/31/2018 
item 07a



Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure7_ElmCreekRestAreaProposedImprovements.mxd Date Saved: 12/31/2018 

ac
to

n 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e
S

.P
. 2

78
0-

97
0 

20
0 Fe

et
M

nD
O

T 
an

d 
C

ity
 o

f D
ay

to
n,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 

¯ 
1 

in
ch

 =
 2

00
 fe

et
 

El
m

 C
re

ek
 R

es
t A

re
a 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
Ar

ea
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
n 

Fi
gu

re
 7

 -
El

m
 C

re
ek

 R
es

t A
re

a 
Pr

op
os

ed
I-9

4 
U

B
O

L 
R

es
ur

f
in

g 
M

ap
le

 G
ro

ve
 t

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

o 
R

og
er

s 
an

d 
B

ro
ck

!"b$
 

Inter
sta

te
94

 

Q
ua

rle
s

Ro
ad

No
rth

 

item 07a



!"b$
 

GÛ WX
 

R
og

er
s 

D
riv

e 

County
Road

81
 

Iro
nw

oo
dCirc

le 

Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure8_CommercialVehicleInspectionSite.mxd Date Saved: 12/31/2018 

e
ac

o 
R

og
er

s 
an

d 
B

ro
ck

to
n 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

0 
35

0 Fe
e

S
.P

. 2
78

0-
97

t
M

nD
O

T 
an

d 
C

ity
 o

f D
ay

to
n,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 

¯ 
1 

in
ch

 =
 3

50
 fe

et
 

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

Bu
ild

in
g

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
n 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 V
eh

ic
le

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Si

te
 

Fi
gu

re
 8

 -
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 V

eh
ic

le
 In

sp
ec

I-9
4 

U
B

O
L 

R
es

ur
f

in
g 

M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 tio
n 

Si
t

t

item 07a



D
ee

r 
C

om
po

st
 A

re
a 

Document Path: K:\03522-130\GIS\Maps\EnvironmentalAssessment\EA Document\Figure9_DeerCompostArea.mxd Date Saved: 12/31/2018 

ac
on

 n
S

.P
. 2

78
0-

97
0 

20
0 Fe

e
M

nD
O

T 
an

d 
C

ity
 o

f D
ay

to
n,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 

¯ 
1 

in
ch

 =
 2

00
 fe

et
 

t 

C
ho

se
n 

A
lte

rn
at

ive
 

D
ee

r C
om

po
st

 A
re

a 

Po
te

nt
ia

l B
M

P
 L

oc
at

io
n 

C
ity

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 

Fi
gu

re
 9

 -
D

ee
r C

om
po

st
 A

re
a

I-9
4 

U
B

O
L 

R
es

ur
f

in
g 

M
ap

le
 G

ro
ve

 to
 R

og
er

s 
an

d 
B

ro
ck

t
I

te
rc

ha
ng

e 

D
ay

to
n 

Te
rri

tor
ial

Rd
 

item 07a



 
 

 

 
 

  
Submitted 

To 

 

Submitted 
By 

 

 
 

Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission 
Internal Phosphorus Load Control for  

Fish Lake, Hennepin County 
Annual Progress Report 

2018 

item 09b1)



Fish Lake Alum Treatment 
Annual Progress Report 2018 

 
Fish Lake (DNR # 27-118-00) is located in the City of Maple Grove in Hennepin County.  The lake 

area is 238 acres in surface area and has a maximum depth of 61 feet and a percent littoral area (water 
depth of < 15 feet) representing 38% of the lake area.  The lake is included on the MPCA’s 303(d) list as 
impaired for aquatic recreation due to excessive nutrients in 2008.  Fish Lake was included in the 
watershed restoration and protection strategies (WRAPS) and the total daily maximum load (TMDL) 
studies that were completed by the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission in partnership with 
MPCA in 2017.  As part of preparation of the TMDL for Fish Lake, sediment cores were collected and 
analyzed in 2012 by William James at the University of Wisconsin-Stout.  The sediment cores were used 
to measure aerobic and anaerobic sediment phosphorus release rates for the estimation of internal 
phosphorus loading to support the development of the Fish Lake TMDL.  The WRAPS/TMDL studies 
identified internal loading as comprising about 70% of the total phosphorus load affecting surface water 
quality and included a recommendation to treat the lake with alum to achieve the MPCA water quality 
standards.  The sediment cores were used to develop the alum dosing options to address the internal 
phosphorus load.  Based on the sediment core analysis, it was recommended to treat the lake with alum 
to achieve a sediment delivery rate of 80 grams of Al/m2 in areas of the lake 20 feet or deeper, which 
translated to a liquid alum application rate of 1,583 gallons/acre of commercial grade alum over 120 
acres of the lake surface.   

An adaptive management approach was used for the implementation of the Fish Lake Alum 
treatment.  The current scientific literature indicates that multiple smaller doses spread out over a 
period of years improve the effectiveness of an alum treatment compared to administering the alum in 
one large dose at a single point in time.  It has also been documented that phosphorus binding efficiency 
and capacity on the alum floc depends to a large extent on the rapidity of exposure to phosphorus after 
the alum application.   Thus, the application of alum during late summer peak in hypolimnetic 
phosphorus accumulation can promote immediate exposure of the settling alum floc to soluble 
phosphorus for rapid binding and maintenance of a much higher phosphorus adsorption capacity after 
deposition on to the sediment surface.  It was recommended by William James to conduct two separate 
alum treatments during periods of peak anoxia with high hypolimnetic phosphorus concentrations at a 
delivery rate of 40 grams Al/m2 over a three-year time period.  This would allow the opportunity to 
monitor changes in water quality and conduct a comprehensive study to measure alum effectiveness at 
controlling internal loading.  Based on the outcome of the study, the second alum treatment could then 
be adjusted accordingly in order to maximize potential treatment effectiveness.   

HAB Aquatic Solutions was awarded the contract and completed the first alum application in 
mid-September (September 18th-September 21st) of 2017. The treatment barge (Figure 1) computer was 
pre-programed with bathymetry data that adjusted the target alum dosage rate of 40 grams/m2 based 
on water depth and travel speed.  There was 95,349 gallons of alum applied (22 tanker trucks) to 120 
acres of Fish Lake at depths greater than 20 feet (Table 1; Figure 2).  HAB Aquatic Solutions provided a 
map of the actual treatment area (Figure 3).   The Fish Lake Area Residents Association (FLARA) 
scheduled a media event on September 20th with partner representatives from Elm Creek Watershed 
Commission, City of Maple Grove, Three Rivers Park District and HAB Aquatic Solutions.  There were 

item 09b1)



approximately 15 home owners that attended the media event.  The CCX news station featured a story 
about the alum treatment while conducting interviews with local partners and home owners. 

 

 

 

Figure 1:  HAB Aquatic Solutions treatment barge used for the Fish Lake alum application in 2017 

 

Table 1:  Fish Lake alum treatment application in 2017. 

 

Hours of Alum Applied Area Applied Alum Truck
Application (gallons) (acres) Deliveries

9/18/2017 12:35 - 20:25 19,800 50.2 6
9/19/2017 6:55 - 21:00 30,668 77.8 7
9/20/2017 7:40 - 21:35 29,385 74.3 7
9/21/2017 7:35 - 13:05 15,496 39.1 2

95,349 241.4 22

Date

Total

item 09b1)



 

 

 

Figure 2:  Fish Lake alum proposed treatment area and sediment trap location. 

 

 

Figure 3:  Fish Lake alum application coverage September 18-21, 2017. 

item 09b1)



Three Rivers Park District and the University of Wisconsin-Stout conducted a two-phased study 
to determine the effectiveness of the alum application in controlling internal phosphorus load.  The 
specific details of the study proposal are referenced in Appendix A.  Phase 1 of the study involved the 
deployment of sediment traps above the sediment surface in two different locations of Fish Lake (Figure 
2) prior to the alum application to determine the Al:P binding capacity ratio immediately after the first 
alum treatment.  Phase 2 of the study involved collection of sediment cores in the same locations as the 
sediment traps to measure phosphorus sediment flux and the Al:P binding capacity ratio the following 
summer in 2018.  Three Rivers Park District also monitored the change in water quality in response to 
the fall alum treatment performed in 2017.  Water samples were collected bi-weekly at the surface from 
May through September in 2018.  Surface water samples were analyzed for total phosphorus, soluble 
reactive phosphorus, total nitrogen, and chlorophyll-a.  The water clarity/transparency was also 
measured with a secchi disk.  The surface water quality constituents were compared to the MPCA state 
water quality standards.  Water samples were also collected at the top of the hypolimnion and 1-m from 
the bottom to estimate the change in hypolimnetic phosphorus due to sediment release during anoxic 
conditions in 2018. 

The report for the Phase 1 portion of the study are referenced in Appendix B.  The sediment 
traps were collected 1 week after the alum application to allow for the complete settling of the alum 
floc in 2017.  The samples were analyzed for dry mass, total aluminum, aluminum-bound phosphorus, 
and the Al:P binding ratio.  The sediment trap analysis was compared to the changes in the phosphorus 
vertical profile before and after the alum application.  The results indicate that the alum application was 
effective at removing phosphorus as the alum floc settled throughout the water column (Figure 4).  A 
summary of the findings from the Phase 1 portion of the project are below. 

 There were significant decreases in hypolimnetic phosphorus, and it was estimated that 33% to 
41% of the total phosphorus and 29% to 44% of the soluble reactive phosphorus was bound by 
the alum floc during deposition through the hypolimnion. 

 Aluminum bound phosphorus in the sediment traps accounted for most of the hypolimnetic 
total phosphorus (60% to 80%) and soluble reactive phosphorus (79% to 88%). 

 The Al:P binding ratios in the sediment traps was approximately 20:1 for both stations. 

The report for Phase 2 portion of the study are referenced in Appendix C.  Sediment samples were 
collected from the two sediment trap locations the following summer of 2018.  This was the first 
summer following the fall alum treatment in 2017.  The phosphorus flux from the sediments was 
measured under anerobic conditions within the laboratory.  The sediments were further analyzed for 
phosphorus fractionation and total aluminum to determine Al:P binding ratios.  The results indicated 
that there was continual binding of phosphorus on the Alum floc layer between the first alum treatment 
(September 2017) and August 2018.  A summary of the findings from the Phase 2 portion of the project 
are below. 

 The rates of diffusive phosphorus flux under anaerobic conditions were extremely low after late 
summer 2017 alum treatment. 

 The total aluminum was greatest at the surface of the sediments suggesting that the alum floc 
layer was located primarily on top of the original sediment surface.  This alum concentration 
was similar to the concentration measured in the sediment traps during Phase 1 of the study. 

 There was considerable phosphorus bound to the Aluminum on the alum floc over time.   

item 09b1)



 The Al:P ratio declined from 19:1 to 16:1 at station 1 and from 21:1 to 18:1 at station 2 in 
approximately 1 year.  Declining Al:P ratios suggested that binding sites were continuing to be 
efficiently filled via phosphorus diffusing from underlying sediments.   

The study results suggest the application of alum during the late summer stratified period and floc 
deposition through the phosphorus-rich hypolimnion lead to considerable binding of internal 
phosphorus loads, a relatively low Al:P ratio, and suppression of hypolimnetic phosphorus accumulation 
(Table 2; Figure 4).  The goal with the Fish Lake alum treatment was to maintain high phosphorus 
binding efficiency of the alum floc by exposing it to high concentrations of hypolimnetic phosphorus 
immediately after application.  The decrease in the hypolimnetic phosphorus concentrations suggest 
that alum application has significantly reduce the internal loading within Fish Lake (Figure 4).   Based on 
the results of the study, William James recommends completing the second alum treatment during a 
period of summer anoxia when the hypolimnetic phosphorus is at its highest to achieve optimal binding 
capacity.   The second alum treatment for Fish Lake is planned for the summer of 2019. 

 

Table 2:  Area-weighted concentrations of Al, Al-bound P, and the Al:P ratio at station 1 and 2 after the 
alum application in Fish Lake (September 2017). 

Months after 
Alum 

Station 1 Station 2 
Al Al-bound P Al:P Al Al-bound P Al:P 

Application (g/m2) (g/m2) Ratio (g/m2) (g/m2) Ratio 
0.8 months 26 1.35 19.3 31.4 1.48 21.2 

10.8 months 32.4 2.07 15.7 30.6 1.71 17.9 
 

 

The success of the alum treatment was further confirmed through the in-lake water quality 
monitoring efforts in 2018.  The Fish Lake water quality report card shows the annual changes in water 
quality (Appendix D).  The in-lake water quality conditions achieved the phosphorus state water quality 
standards throughout the entire season of 2018 (Figure 5).  The hypolimnetic phosphorus 
concentrations were also the lowest recorded since monitoring has occurred.  Despite the lake meeting 
phosphorus water quality standards in 2018, there was an algal bloom in August of 2018 that resulted in 
chlorophyll-a concentrations exceeding the state water quality standard (Figure 5).  This algal bloom 
occurrence has been observed the first year in other lakes that have recently had alum treatments.  
William James has observed rare algal blooms the first year after the alum treatments for Half Moon 
Lake and Cedar Lake in Wisconsin, and speculated that the algal species (otherwise rare in community 
assemblage) temporarily exploits a niche and dominates the first year after treatment.  The rare algal 
specie appears to be a one-time occurrence that disappears the following year.  The Three Rivers Park 
District will continue to monitor the water quality in-lake response to the second alum treatment that is 
planned for the summer of 2019.   

 

item 09b1)



 

Figure 4:  Hypolimnetic vertical variations in total phosphorus and soluble reactive phosphorus 
concentrations for station 1 and 2 that occurred prior to and after the alum treatment in September of 
2017.    

 

item 09b1)



 

 

Figure 5:  Fish Lake seasonal changes in total phosphorus, chlorophyll-a, and secchi depth for 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

item 09b1)



 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
 

Effectiveness of Late Summer Aluminum Sulfate 
Application to Fish Lake, MN 

Research Proposal 

 
 
 

item 09b1)



1 
 

 

 Effectiveness of Late Summer 
Aluminum Sulfate Application to 

Fish Lake, MN 
 

 
PROPOSAL OF RESEARCH 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13 August, 2017 
 

University of Wisconsin - Stout 
Sustainability Sciences Institute 

Center for Limnological Research and Rehabilitation 
Menomonie, Wisconsin 54751 

715-338-4395 
jamesw@uwstout.edu 

 
 
 
 
 

 

item 09b1)



2 
 

 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND.  
 
Application of Al salts has been an effective management strategy for controlling internal P 

loading in lakes (Cooke et al. 2005, Huser et al. 2016). However, P binding efficiency on the 

Al(OH)3 floc and overall longevity depends to a large extent on the rapidity of exposure to P 

after Al(OH)3 formation. de Vicente et al. (2008a) found that Al binding efficiency for P can 

decrease by up to 75% within a short period of time (< 30 d) if not exposed to P, due to 

polymerization into a more ordered crystalline structure. Since newly formed Al flocs are 

generally less dense than surficial sediment, they can typically settle on top rather than sink or 

mix into sediment after application, resulting in much slower exposure to P via upward diffusion 

(James 2017). Under this scenario, polymerization leads to greatly decreased Al floc binding 

efficiency for P and shortened longevity. Thus, application during the late summer peak in 

hypolimnetic P accumulation can promote immediate exposure of the settling Al floc to soluble 

P for rapid binding and maintenance of a much higher P adsorption capacity after deposition 

onto the sediment surface. 

 

2.0 PURPOSE.   
 

Historically, late summer Al application have typically been avoided due to concerns over 

unnecessarily filling binding sites with hypolimnetic P rather than sediment mobile P. There is 

little information on the effectiveness of this application strategy in controlling internal P 

loading. However, findings over the last decade have suggested rapid exposure to and binding of 

P is desirable to both reduce polymerization and maintain higher P binding efficiency after 

deposition. Late summer application of Al to Fish Lake during peak hypolimnetic P 

accumulation provides an opportunity to examine the extent of P binding onto the Al floc during 

and after a late summer alum treatment to Fish Lake. The objectives of these investigations are to 

specifically: 

 

item 09b1)



3 
 

1. determine the Al:P binding ratio of newly-formed Al(OH)3 that has been exposed to peak 

hypolimnetic P using sediment traps deployed shortly before Al application 

2. examine the extent of hypolimnetic P removal as a result of the Al application, and 

3. monitor vertical variations total Al, mobile P, and Al-bound P in the sediment column 

and rates of P release from sediment several months after treatment. 

 

3.0 SCOPE OF WORK.   
 
Task 1. Al:P binding ratio in the newly-formed Al floc 
 
Sediment traps will be deployed above the sediment surface in the deep south basin and central 

basin of Fish Lake shortly before the start of Al application. The traps will be secured to a 

plastic-coated steel cable, anchored with concrete block, and buoyed at the surface. 

 

 
 
Traps will be collected ~ 1-2 weeks after application and Al floc deposition. The contents will be 

analyzed for dry mass, total Al, Al-bound P, and the Al:P binding ratio. Results from this task 

will be compared with changes in the hypolimnetic SRP vertical profile before and after the Al 

application (see Task 2) to estimate the mass of hypolimnetic P sequestered by the settling Al 

floc. 

 

 

item 09b1)



4 
 

Task 2. Changes in the hypolimnetic soluble reactive P (i.e., SRP or ortho-P) 
 
Vertical variations in in situ variables (temperature and dissolved oxygen) and hypolimnetic SRP 

will be collected at 1-m intervals the 2 sediment trap stations during trap deployment and 

retrieval. In situ measurements will be collected using a YSI 6600 data sonde calibrated against 

Winkler titrations. Samples for SRP will be collected using a peristaltic pump and tygon tubing. 

Water samples will be field-filtered under anoxic conditions using a 60-cc syringe and 0.45 um 

syringe filter. Filtered samples will be stored on ice and analyzed using standard methods 

(APHA 2016) within 24 hours. Changes in the mass of SRP as a result of Al application will be 

calculated in conjunction with Task 1 to estimate the Al:P binding ratio and Al-bound P 

sequestered as a result of treatment. 

 

Task 3. Rates of diffusive P flux under anaerobic conditions  
 

Intact replicate (duplicates) sediment cores will be collected from the two established stations in 

Fish Lake for the determination of rates of P release from sediment under controlled laboratory 

conditions. Sampling will occur during the summer 2018, nearly one year after the initial Al 

application, to quantify the initial Al treatment effectiveness in controlling anaerobic diffusive P 

flux. All cores will be carefully drained of overlying water in the laboratory and the upper 10 cm 

of sediment will be transferred intact to a smaller acrylic core liner (6.5-cm dia and 20-cm ht) 

using a core remover tool. Surface water collected from each lake will be filtered through a glass 

fiber filter (Gelman A-E), with 300 mL then siphoned onto the sediment contained in the small 

acrylic core liner without causing sediment resuspension. They will be placed in a darkened 

environmental chamber and incubated at a constant temperature to reflect summer conditions. 

The oxidation-reduction environment in the overlying water will be controlled by gently 

bubbling air (oxic) or nitrogen (anoxic) through an air stone placed just above the sediment 

surface in each system. Bubbling action will insure complete mixing of the water column but not 

disrupt the sediment. For each station, duplicate cores will be subjected to oxic conditions and 

additional duplicate cores will be subjected to anoxic conditions.  

 

     Water samples for soluble reactive P will be collected from the center of each system using an 

acid-washed syringe and filtered through a 0.45 μm membrane syringe filter. The water volume 

item 09b1)



5 
 

removed from each system during sampling will be replaced by addition of filtered lake water 

preadjusted to the proper oxidation-reduction condition. These volumes are accurately measured 

for determination of dilution effects. Soluble reactive P is measured colorimetrically using the 

ascorbic acid method (APHA 2005). Rates of P release from the sediment (mg m-2 d-1) are 

calculated as the linear change in mass in the overlying water divided by time (days) and the area 

(m2) of the incubation core liner. Regression analysis is used to estimate rates over the linear 

portion of the data. 

 

Task 4. Sediment chemistry 

 

Additional sediment cores collected at the two stations in 2018 will be sectioned vertically over 

the upper 20-cm layer to evaluate variations in sediment physical-textural and chemical 

characteristics. These cores will be sectioned at 1-cm intervals over the first 6 cm and at 2-cm 

intervals below that sediment depth.  

 

     A known volume of sediment will b dried at 105 oC for determination of moisture content, 

wet and dry bulk density, and burned at 550 oC for determination of loss-on-ignition organic 

matter content (Avnimelech et al. 2001, Håkanson and Jansson 2002; Table 2).  Phosphorus 

fractionation will be conducted according to Hieltjes and Lijklema (1980), Psenner and Puckso 

(1988), and Nürnberg (1988) for the determination of ammonium-chloride-extractable P 

(loosely-bound P), bicarbonate-dithionite-extractable P (i.e., iron-bound P), and sodium 

hydroxide-extractable P (i.e., aluminum-bound P). A subsample of the sodium hydroxide extract 

will be digested with potassium persulfate to determine nonreactive sodium hydroxide-

extractable P (Psenner and Puckso 1988). Labile organic P is calculated as the difference 

between reactive and nonreactive sodium hydroxide-extractable P. Additional sediment will be 

sent to Pace Analytical Services, Inc. (1800 Elm Street SE, Minneapolis, MN 55414) for analysis 

of total Al.   

 

Sediment chemistry information will be used to estimate the Al:P binding ratio in the Al floc and 

the location of the Al floc in relation to the original sediment surface. 

 

item 09b1)



6 
 

 

Task 5. Reporting 

 

A summary report containing figures and tables that Task 1 and 2 will be provided in February, 

2018. A comprehensive report that includes Task 3 and 4 will be provided at the end of the study 

in December, 2018.  

item 09b1)



7 
 

 

Ta
sk

Y
ea

r
U

ni
t

E
ac

h
Q

ua
nt

ity
To

ta
l

1
20

17
S

ed
im

en
t T

ra
ps

Fi
el

d 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t
pe

r h
ou

r
$1

00
4

$4
00

To
ta

l A
l

pe
r s

am
pl

e
$5

5
2

$1
10

A
l-b

ou
nd

 P
pe

r s
am

pl
e

$5
5

2
$1

10

2
20

17
W

at
er

 C
ol

um
n

S
R

P
pe

r s
am

pl
e

$1
5.

50
20

$3
10

4
20

18
Te

xt
ur

al
 a

nd
 P

hy
si

ca
l C

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s
M

oi
st

ur
e 

C
on

te
nt

-B
ul

k 
D

en
si

ty
pe

r s
ed

im
en

t s
ec

tio
n

$1
5

16
$2

40

Lo
ss

-o
n-

ig
ni

tio
n 

O
rg

an
ic

 M
at

te
r

pe
r s

ed
im

en
t s

ec
tio

n
$1

5
16

$2
40

4
20

18
S

ed
im

en
t T

ot
al

 M
et

al
s

To
ta

l A
l

pe
r s

ed
im

en
t s

ec
tio

n
$5

5
16

$8
80

4
20

18
S

ed
im

en
t P

ho
sp

ho
ru

s 
E

xt
ra

ct
io

ns
B

io
lo

gi
ca

lly
-la

bi
le

 P
ho

sp
ho

ru
s

pe
r s

ed
im

en
t s

ec
tio

n
$1

35
16

$2
,1

60

3
20

18
S

ed
im

en
t F

lu
x 

or
 In

te
rn

al
 L

oa
di

ng
In

cu
ba

tio
n 

fo
r r

at
es

 o
f s

ol
ub

le
 re

ac
tiv

e 
P

 re
le

as
e

pe
r 1

0 
cm

 c
or

e
$5

40
4

$2
,1

60

5
20

17
R

ep
or

tin
g

pe
r h

ou
r

$1
00

8
$8

00

5
20

18
R

ep
or

tin
g

pe
r h

ou
r

$1
00

8
$8

00

To
ta

l 
20

17
$1

,7
30

To
ta

l 
20

18
$6

,4
80

S
ed

im
en

t C
he

m
is

try
 P

ric
e 

Li
st

V
ar

ia
bl

e
C

os
t

item 09b1)



8 
  

item 09b1)



 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
 

Effectiveness of a Late Summer Aluminum Sulfate 
Application in Binding Hypolimnetic Phosphorus in 

Fish Lake, MN 

Phase 1  

Interim Report 

 
 
 

item 09b1)



1 
 

 

 Effectiveness of a Late-Summer 
Aluminum Sulfate Application in 

Binding Hypolimnetic Phosphorus in  
Fish Lake, MN: Phase 1 Interim report 

  

 
Sediment trap deployment in Fish Lake, Minnesota 

 
10 April, 2018 

 
University of Wisconsin - Stout 
Sustainability Sciences Institute Discovery Center 
Center for Limnological Research and Rehabilitation 
Menomonie, Wisconsin 54751 
715-338-4395 
jamesw@uwstout.edu 

 
 

item 09b1)



2 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Application of Al salts has been an effective management strategy for controlling internal 

phosphorus (P) loading in lakes (Cooke et al. 2005, Huser et al. 2016). However, P binding 

efficiency and capacity on the Al(OH)3 floc depend to a large extent on the rapidity of exposure 

to P after Al(OH)3 formation. Berkowitz et al (2006) and de Vicente et al. (2008a) found that Al 

binding efficiency for P can decrease by up to 75% within a short period of time (< 30 d) if not 

exposed to P, due to polymerization into a more ordered crystalline structure and increased 

tortuosity (diffusive path length). Since newly formed Al flocs are generally less dense than 

surficial sediment, they can typically settle on top rather than sink or mix into sediment after 

application, resulting in much slower exposure to P via upward diffusion (James 2017). Under 

this scenario, polymerization leads to greatly decreased Al floc binding sites for P and shortened 

longevity. Thus, application during the late summer peak in hypolimnetic P accumulation can 

promote immediate exposure of the settling Al floc to soluble P for rapid binding and 

maintenance of a much higher P adsorption capacity after deposition onto the sediment surface. 

 

An alum dosage of at least 80 g/m2 was proposed to control internal P loading in Fish Lake, MN. 

In addition, the dosage was split into two 40 g/m2 applications: the first application occurred in 

early fall 2017 (18 September) during peak anoxia and soluble P accumulation in the 

hypolimnion and the second application to occur in 2019. 

 

PURPOSE 

 

Historically, late summer Al application have typically been avoided due to concerns over 

unnecessarily filling binding sites with hypolimnetic P rather than sediment mobile P. There is 

little information on the effectiveness of this application strategy in controlling internal P loading 

and improving the overall Al:P binding ratio. However, findings over the last decade have 

suggested rapid exposure to and binding of P is desirable to both reduce polymerization and 

maintain higher P binding efficiency after deposition. Late summer application of Al to Fish 

Lake during peak hypolimnetic P accumulation provides an opportunity to examine the extent of 

item 09b1)



3 
 

P binding onto the Al floc during and after a late summer alum treatment to Fish Lake. The 

objectives of these investigations were to specifically: 

 

1. determine the Al:P binding ratio of newly-formed Al(OH)3 that has been exposed to peak 

hypolimnetic P from sediment traps deployed shortly before Al application, 

2. examine the extent of hypolimnetic P removal as a result of the 40 g/m2 Al application, 

and, 

3. monitor vertical variations total Al, mobile P, and Al-bound P in the sediment column 

and rates of P release from sediment approximately one year after the first treatment. 

 

This first interim report will address objectives 1 and 2 above. 

 

METHODS   

 
Al:P binding ratio in the newly-formed Al floc 
 
Sediment traps were deployed ~ 2-m above the sediment surface in the deep south basin and 

central basin of Fish Lake one day before the start of Al application which occurred on 18 

September, 2017 (Fig. 1). The traps were secured to a plastic-coated steel cable, anchored with a  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fig. 1. Bathymetric map showing station locations for vertical water 

chemistry profiles and sediment trap deployment. 

item 09b1)



4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

concrete block and buoyed at the surface (Fig. 2). 

 
Trap contents were emptied on day 11 and day 25 after application and Al floc deposition (Fig. 

3). In the laboratory, ~ 90% of the overlying water was decanted and the remaining slurry was  

 
Fig. 3. Trap material in laboratory settling columns. 

 

dried at 105 C in a crucible, then weighted to the nearest 1 mg for determination of total dry 

mass deposition. Dried slurry was then ground with a mortar and pestle for analysis. Phosphorus 

bound to aluminum (Al) was extracted in a 1 N NaOH solution as modified by Psenner and 

Puckso (1988). For Al-bound P determination, 25 mL of 1 N NaOH were added to a 50 mL 

centrifuge tube containing ~ 25 mg of dried sample and gently shaken for 24 h. The sample was 

Fig. 2. Schematic depicting the sediment trap deployment system. 

item 09b1)



5 
 

then centrifuged, digested with potassium persulfate, and analyzed for total P using the ascorbic 

acid method (APHA 2011). Another subsample was sent to the University of Minnesota 

Research Analytical Laboratory for analysis of total Al using ICP-AES after microwave-assisted 

acid digestion. Deposition rates (mg/m2 d) were calculated as [concentration (mg/g) ∙ total dry 

mass (g)] ÷ [trap opening area (m2) ∙ deployment days (d)]. The Al:P ratio was estimated as Al ÷ 

aluminum-bound P (Al:P binding ratio). 

 

In situ changes in phosphorus mass during alum application 
 
 

Vertical variations in in situ variables (temperature and dissolved oxygen) and hypolimnetic total 

P and SRP were collected at 1-m intervals at the two sediment trap stations during trap 

deployment (17 September) and the first retrieval data (28 September). In situ measurements 

were collected using a YSI 6600 data sonde calibrated against Winkler titrations. Samples for 

total P and SRP were collected using a peristaltic pump and tygon tubing. Water samples for 

SRP analysis were field-filtered under anoxic conditions using a 60-cc syringe and 0.45 um 

syringe filter. Samples were stored on ice and analyzed using the ascorbic acid method (APHA 

2011) within 24 hours. Total P was digested with potassium persulfate according to APHA 

(2011).  

 

Changes in the mass of total P and SRP (g/m2) as a result of Al application were calculated as: 

 

 

  

 

Where C = concentration (mg/L or g/m3) at depth z (m) and I = depth interval (m). 

 
RESULTS AND INTERPRETATION 
 

One day before Al application (17 September, 2017), both basins were strongly stratified (Fig. 

4). Although the hypolimnion was located below ~ 9 m, anoxia extended to near the base of the 

item 09b1)



6 
 

epilimnion at ~ the 6-m depth (Fig. 5). Density stratification was still strong ~ 10 days after Al 

application with anoxic conditions between the lake bottom and ~ 7 m (Fig. 4 and 5).  

 
Fig. 4. Vertical variations in temperature at station 1 and 2 on various dates in 2017. 

 

 

Fig. 5. Vertical variations in dissolved oxygen at station (St) 1 and 2 on various dates in 2017. 

 

Total P and SRP concentrations increased with increasing depth between ~ 7 m (i.e., within the 

metalimnion) and the sediment-water interface at each station one day before alum application 

item 09b1)



7 
 

(Fig. 6). In particular, total P exceeded 1 mg/L while SRP was > 0.5 mg/L immediately above 

the sediment surface on 17 September, 2017. In addition, hypolimnetic SRP accounted for 76% 

to 91% of the total P. 

 

Alum application during the week of 18-22 

September resulted in declines in 

hypolimnetic P by 28 September (Fig. 6). 

Additional information collected by Three 

Rivers Park District indicated that 

deposition of the Al floc and binding of 

hypolimnetic P was probably complete by 

22 September (Fig. 7). Thus, ~ 33% (St. 1) 

to 41% (St. 2) of the total P and 29% (St. 

1) to 44% (St. 2) of the SRP was bound by 

the Al floc during deposition through the 

hypolimnion.  

 

P removed from the hypolimnion during 

Al application ranged between 1.91 g/m2 

and 1.61 g/m2 total P and ~ 1.39 g/m2 SRP 

at station 1 and 2, respectively (Fig. 6). Al-

bound P (i.e., 1 N NaOH-extractable P) 

collected in sediment traps accounted for most of the hypolimnetic SRP (79% to 88%) and ~ 

60% to 80% of the hypolimnetic total P (Fig. 8).  

 

The total Al concentration in the traps (17 September to 13 October) was 26.02 g/m2 (± 2.15 SD) 

at station 1 and 31.36 g/m2 (± 0.20 SD) at station 2 (Fig. 8). Thus, traps accounted for ~ 65% to 

78% of the target Al concentration to each basin (i.e., 40 g/m2). Reasons for the differences are 

not known but could be attributed to incomplete deposition of micro Al flocs at the time of trap 

retrieval. Very fine Al(OH)3 colloids may have not settled within the 24-d period covered by trap 

deployment. Independent analysis of Al in sediment cores (scheduled for the summer of 2018) 

Fig. 6. Vertical variations in total phosphorus (P) and 
soluble reactive P (SRP) at station 1 and 2 on various 
dates in 2017. Samples were analyzed at the University of 
Wisconsin – Stout. 

item 09b1)



8 
 

will be used to estimate Al concentration nearly 

one year after the initial application. The Al:P 

binding ratio (i.e., stoichiometric mass ratio of Al 

associated with one part P) in the trap material 

was ~ 20:1 mass or 23:1 molar at both stations 

(Fig. 8).  

 

Al:P binding ratios reported in the literature vary 

widely from ~ 2:1 to > 100:1 molar, depending on 

time since application. The ratio tends to decline 

as the Al floc continues to bind P at the sediment 

interface and can be < 15:1 several years after 

treatment (Rydin et al. 2000, Reitzel et al. 2005, 

Huser et al. 2011, Huser 2012). Additions of low 

Al doses relative to sediment mobile P 

concentration also tend to result in low Al:P 

ratios (Lewandowski et al. 2003). Aging of the 

Al floc in the absence of bound P can result in crystallization and loss of binding efficiency and 

available binding sites for P (Berkowitz et al. 2006, de Vicente et al. 2008a).  

 

Although data are very limited, Al:P ratios tend to be much higher (> 100:1) for freshly formed 

amorphous flocs, due to lack of exposure to hypolimnetic P (Dugolpolski et al. 2008). For 

instance, application of Al to Half Moon Lake, Wisconsin, coincided with an Al:P ratio of ~ 200-

300:1 in sediment trap material (James unpublished, James 2017). The high ratio was due to low 

SRP concentrations in the lake water column during application.  

 

Application of Al during the fall period and floc deposition through the P-rich hypolimnion 

resulted in considerable binding of internal P loads and a relatively low Al:P ratio of 23:1 molar. 

Perhaps application of a lower dose relative to hypolimnetic P would have resulted in an even 

lower Al:P ratio (Huser 2017). De Vicente et al. (2008b) found that freshly formed Al flocs 

exposed to SRP maintained adsorption capacity for longer periods of time (> 6 months) and  

Fig. 7. Vertical variations in total phosphorus (P) 
and soluble reactive P (SRP) at station 1 on 
various dates in 2017. Samples were analyzed at 
the Three Rivers Park District Laboratory. 

item 09b1)



9 
 

 

reduced crystallization. Our goal with the Fish Lake treatment was to maintain high P binding 

efficiency of the Al floc by exposing it to high concentrations of hypolimnetic SRP immediately 

after application. Effectiveness of this application strategy will be evaluated in 2018. 

 

REFERENCES  

APHA (American Public Health Association). 20011. Standard methods for the examination of water and 
wastewater. 22st ed. Washington (DC). 

Berkowitz J, Anderson MA, Amrhein C. 2006. Influence of aging on phosphorus sorption to alum floc in lake water. 
Wat Res 40:911-916. 

Cooke GD, Welch EB, Peterson SA, Nichols SA. 2005. Restoration and management of lakes and reservoirs. 3rd ed. 
Boca Raton (FL): CRC Press. 

de Vicente I, Jensen HS, Andersen FØ. 2008a. Factors affecting phosphate adsorption to aluminum in lake water: 
Implications for lake restoration. Sci Total Environ 389:29-36. 

de Vicente I, Huang P, Andersen FØ, Jensen HS. 2008b. Phosphate adsorption by fresh and aged aluminum 
hydroxide. Consequences for lake restoration. Environ Sci Technol 42:6650-6655. 

Dugopolski RA, Rydin E, Brett MT. 2008. Short-term effects of buffered alum treatment on Green Lake sediment 
phosphorus speciation. Lake Reserv Manage. 24:181-189. 

Huser BJ. 2012. Variability in phosphorus binding by aluminum in alum treated lakes explained by lake morphology 
and aluminum dose. Wat Res 46:4697-4704. 

Huser BJ, Egemose S, Harper H, Hupfer M, Jensen H, Pilgrim KM, Reitzel K, Rydin E, Futter M. 2016. Longevity 
and effectiveness of aluminum addition to reduce sediment phosphorus release and restore lake water 
quality. Wat Res 97:122-132. 

Huser BJ. 2017. Aluminum application to restore water quality in eutrophic lakes: maximizing binding efficiency 
between aluminum and phosphorus. Lake Reserv Manage 33:143-151. 

James WF. 2017. Phosphorus binding dynamics in the aluminum floc layer of Half Moon Lake, Wisconsin. Lake 
Reserv Manage 33:130-142. 

Fig. 8. A comparison of phosphorus deposition into sediment traps (1 N NaOH extraction) versus loss of total 
phosphorus (P) and soluble reactive P (SRP) from the water column (left panel), total aluminum (Al) deposition 
(middle panel), and the Al:P binding ratio (i.e., total Al ÷ NaOH-extractable P) of sediment trap contents at 
station 1 and 2 in Fish Lake, MN. Horizontal bar in middle panel denotes the target Al dose. 

item 09b1)



10 
 

Lewandowski J, Schauser I, Hupfer M. 2003. Long term effects of phosphorus precipitations with alum in 
hypereutrophic Lake Süsser See (Germany). Wat Res 37:3194-3204. 

Psenner R, Puckso R. 1988. Phosphorus fractionation: Advantages and limits of the method for the study of 
sediment P origins and interactions. Arch Hydrobiol Biel Erg Limnol 30:43-59. 

Reitzel K, Hansen J, Jensen HS, Andersen FØ, Hansen KS. 2003. Testing aluminum addition as a tool for lake 
restoration in shallow eutrophic Lake Sønderby, Denmark. Hydrobiologia 506-509:781-787. 

Rydin E, Huser B, Welch EB. 2000. Amount of phosphorus inactivated by alum treatments in Washington Lakes. 
Limnol Oceanogr 45:226-230. 

item 09b1)



 

 
APPENDIX C 

 
 

Effectiveness of a Late Summer Aluminum Sulfate 
Application in Binding Hypolimnetic Phosphorus in 

Fish Lake, MN 

Phase 2  

Interim Report 

 
 
 

item 09b1)



1 
 

 

 Effectiveness of a Late-Summer 
Aluminum Sulfate Application in 

Binding Hypolimnetic Phosphorus in  
Fish Lake, MN: Phase 2 Interim report 

 

 
Sediment phosphorus diffusive flux incubation systems with visible surface alum floc 

 
20 January, 2019 

 
University of Wisconsin - Stout 
Sustainability Sciences Institute Discovery Center 
Center for Limnological Research and Rehabilitation 
Menomonie, Wisconsin 54751 
715-338-4395 
jamesw@uwstout.edu 

 
 
 

item 09b1)



2 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
     Application of Al salts has been an effective management strategy for controlling internal 

phosphorus (P) loading in lakes (Cooke et al. 2005, Huser et al. 2016). However, P binding 

efficiency and capacity on the Al(OH)3 floc depend to a large extent on the rapidity of exposure 

to P after Al(OH)3 formation. Berkowitz et al (2006) and de Vicente et al. (2008a) found that Al 

binding efficiency for P can decrease by up to 75% within a short period of time (< 30 d) if not 

exposed to P, due to polymerization into a more ordered crystalline structure and increased 

tortuosity (diffusive path length). Since newly formed Al flocs are generally less dense than 

surficial sediment, they can typically settle on top rather than sink or mix into sediment after 

application, resulting in much slower exposure to P via upward diffusion (James 2017). Under 

this scenario, polymerization leads to greatly decreased Al floc binding sites for P and shortened 

longevity. Thus, application during the late summer peak in hypolimnetic P accumulation can 

promote immediate exposure of the settling Al floc to soluble P for rapid binding and 

maintenance of a much higher P adsorption capacity after deposition onto the sediment surface. 

 

     An alum dosage of at least 80 g/m2 was proposed to control internal P loading in Fish Lake, 

MN. In addition, the dosage was split into two 40 g/m2 applications: the first application 

occurred in early fall 2017 (18 September) during peak anoxia and soluble P accumulation in the 

hypolimnion and the second application to occur in 2019. 

 

PURPOSE 

 

     Historically, late summer Al application have typically been avoided due to concerns over 

unnecessarily filling binding sites with hypolimnetic P rather than sediment mobile P. There is 

little information on the effectiveness of this application strategy in controlling internal P loading 

and improving the overall Al:P binding ratio. However, findings over the last decade have 

suggested rapid exposure to and binding of P is desirable to both reduce polymerization and 

maintain higher P binding efficiency after deposition. Late summer application of Al to Fish 

Lake during peak hypolimnetic P accumulation provides an opportunity to examine the extent of 

item 09b1)



3 
 

P binding onto the Al floc during and after a late summer alum treatment to Fish Lake. The 

objectives of these investigations were to specifically: 

 

1. determine the Al:P binding ratio of newly-formed Al(OH)3 that has been exposed to peak 

hypolimnetic P from sediment traps deployed shortly before Al application, 

2. examine the extent of hypolimnetic P removal as a result of the 40 g/m2 Al application, 

and, 

3. monitor vertical variations total Al, mobile P, and Al-bound P in the sediment column 

and rates of P release from sediment approximately one year after the first treatment. 

 

This second interim report will address objectives 2 and 3 above. 

 

METHODS   

 
Sediment diffusive phosphorus flux under anaerobic conditions 
 

Three intact sediment cores were collected from 

stations 1 and 2, located in the deep south and central 

basins, for the determination of rates of diffusive P fux 

from sediment under controlled laboratory conditions 

(Fig. 1). Cores were carefully drained of overlying 

water in the laboratory and the upper 10 cm of 

sediment was transferred intact to a smaller acrylic 

core liner (6.5-cm dia and 20-cm ht) using a core 

remover tool. Surface water collected from each lake 

was filtered through a glass fiber filter (Gelman A-E), 

with 300 mL then siphoned onto the sediment 

contained in the small acrylic core liner without 

causing sediment resuspension. They were placed in a 

darkened environmental chamber and incubated at a 

constant temperature of ~12 oC to reflect summer 

hypolimnetic conditions. The oxidation-reduction environment in the overlying water was 

Fig. 1. Bathymetric map showing station 
locations for vertical water chemistry 
profiles and sediment core collection. 

item 09b1)



4 
 

controlled by gently bubbling nitrogen (anaerobic with 300 ppm CO2 to maintain pH) through an 

air stone placed just above the sediment surface in each system. Bubbling action insured 

complete mixing of the water column but did not disrupt the sediment.  

 

     Water samples for soluble reactive P were collected from the center of each system using an 

acid-washed syringe and filtered through a 0.45 μm membrane syringe filter. The water volume 

removed from each system during sampling was replaced by addition of filtered lake water 

preadjusted to the proper oxidation-reduction condition. These volumes were accurately 

measured for determination of dilution effects. Soluble reactive P was measured colorimetrically 

using the ascorbic acid method (APHA 2011). Rates of diffusive P flux from the sediment 

(mg/m2 d) were calculated as the linear change in mass in the overlying water divided by time 

(days) and the area (m2) of the incubation core liner. Regression analysis was used to estimate 

rates over the linear portion of the data.  

 

Sediment chemistry 

 

     Additional sediment cores collected at station 1 and 2 for analysis of sediment chemistry were 

sectioned at 1-cm intervals over the upper 6 cm, and at 2 to 2.5-cm intervals thereafter.  

Subsamples were dried at 105 C to a constant weight and burned at 550 oC for determination of 

moisture content, sediment density, and organic matter content (Håkanson 1977). Phosphorus 

fractionation were conducted according to Hieltjes and Lijklema (1980), Psenner and Puckso 

(1988), and Nürnberg (1988) for the determination of ammonium-chloride-extractable P (1 M 

NH4Cl; loosely-bound P), bicarbonate-dithionite-extractable P (0.11 M BD; iron-bound P), and 

sodium hydroxide-extractable P (1 N NaOH; aluminum-bound P). Dried and ground subsamples 

were sent to the University of Minnesota Research Analytical Laboratory for analysis of total Al 

using ICP-OES after microwave-assisted acid digestion.  

 

Water chemistry 
 

     Vertical variations in in situ variables (temperature and dissolved oxygen) and total P and 

SRP were collected at 1-m intervals at the 2 stations on 8 August, 2018. In situ measurements 

item 09b1)



5 
 

were collected using a YSI 6600 data sonde calibrated against Winkler titrations. Samples for 

total P and SRP were collected using a peristaltic pump and tygon tubing. Water samples for 

SRP analysis were field-filtered under anoxic conditions using a 60-cc syringe and 0.45 um 

syringe filter. Samples were stored on ice and analyzed using the ascorbic acid method (APHA 

2011) within 24 hours. Total P was digested with potassium persulfate according to APHA 

(2011). Changes in the mass of total P and SRP (g/m2) as a result of Al application were 

calculated as: 

 

 

  

 

Where C = concentration (mg/L or g/m3) at depth z (m) and I = depth interval (m). 

 
RESULTS AND INTERPRETATION 
 

     Rates of diffusive P flux under anaerobic conditions were 

low ~ 1 year after the late summer 2017 alum treatment at 

means of ~ 0.7 to 0.8 mg/m2 d (Table 1). Rates varied 

between 0.22 mg/m2 d and 1.61 mg/m2 d among replicates. 

While P mass accumulation was relatively low in systems 

and mean concentrations at the end of the incubation period 

were only ~ 0.065 mg/L, one replicate from each station 

exhibited notably higher diffusive P flux at > 1 mg/m2 d 

compared to the others (Fig. 1). Overall, mean diffusive P 

flux < 1 mg/m2 d suggested the 40 g/m2 alum treatment in 2017 was effective in suppressing 

internal P loading in Fish Lake in 2018. 

 

      

 
 

 

Statistic Station 1 Station 2

(mg/m2 d) (mg/m2 d)

Rep 1 0.46 0.22

Rep 2 1.53 1.61

Rep 3 0.36 0.37

Mean 0.78 0.73

STDERR 0.38 0.44

Table 1. Rates of diffusive phosphorus flux 
under anaerobic conditions measured ~ 10.8 
months after 40 g/m2 alum treatment.

item 09b1)



6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     In the vertical sediment column, total Al was greatest at the surface and declined in 

concentration over the upper 3 cm to background levels, suggesting the Al floc layer was located 

Fig. 2. Changes in soluble reactive phosphorus mass (upper panels) and concentration (lower panels) in the 
overlying water column under anaerobic conditions versus time for sediment cores collected in Fish Lake ~ 1 y 
after alum treatment. 

Months after Al 
application

Al        
(g/m2)

Al-bound P 
(g/m2)

Al:P ratio Al        
(g/m2)

Al-bound P 
(g/m2)

Al:P ratio

0.8 months1 26 1.35 19.3 31.4 1.48 21.2

10.8 months2 32.4 2.07 15.7 30.6 1.71 17.9

Station 1 Station 2

Table 2. Area-weighted concentrations of Al, Al-bound P, and the Al:P ratio at station 1 and 2 shortly after  (0.8 months) and nearly 
1 year ( 10.8 months) after alum application to Fish Lake (September, 2017). 

1from sediment trap material collected shortly after alum application (James 2017)
2from sediment cores collected nearly 1 year after alum application (this study)

item 09b1)



7 
 

on top of the original sediment surface (Fig. 

3). Al concentrations exceeded 50 mg/g in 

the upper 1-cm sediment layer compared to 

background concentrations < 10 mg/g at 

sediment depths deeper than 3 to 4 cm. The 

Al concentration over the upper 3 cm was ~ 

30 g/m2 at both stations, similar to the 

concentration measured in the sediment traps 

shortly after Al application (Table 2 and 

James 2018). Aluminum-bound P exhibited 

concentration maxima at the sediment 

surface in conjunction with peak sediment 

Al, indicating considerable P was bound to 

the Al floc (Fig. 3). Aluminum-bound P 

concentrations in the Al floc layer (i.e., upper 

3 cm) were 2.07 g/m2 at station 1 and 1.71 

g/m2 at station 2 (Table 2). 

 

     Interestingly, the aluminum-bound P 

concentration increased in the Al floc layer 

between September 2017 and August 2018, 

suggesting continued P binding on the Al floc over time (Table 2, Fig. 4). Aluminum-bound P in 

August 2018 represented a 53 and 16% increase over concentrations measured in sediment trap 

material shortly after Al application in September 2017. As a result, the Al:P ratio declined from 

an initial ~ 19:1 to ~ 16:1 at station 1 and from an initial 21:1 to 18:1 at station 2 in ~ 1 year. 

Declining Al:P ratios suggested that binding sites were continuing to be efficiently filled via P 

diffusing from underlying sediments. In addition, low Al:P ratios were directly attributed to 

application and immediate sequestration of late summer peak P concentrations in the anoxic 

hypolimnion. In contrast, James (2017) reported a much higher Al:P binding ratio (36:1) in the 

Al floc of Half Moon Lake ~ 3 years after application. In that research, exposure to and binding 

Fig. 3. Vertical variations in aluminum-bound 
phosphorus (P, upper panels) and sediment total 
aluminum (lower panels) concentrations for sediment 
cores collected at station 1 and 2 in Fish Lake in 
August 2018 (~ 1 year after 40 g/m2 alum treatment).  

item 09b1)



8 
 

of P by the Al floc occurred via much slower upward 

diffusion, which probably resulted in Al(OH)3 

crystallization, loss of binding sites, and P binding 

inefficiency.  

 

      Al:P binding ratios reported in the literature vary widely 

from ~ 2:1 to > 100:1 molar, depending on time since 

application. The ratio tends to decline as the Al floc 

continues to bind P at the sediment interface and can be < 

15:1 several years after treatment (Rydin et al. 2000, Reitzel 

et al. 2005, Huser et al. 2011, Huser 2012). Additions of low 

Al doses relative to sediment mobile P concentration also 

tend to result in low Al:P ratios (Lewandowski et al. 2003, 

Huser 2017). Aging of the Al floc in the absence of bound P 

can result in crystallization and loss of binding efficiency 

and available binding sites for P (Berkowitz et al. 2006, de 

Vicente et al. 2008a).  

Fig. 4. Changes in the aluminum-
bound phosphorus (Al-bound P) and 
the Al:Al-bound P ratio as a function 
of time after initial alum application. 
Concentrations determined 0.8 
months after treatment were derived 
from sediment trap material while 
those concentrations measured 10.8 
months after treatment came from 
sediment core material. 

item 09b1)



9 
 

    

     Although data are very limited, Al:P ratios tend to be 

much higher (> 100:1) for freshly formed amorphous 

flocs, due to lack of exposure to hypolimnetic P 

(Dugolpolski et al. 2008). For instance, application of Al 

to Half Moon Lake, Wisconsin, coincided with an Al:P 

ratio of ~ 200-300:1 in sediment trap material (James 

unpublished, James 2017). The high ratio was due to low 

SRP concentrations in the lake water column during 

application.  

 

      Total P and, in 

particular, SRP 

concentrations 

were very low in 

the hypolimnion 

of Fish Lake in August 2018 compared to the 

pretreatment period of 17 September 2017 (Fig. 5). 

Bottom SRP concentrations were < 0.150 mg/L in August 

2018 compared to > 1.00 mg/L before Al application in 

September 2017.  Declines in area-weighted total P and 

SRP were also pronounced nearly 1 year after Al 

treatment (Fig. 6). For instance, total P declined by ~ 

80% while SRP declined by ~ 90-95% in August 2018 

from pretreatment peaks in September 2017. 

 

     These results further suggested that application of 

alum during the late summer stratified period and floc 

deposition through the P-rich hypolimnion can lead to 

considerable binding of internal P loads, a relatively low Al:P ratio, and suppression of 

hypolimnetic P accumulation. De Vicente et al. (2008b) found that freshly formed Al flocs 

Fig. 5. Vertical variations in total 
phosphorus (P) and soluble reactive P 
(SRP) at station 1 and 2 on various dates 
in 2017-18. Samples were analyzed at 
the University of Wisconsin – Stout. 

Fig. 6. Changes in area-weighted water 
column total phosphorus (P) and soluble 
reactive P (SRP) before (9/17/17) and 
after (9/28/17 and 8/8/18) a 40 g/m2 
alum treatment to Fish Lake.  

Fig. 6. Changes CC in area-weighted water 
l l h h (P) d l bl

item 09b1)



10 
 

exposed to SRP maintained adsorption capacity for longer periods of time (> 6 months) and 

reduced crystallization. Our goal with the Fish Lake treatment was to maintain high P binding 

efficiency of the Al floc by exposing it to high concentrations of hypolimnetic SRP immediately 

after application.  

 

REFERENCES  

APHA (American Public Health Association). 20011. Standard methods for the examination of water and 
wastewater. 22st ed. Washington (DC). 

Berkowitz J, Anderson MA, Amrhein C. 2006. Influence of aging on phosphorus sorption to alum floc in lake water. 
Wat Res 40:911-916. 

Cooke GD, Welch EB, Peterson SA, Nichols SA. 2005. Restoration and management of lakes and reservoirs. 3rd ed. 
Boca Raton (FL): CRC Press. 

de Vicente I, Jensen HS, Andersen FØ. 2008a. Factors affecting phosphate adsorption to aluminum in lake water: 
Implications for lake restoration. Sci Total Environ 389:29-36. 

de Vicente I, Huang P, Andersen FØ, Jensen HS. 2008b. Phosphate adsorption by fresh and aged aluminum 
hydroxide. Consequences for lake restoration. Environ Sci Technol 42:6650-6655. 

Dugopolski RA, Rydin E, Brett MT. 2008. Short-term effects of buffered alum treatment on Green Lake sediment 
phosphorus speciation. Lake Reserv Manage. 24:181-189. 

Huser BJ. 2012. Variability in phosphorus binding by aluminum in alum treated lakes explained by lake morphology 
and aluminum dose. Wat Res 46:4697-4704. 

Huser BJ, Egemose S, Harper H, Hupfer M, Jensen H, Pilgrim KM, Reitzel K, Rydin E, Futter M. 2016. Longevity 
and effectiveness of aluminum addition to reduce sediment phosphorus release and restore lake water 
quality. Wat Res 97:122-132. 

Huser BJ. 2017. Aluminum application to restore water quality in eutrophic lakes: maximizing binding efficiency 
between aluminum and phosphorus. Lake Reserv Manage 33:143-151. 

James WF. 2017. Phosphorus binding dynamics in the aluminum floc layer of Half Moon Lake, Wisconsin. Lake 
Reserv Manage 33:130-142. 

Lewandowski J, Schauser I, Hupfer M. 2003. Long term effects of phosphorus precipitations with alum in 
hypereutrophic Lake Süsser See (Germany). Wat Res 37:3194-3204. 

Psenner R, Puckso R. 1988. Phosphorus fractionation: Advantages and limits of the method for the study of 
sediment P origins and interactions. Arch Hydrobiol Biel Erg Limnol 30:43-59. 

Reitzel K, Hansen J, Jensen HS, Andersen FØ, Hansen KS. 2003. Testing aluminum addition as a tool for lake 
restoration in shallow eutrophic Lake Sønderby, Denmark. Hydrobiologia 506-509:781-787. 

Rydin E, Huser B, Welch EB. 2000. Amount of phosphorus inactivated by alum treatments in Washington Lakes. 
Limnol Oceanogr 45:226-230. 

item 09b1)



 

 
APPENDIX D 

 
 

Fish Lake Water Quality 

Report Card 

 
 
 

item 09b1)



94

494

94

Crowi R
iver

Mississippi RiverDiamond Creek

Rush Creek

Elm Creek

Rush Creek, South Fork

494

Lake and Watershed Characteristics
DNR #

Lake Area

Maximum Depth

Percent Littoral Area
Average Depth

Watershed Area:Lake Area
Impairment Classification

Watershed Area

Classification

Fish Lake Bathymetry

Fish Lake Watershed Map

       1,611 Acres
    27011800

         232 Acres
          32%

        20.5 ft.
          62 ft.
         6.9:1

Excess Nutrients 2008
Deep Lake

0 21 Miles

Elm Creek Watershed

Jurisdictional 
Watershed
Hydrologic 
Watershed

This map is a compilation of data from various
sources and is provided "as is" without warranty
of any representation of accuracy, timeliness, or

completeness. The user acknowledges and accepts
the limitations of the Data, including the fact that the

Data is dynamic and in a constant state of
maintenance, correction, and update.

Water Resource Department
Map Created: 11/24/2017
Revised Date: 12/6/2017

item 09b1)



 

Division of Water 
Resources 

December 2018 

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.50

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

Se
cc

hi
 D

ep
th

 (m
)

Co
nc

en
tr

at
io

n 
(μ

g/
L)

Historic Average (May-Sept) Water Quality Values

Total Phosphorus Chlorophyll a Secchi Disk Transparency

Total Phosphorus Standard (40 ug/L) Chlorophyll a Standard (14 ug/L) Secchi Depth Standard (1.4 m)  
 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.00

20

40

60

80

100

120

Se
cc

hi
 D

ep
th

 (m
)

Co
nc

en
tr

at
io

n 
(μ

g/
L)

Water Quality Data by Sample Date

Total Phosphorus Chlorophyll a Secchi Disk Transparency
Total Phosphorus Standard (40 ug/L) Chlorophyll a Standard (14 ug/L) Secchi Depth Standard (1.4 m)  

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Ph
os

ph
or

us
 (

μg
/L

)

Hypolimnetic (Lake Bottom) Phosphorus Concentration

Total Phosphorus

Soluble Reactive Phosphorus

 

Fish Lake Water Quality Report Card 

Year TP Chl-
a Secchi Avg 

Grade 

1995 C B C C+ 
1996 C B B B- 
1997 C B C C+ 
1998 C B C C+ 
1999 C B C C+ 
2000 C B C C+ 
2001 C B C C+ 
2002 C C D C- 
2003 C C C C 
2004 C C B C+ 
2005 C C C C 
2006 C C C C 
2007 C C C C 
2008 C B C C+ 
2009 C B C C+ 
2010 C B C C+ 
2011 C B C C+ 
2012 C C C C 
2013 C C C C 
2014 C C C C 
2015 C C C C 
2016 C C C C 
2017 C B C C+ 
2018 B B B B 

MPCA 
Standard 

C B C C+ 

Met Council Grading System for Lake 
Water Quality 

 

item 09b1)



94

494

94

Crowi River

Mississippi RiverDiamond Creek

Rush Creek

Elm Creek

Rush Creek, South Fork

494

Lake and Watershed Characteristics
DNR #

Lake Area

Maximum Depth

Percent Littoral Area
Average Depth

Watershed Area:Lake Area
Impairment Classification

Watershed Area

Classification

Fish Lake Bathymetry

Fish Lake Watershed Map

       1,611 Acres
    27011800

         232 Acres
          32%

        20.5 ft.
          62 ft.
         6.9:1

Excess Nutrients 2008
Deep Lake

0 21 Miles

Elm Creek Watershed

Jurisdictional 
Watershed
Hydrologic 
Watershed

This map is a compilation of data from various
sources and is provided "as is" without warranty
of any representation of accuracy, timeliness, or

completeness. The user acknowledges and accepts
the limitations of the Data, including the fact that the

Data is dynamic and in a constant state of
maintenance, correction, and update.

Water Resource Department
Map Created: 11/24/2017
Revised Date: 12/6/2017

item 09b2)



 

Division of Water 

Resources 

December 2018 

 

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.50

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

19
95

1
9

9
6

19
97

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
9

20
00

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

20
03

2
0

0
4

20
05

20
06

2
0

0
7

20
08

20
09

2
0

1
0

20
11

20
12

2
0

1
3

20
14

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

20
17

2
0

1
8

Se
cc

h
i D

e
p

th
 (m

)

C
o

n
ce

n
tr

at
io

n
 (µ

g
/L

)
Historic Average (May-Sept) Water Quality Values

Total Phosphorus Chlorophyll a Secchi Disk Transparency

Total Phosphorus Standard (40 ug/L) Chlorophyll a Standard (14 ug/L) Secchi Depth Standard (1.4 m)  

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.00

20

40

60

80

100

120

Se
cc

h
i D

e
p

th
 (m

)

C
o

n
ce

n
tr

at
io

n
 (µ

g
/L

)

Water Quality Data by Sample Date

Total Phosphorus Chlorophyll a Secchi Disk Transparency

Total Phosphorus Standard (40 ug/L) Chlorophyll a Standard (14 ug/L) Secchi Depth Standard (1.4 m)  

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Ph
os

ph
or

us
 (

µ
g/

L)

Hypolimnetic (Lake Bottom) Phosphorus Concentration

Total Phosphorus

Soluble Reactive Phosphorus

 

Fish Lake Water Quality Report Card 

Year TP 
Chl-

a 
Secchi 

Avg 
Grade 

1995 C B C C+ 

1996 C B B B- 

1997 C B C C+ 

1998 C B C C+ 

1999 C B C C+ 

2000 C B C C+ 

2001 C B C C+ 

2002 C C D C- 

2003 C C C C 

2004 C C B C+ 

2005 C C C C 

2006 C C C C 

2007 C C C C 

2008 C B C C+ 

2009 C B C C+ 

2010 C B C C+ 

2011 C B C C+ 

2012 C C C C 

2013 C C C C 

2014 C C C C 

2015 C C C C 

2016 C C C C 

2017 C B C C+ 

2018 B B B B 

MPCA 
Standard 

C B C C+ 

Met Council Grading System for Lake 
Water Quality 

 

item 09b2)



item 09c



item 09c



item 09c



item 09c



item 09c



CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA • PLYMOUTH • ROGERS

elm creek
Watershed Management Commission 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
3235 Fernbrook Lane 
Plymouth, MN 55447 
PH: 763.553.1144 
FAX: 763.553.9326 
Email: judie@jass.biz

TECHNICAL OFFICE
Hennepin County DES 

701 Fourth Street South, Suite 700 
Minneapolis, MN 55415-1600 

PH: 612.348-7338 
FAX: 612.348.8532 

Email: james.kujawa@co.hennepin.mn.us

Cloquet Island Estates Development 
Dayton

Project #2018-033 

Project Overview: NDI Development is working with Sathre-Bergquist, Inc. to design a 
residential development on approximately 77 acres within the Elm Creek watershed north of N. 
Diamond Lake Road and west of Dayton River Road. The project will include construction of 
193 new single family homes.  Storm water controls will be completed by the construction of 7 
new wet detention ponds, one new filtration bench, one new infiltration basin, and storm sewer 
connecting storm water features and the new development. The project will add approximately 
24.4 new acres of impervious area.  Currently, the site is covered primarily with small grain row 
crop, a wetland on the south side, woods/grass along the border of the wetland and coulee, and a 
farmstead in the northeast corner. NRCS Soil Survey data as well as soil boring investigations 
indicate that the site varies in soil conditions from silty clay to poorly graded sandy soils. The 
drainage way that splits the site provides an approximate break between the clay soils on the 
west and the sand found on the east. The majority (72 acres) of the development area drains to 
the drainage ditch that splits the site and flows north. A small area (5 acres) of the site drains to 
the south, into Wetland 1 located along N. Diamond Lake Rd. 

Applicant:  Scott Weidema, NDI Development, 17600 113th Avenue North, Maple Grove, MN 
55369

Engineer/Agent: Christian Froemke, Sathre-Bergquist, Inc., 150 South Broadway Ave. S, 
Wayzata, MN 55391 

Exhibits:
1) ECWMC Request for Plan Review and Approval and fee of $3,883 were received on July 

10, 2018.
2) Storm Water Management Plan, prepared by Advanced Engineering and Environmental 

Services, Inc., dated August 7, 2018.
a. Project Background 
b. Storm water Requirements Summary 
c. Drainage Summary and Storm water Management Design 

item 10ac



Cloquet Island Estates (2018-033) 
February 7, 2019 
Page 2 

P:\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327F55\WorkFiles\Project Reviews\Reviews\2018\2018-033 Cloquet Island 
Estates\04_Revised 12-21-2018\2018 - 033 Cloquet Island Estates Permit Review 
Memo_02072019.docx\\barr.com\projects\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327F55\WorkFiles\Project 
Reviews\Reviews\2018\2018-033 Cloquet Island Estates\04_Revised 12-21-2018\2018 - 033 Cloquet Island Estates 
Permit Review Memo_01042019.docx

d. Soil Survey Report 
e. XPSTORM Electronic Models 
f. Geotechnical Report, including soil borings 
g. P8 modeling results for existing and proposed conditions 
h. HydroCAD report for Pond 5N (infiltration) and Pond 4N (filtration) rating curve 

computations and NURP Pond design 
i. Pond outlet structure details 

3) Cloquet Island Estates grading plan, signed and dated May 23, 2018. 

Findings:

Storm water Management 
1) The entire site is 77.7 acres.  The impervious area will increase from approximately 0 

acres to approximately 24.4 acres (31.5%).    
2) NRCS Soil Survey data as well as soil boring investigations indicate that the site varies in 

soil conditions from silty clay to poorly graded sandy soils. The drainage way that splits 
the site provides an approximate break between the clay soils on the west and the sand 
found on the east. 

3) Storm water will be managed on the site through seven wet detention ponds, an 
infiltration basin, and two filtration benches. 

a) Seven new storm water detention ponds will be constructed on the site with Pond 
5N serving as a dual pretreatment wet pond and infiltration basin. The wet 
detention basins will be lined with clay in order to maintain a permanent pool.  

b) Soil investigations within Pond 5N show poorly graded sands with no 
groundwater encountered. Therefore, groundwater is not an issue at the Pond 5N 
infiltration basin location.  

c) Pond 1N & 4N incorporate filtration benches to increase the pollutant removal 
efficiency of the system to meet the water quality analysis. 

4) Rate controls meet the Commission’s standards as the peak runoff rates leaving the site 
via the north drainage ditch for the 2-, 10-, and 100-year events are all less than peak 
rates to the north for existing conditions.  Flows to the south under existing conditions 
will be routed to the north under proposed conditions. Peak flows to the north are as 
follows: 

  2-yr Peak Flow (cfs) 10-yr Peak Flow (cfs) 100-yr Peak Flow (cfs) 

Site
Outflow

Existing-
North

Proposed - 
North

Existing-
North

Proposed - 
North

Existing-
North

Proposed - 
North

89 50 207 92 454 276 

item 10ac



Cloquet Island Estates (2018-033) 
February 7, 2019 
Page 3 

P:\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327F55\WorkFiles\Project Reviews\Reviews\2018\2018-033 Cloquet Island 
Estates\04_Revised 12-21-2018\2018 - 033 Cloquet Island Estates Permit Review 
Memo_02072019.docx\\barr.com\projects\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327F55\WorkFiles\Project 
Reviews\Reviews\2018\2018-033 Cloquet Island Estates\04_Revised 12-21-2018\2018 - 033 Cloquet Island Estates 
Permit Review Memo_01042019.docx

5) The City of Dayton has indicated they secure easements over the storm water ponds and 
will be responsible for maintenance of the storm water management system. 

6) Water quality and volume loads are estimated as follows: 
Condition TP Load (lbs./yr)* TSS Load (lbs./yr)*

Pre-development Load  19.6 6,210 
Post-development Load 62.4 19,463 
Post-development Discharge 15.1 2,771 
Post-development Load Reduction 76% 86% 
Net Change from Pre-development  -4.5 -3,439 

*Value using p8 Model

7) The 1.1” abstraction requirement off the total impervious area (24.4 acres) is proposed to 
be achieved using an infiltration basin at a location where Type A soils exist.

Wetland and Stream Buffer 
8) The City of Dayton will be the LGU for the WCA. Therefore, a wetland delineation is not 

required.

Erosion and Sediment Control 
9) The erosion and sediment control plan is consistent with current best management 

practices. 

Wetland Impacts 
10) It appears the project will impact +/- 955 sf of an existing 0.97 acre wetland (Wetland #1) 

(2%) for a new turning lane. The impacts are under 1,000 sq. ft. so it is covered under the 
de minimis rule.  Nonetheless, this issue should come to a formal resolution to either 
modify the project or get a confirmation of the de minimis rule from the LGU. 

Floodplain Impacts 
11) There is no construction within the 100-year floodplain.

Recommendation: 
We recommend approval of the project with the following conditions: 

1) Make final revisions to the modeling to more accurately model the overall system and 
ensure results are not adversely impacted.  Recommended changes include: 

a. Capturing water in biofiltration features to be routed within the system as 
designed rather than losing the volume like an infiltration feature. 

b. Modify modeling of ponds such that the starting elevation in the pond is equal to 
the outlet elevation. 

item 10ac



Cloquet Island Estates (2018-033) 
February 7, 2019 
Page 4 

P:\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327F55\WorkFiles\Project Reviews\Reviews\2018\2018-033 Cloquet Island 
Estates\04_Revised 12-21-2018\2018 - 033 Cloquet Island Estates Permit Review 
Memo_02072019.docx\\barr.com\projects\Mpls\23 MN\27\2327F55\WorkFiles\Project 
Reviews\Reviews\2018\2018-033 Cloquet Island Estates\04_Revised 12-21-2018\2018 - 033 Cloquet Island Estates 
Permit Review Memo_01042019.docx

2) Show pond emergency overflow locations and elevations on the grading plan to confirm 
that they will overflow at elevations below the nearest low opening. 

Jeff Weiss, P.E.        Feb 07, 2019
Barr Engineering Company        Date 
Advisor to the Commission 

Site Location Map 

item 10ac



C
lo

qu
et

 Is
la

nd
 E

st
at

es
 (2

01
8-

03
3)

 
Ja

n 
7,

 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 5

 

C
H

A
M

P
LI

N
 • 

C
O

R
C

O
R

AN
 • 

D
A

Y
TO

N
 • 

M
A

P
LE

 G
R

O
V

E
 • 

M
E

D
IN

A
 • 

P
LY

M
O

U
TH

 • 
R

O
G

ER
S

item 10ac



Fernbrook View Apartments 
Maple Grove, Project #2019-001 

 
 
Project Overview:  This is a 4.85 acres rural residential lot located at the NE intersection of 
CSAH 81 at Fernbrook Lane in Maple Grove.  The applicant proposes to construct a 2 story, 42-
unit apartment building.  This review will for compliance to the Commission’s 3rd Generation 
STWMP Rules and Standards, Rule D (stormwater management), Rule E (erosion and sediment 
controls), and Rule I (buffer strips)  
 
Applicant:  Arrow Companies, Steve Fischer, 7365 Kirkwood Court, #335, Maple Grove, MN  
55369.  Phone: 763-424-6355.  Email: sfixcher@arrowcos.com 
 
Agent/Engineer:  Loucks Associates, Zach Webber, 7200 Hemlock Lane, #300, Maple Grove, 
MN  55369.  Phone: 763-496-6753.  Email: zwebber@loucksinc.com 
 
Exhibits: 

1) ECWMC Request for Plan Review and Approval dated November 13, 2018, received 
January 10, 2019. 

2) Site Plans.  Latest revision date of January 4, 2019. 
a. Sheet C1-1, Existing Conditions 
b. Sheet C1-2, Demolition Plan 
c. Sheet C2-1, Site Plan  
d. Sheet C3-1, Grading Plan 
e. Sheet C3-2, SWPPP Plan 
f. Sheet C3-3, SWPPP Notes 
g. Sheet C4-1, Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Plans 
h. Sheet C4-2, Storm Sewer Plans 
i. Sheets C8-1 to C8-3, Details 
j. Sheet L1-1, Landscape Plan. 

3) Architectural Site Plans, Latest revision date of January 3, 2019. 
a. Architecture Site Plan Sheet A1.1 
b. Architecture Sidewalk and Roof Plan A1.2 

4) Fernbrook View Apartments Stormwater Management Plan dated November 13, 2018, 
revised January 4, 2019. 

5) Correspondence from Loucks Associates to the City of Maple Grove regarding Fernbrook 
View Apartments response to City Comments, dated January 4, 2019. 

item 10al

mailto:james.kujawa@hennepin.us
mailto:sfixcher@arrowcos.com
mailto:zwebber@loucksinc.com


Findings;  
1) A complete set of plans was received January 10, 2019.  The initial decision period per 

MN Statute 15.99 is March 11, 2019. 
2) Current land use is rural residential, 4.85-acre parcel area.  Approximately 0.34 acres is 

hard surface, 2.6 acres cropland, 0.90 acres wetland and 1.0-acre grass/woodland.   
3) Proposed land use is multifamily residential (PUD).  1.84 acres will be impervious, 0.92 

acres will remain wetland and 2.09 acres will be grass/landscaped.  
4) This site drains directly into a small unnamed creek in the southeast corner of the 

property.  This creek flows southeast for approximately 1,900 feet where it goes under the 
CSAH 81/I-610 ROW for about 900 feet.  From there it flows about 1300 feet in the ditch 
between the 610 ROW and RR ROW before entering Elm Creek on the south side of the 
I-610 ROW.  

Stormwater Management 
5)  Two permanent BMP’s are proposed on site for stormwater management. 

a. A NURP/Filtration basin is proposed to treat 3.35 acres for abstraction, flow rates, 
total phosphorus and total suspended solids 

b. A soil amendment/filtration trench is proposed to treat 0.25 acres of impervious 
areas for phosphorus and suspended solids. 

6) No information is provided on the long-term operation and maintenance of the pond and 
filter trenches.  If the City of Maple Grove does not provide this service, the applicant is 
required to provide an O&M agreement for review and approval by the City and 
Watershed.  The approved agreement must be recorded on the property title. 

7) The soil amendment/filtration trench next to the building does not appear to meet 
standards for this BMP.  Assumed rate controls and water quality benefits will be 
minimized by this BMP due to; 

a. the slope of the trench (~2.6%).  Ponding will only occur for approximately the 
last 50 feet on this trench.  

b. the void ratio of the amended soil mix (30-35%).  100% ratio appears to be used 
for storage availability in HydroCAD.  

c. an actual exfiltration rate will be limited by the ponding capability. 
d. Assumes the trench depth at 1.5’.  Details show 1.0’ 

8) Abstraction requirements will be 7,365 cubic feet (1.1” of runoff on 1.84 acres of new 
impervious area).  Actual abstraction provided will be 7,588 cubic feet. 

a. The draw down on the pond for abstraction requirements will not occur until the 
water in the pond gets high enough to drain into the filter trench.  Based on the 
details and grading plans, this appears to be at or near 901.3 (weir elevation), not 
900.7 as designed.   

i. Site plans details or cross sections will need to show specific elevations on 
the filter trench to ensure the proper elevation is set on the filter trench to 
ensure that it will be inundated for the 48-hour drawdown period.   

9) Water quality analysis; 
a. Post-development TP and TSS will be equal to or less than pre-development load.  

This will meet the Commission’s standards. 
b. ECWMC requires that NURP pond mean average depth be 4.0’. 

item 10al



Stormwater Summary 
 

Condition 
 

TP 
Load* 
(lbs/yr) 

TSS 
Load** 
(lbs/yr) 

Abstraction 

(cu. ft.) 
Filtration  

(cu. ft.) 

Annual 
Volume** 

(ac. ft.) 
Pre-development (baseline) 4.9 601 N/A N/A 4.06 
Post-development without 
BMPs  8.3 817 N/A 7,365 5.51 

Post-development with 
BMPs  3.8 146 N/A 7,588 5.20 

Net Change  -1.1 -455 N/A -223 +1.14 
*based on NURP and staff analysis 
** based on MIDS 
 

10) Rate Controls will meet the Commission requirements.  (note, these may change slightly 
based on item 7 above) 

 

 2-yr (cfs) 10-yr (cfs) 100-yr (cfs) 

Pre-Development Rates 5.9 14.0 31.8 

Post-Development Rates 4.7 13.3 26.1 
 

 Wetland Buffers 
  

11) The on-site wetland will not be impacted.  Buffers will be established around this wetland 
to meet the Commission’s standard widths of 10’ minimum and 25’ average. 

Erosion and Sediment Controls 
12) Erosion and sediment control plans meet the Commission’s requirements.   

 
Recommendation:  

1) The Commission recommends the applicant pursue utilizing water from the NURP pond 
for irrigation needs for this property. 

2) Long term operation and maintenance on the stormwater basin must be addressed 
3) Mean average pond depth must meet the Commission standard. 
4) Pond filter bench details must be provided. 

 
Hennepin County  
Department of Environment and Energy 
Advisor to the Commission 

 
 

          January 24, 2019 
           Date 
      
 
 
 
 
 

item 10al



 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

item 10al



 

North 

item 10al



eelm creek
Watershed Management Commission
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE TECHNICAL OFFICE
3235 Fernbrook Lane Hennepin County Public Works
Plymouth, MN  55447 Department of Environment and Energy
PH: 763.553.1144 701 Fourth Ave. South, Suite 700
E-mail: judie@jass.biz Minneapolis, MN 55415

PH: 612.348.7338
E-mail: james.kujawa@hennepin.us

CHAMPLIN • CORCORAN • DAYTON • MAPLE GROVE • MEDINA • PLYMOUTH • ROGERS

Parkside Villas
Champlin, Project #2019-002

Project Overview: This is two adjacent rural parcels that total 13.9 acres that are proposed to be 
split into 56, single family residential lots.  It is located on the east side of Goose Lake Road just 
south of its intersection with Elm Road (CR 202). This review will for compliance to the 
Commission’s 3rd Generation STWMP Rules and Standards Rule D (stormwater management)
and Rule E (erosion and sediment controls).

Applicant: Landmark Development, Nathan Fair, 13432 Hanson Blvd. NW, Andover, MN  
55304.  Phone: 763-421-5435.  Email: nathanfair@edinarealty.com

Agent/Engineer: Odell Consulting LLC, Matt Johnson, 826 County Road D W. St. Paul, MN  
55126.  Phone: 763-360-8454.  Email: odellconsultingmn@gmail.com

Exhibits:
1) ECWMC Request for Plan Review and Approval dated January 15, 2019, received 

January 23, 2019.
2) Site Plan Information.

a. Sheets 12 and 13 of 16, Grading Plans by Sathre-Bergquist.  No date or signature.
b. Sheet 14 of 16, Erosion Control Plan by Sathre-Bergquist.  No date or signature.

3) Storm Water Management Plan by Odell Consulting LLC dated January 9, 2019.

Findings;
1) A complete set of plans was received January 23, 2019.  The initial decision period per 

MN Statute 15.99 is March 24, 2019.
2) Current land use is rural agriculture with one farmstead (13.9 acres).  Approximately 1.1 

acres is farmstead (0.1-acre impervious area) and 12.8 acres cropland. 
3) Proposed land use is 56 single family homes and their associated infrastructure.  5.0 acres 

will be impervious, with the remaining area (8.9 acres) being lawn/landscaped areas.
4) This site drains north into Elm Creek Park Reserve.  The water flows through a series of 

wetlands for approximately ½ mile until it gets into the Haydens Lake basin of Elm 
Creek.

Stormwater Management
5) Two permanent BMP’s are proposed on site for stormwater management.

a. A NURP pond that is proposed to treat 13.15 acres from this site for rate controls, 
total phosphorus and suspended solids, and

item 10am



Parkside Villas
Champlin project 2019-002
January 29, 2019

b. An irrigation system that utilizes the stormwater runoff in the NURP pond for 
volume management by irrigating 8.9 acres of the lawn areas in this development.

6) No information is provided on the long-term operation and maintenance of the pond and 
irrigation system.  If the City of Champlin does not provide this service for the pond or 
irrigation system, the applicant is required to provide an O&M agreement for review and 
approval by the City and Watershed.  The approved agreement must be recorded on the 
property title.

7) The outlet to the new stormwater pond will concentrate the water in one location where it 
flows into the Three Rivers Park District property.   The park has existing trails where the 
outlet is directed.  Because of these concentrated flows and the existing trial system, we 
recommend the applicant work with Three Rivers Park to direct these flows under the 
trail before releasing it into the downstream channel area in the Park.  

8) Abstraction requirements will be 20,245 cubic feet (based on 1.1” of runoff on 5.07 acres 
of new impervious area).  Actual abstraction (based on Ramsey/Washington Metro 
Watershed District Reuse Credit Calculator) from irrigating 8.9 acres on site will be 
48,945 cubic feet. This will meet the Commission’s requirements.

9) Water quality analysis;
a. TP and TSS loads will be less after development than before based on the MPCA 

MIDs model (see summary below).  This will meet the Commission’s standards.
b. NURP pond efficiency will be 60%.  This will meet the Commission standards.

10) Flow rates for the 2, 10 and 100-year, 24-hour storm events will be approximately ½ of 
pre-development flows (see rate summary below).

Stormwater Summary

Condition TP 
Load*
(lbs/yr)

TSS 
Load*
(lbs/yr)

Abstraction
(cu. ft.)

Annual 
Volume*
(ac. ft.)

Pre-development (baseline) 6.3 1145 20,245
required

7.72
Post-development without 
BMPs 13.1 2375 20,245 16.02

Post-development with 
BMPs 3.8 481 48,945 5.16

Net Change -2.5 -664 -28,700 -2.56
*based on MPCA MIDS

Flow Rate Summary

2-yr (cfs) 10-yr (cfs) 100-yr (cfs)

Pre-Development Rates 16.3 32.5 69.3

Post-Development Rates 7.4 16.4 35.6

11) Erosion and sediment control plans meet the Commission’s standard for Rule E.  
12) There are no floodplains on this site.
13) Champlin is their own LGU in charge of administering the MN WCA.  No wetland 

impacts are anticipated in the development of this site.  

item 10am



Parkside Villas
Champlin project 2019-002
January 29, 2019

Recommendation: Approval conditioned upon;
1) Long term operation and maintenance on the stormwater basin and irrigation system must 

be addressed per item 6. 
2) The Commission recommends the applicant work with the Three Rivers Park District and 

City of Champlin to safely outlet the pond water below the trail system adjacent to the 
property line.  

Hennepin County 
Department of Environment and Energy
Advisor to the Commission

January 29, 2019
Date

LOCATION MAP

item 10am



Parkside Villas
Champlin project 2019-002
January 29, 2019

2015 Aerial Photo

item 10am



Parkside Villas
Champlin project 2019-002
January 29, 2019

Grading Plan

item 10am



BWSR Forms 7-1-10 Page 1 of 2

Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act 
NNotice of Application 

Local Government Unit (LGU)
Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission

Address
c/o JASS
3235 Fernbrook Lane, 
Plymouth, MN  55447

1. PROJECT INFORMATION
Applicant Name
Ernie Mayers

Project Name
Access road, ditchwork, and 
pipe installation

Date of 
Application
January 29, 2019

Application 
Number
2017-050W

Type of Application (check all that apply):

Wetland Boundary or Type             No-Loss             Exemption           Sequencing

                            Replacement Plan                        Banking Plan

Summary and description of proposed project (attach additional sheets as necessary):
This is a replacement plan submitted as a result of a restoration order issued in August of 2018.  It is 
located in the NW 1/4 of Section 27 and the E1/2 of Section 28, T119N, R23W, Corcoran, MN.  
Hennepin County PID's 2811923410009, 2811923130002, 271192323002 and 2811923120001.The 
applicant requests approval of; a) 4,995 sq. ft. of wetland impacts for two access roads (areas 1a and 1b 
of restoration order) and b) replacement of said impacts at a 4:1 ratio in BWSR wetland bank accounts 
1643 and 1361, and c) restoration of ditch work to pre-construction conditions in PID 2811923410009
(area 2 of restoration order) and d) replacement of subsurface perforated drain tile with non-perforarted 
draintile in PID 2711923230002 (area 4 of restoration order) and e) provide future application material 
for ditch work done in PID's 2711923220002 and 2711923230002 (area 3 of restoration order) and f) 
for future application to the ECWMC for floodplain impacts in all PID’s.

2. APPLICATION REVIEW AND DECISION
Signing and mailing of this completed form to the appropriate recipients in accordance with 8420.0255, 
Subp. 3 provides notice that an application was made to the LGU under the Wetland Conservation Act as 
specified above.  A copy of the application is attached. Comments can be submitted to:

Name and Title of LGU Contact Person
James C. Kujawa
Technical Advisor to the Commission

Comments must be received by (minimum 15 
business-day comment period): February 25, 
2019; 4:30 PM

Address (if different than LGU) Date, time, and location of decision:
March 13, 2019.  11:30 a.m., Maple Grove 
City Hall, 12800 Arbor Lakes Parkway, 
Maple Grove, MN  55369

Phone Number and E-mail Address
612-348-7338
James.kujawa@hennepin.us

Decision-maker for this application:
Staff
Governing Board or Council

Signature: __________________________________________         _____ Date: January 31, 2019

item 10s



BWSR Forms 7-1-10 Page 2 of 2

3. LIST OF ADDRESSEES
SWCD TEP member: (email only) Stacey. Lijewski@co.hennepin.mn.us
BWSR TEP member: (email only) Ben Carlson (ben.carlson@state.mn.us). Travis 

Germundson (travis.germundson@state.mn.us)
LGU TEP member (if different than LGU Contact): 
DNR TEP member: Jason Spiegel (jason.spiegel@state.mn.us)
DNR Regional Office (email only) Becky.Horton@state.mn.us 
WD or WMO (if applicable):
Applicant/Agent: (email) Ben Hodapp (Anderson Engineering) bhodapp@ae-mn.com

Ernie Mayers, erniemayers@comcast.net. Maury Noonan (Rinke Noonan),
mjnoonan@rinkenoonan.com

City of Corcoran: Kevin Mattson and Brad Marten (bmartens@ci.corcoran.mn.us.,
kmattson@ci.corcoran.mn.us.)

Members of the public who requested notice (notice only)
Corps of Engineers Project Manager (notice only) mvp-reg-inquiry@usace.army.mil
BWSR Wetland Bank Coordinator (wetland bank plan applications only)

4. MAILING INFORMATION
For a list of BWSR TEP representatives: www.bwsr.state.mn.us/contact/WCA_areas.pdf

For a list of DNR TEP representatives: www.bwsr.state.mn.us/wetlands/wca/DNR_TEP_contacts.pdf

Department of Natural Resources Regional Offices:
NW Region:
Reg. Env. Assess. Ecol.
Div. Ecol. Resources
2115 Birchmont Beach Rd. NE
Bemidji, MN  56601

NE Region:
Reg. Env. Assess. Ecol.
Div. Ecol. Resources
1201 E. Hwy. 2
Grand Rapids, MN 
55744

Central Region:
Reg. Env. Assess. 
Ecol.
Div. Ecol. Resources
1200 Warner Road
St. Paul, MN  55106

Southern Region:
Reg. Env. Assess. Ecol.
Div. Ecol. Resources
261 Hwy. 15 South
New Ulm, MN  56073

For a map of DNR Administrative Regions, see: http://files.dnr.state.mn.us/aboutdnr/dnr_regions.pdf

For a list of Corps of Project Managers: www.mvp.usace.army.mil/regulatory/default.asp?pageid=687
or send to: 

US Army Corps of Engineers
St. Paul District, ATTN: OP-R
180 Fifth St. East, Suite 700
St. Paul, MN 55101-1678

For Wetland Bank Plan applications, also send a copy of the application to:
Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources
Wetland Bank Coordinator
520 Lafayette Road North
St. Paul, MN 55155

5. ATTACHMENTS
In addition to the application, list any other attachments:

MN Joint Application for Activities Affecting Water Resources in MN prepared for Ernie 
Mayers by Anderson Engineering dated January 2019

item 10s



Anderson Engineering
Project No. 14

201

Minnesota Joint Application
For Activities Affecting Water Resources in Minnesota

A Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Small Business
Page 1 of 124

item 10s



Contents 
 

MN Joint Application Checklist 2

MN Joint Application 5

10

11

Appendices 
Appendix A: General Project/Site Location 12 

13

14

Appendix B: Restoration Order 15 

19

Appendix C: Historic Ditch Analysis Report 25 

Appendix D: 1947 and 1953 Historic Aerial Photos 44 

Appendix E: NRCS Certified Wetland Determination Report 47 

Appendix F: Hennepin County Ditch Survey Notification Letter 93 

Appendix G: DNR scanned PWI Map 96 

Appendix H: 1998 NRCS Drainage Maintenance Request 98

Appendix I: 1361 - Purchase Agreement for Wetland Banking Credits 107 

Appendix J: 1643 - Purchase Agreement for Wetland Banking Credits 110 

Appendix K: Hydric Soils Report 113 

 

Page 2 of 124

item 10s



Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act 
RReplacement Plan: Complete Application Checklist 

 

Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission 
 

21600 Larkin Road 
Corcoran, MN, 55340 

Check yes or no or leave blank if not applicable: 

GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 
Item # Yes No

FOR THE IMPACTED WETLAND 
Item # Yes No

Sequencing Analysis: 

FOR THE REPLACEMENT WETLAND WHEN REPLACEMENT IS PROJECT-SPECIFIC 
Yes No

Ernie Mayers Access road, ditch work, and pipe 
installation 2019  

Page 3 of 124

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

 

item 10s



FOR REPLACEMENT BY WETLAND BANKING 
Yes No

 
For all replacement plans: 

 

    

 

 

 

Signature: ________________________________________________    Date: ____________________ 

Page 4 of 124

N/A

item 10s



 

PART ONE: Applicant Information 

Applicant/Landowner Name:
Mailing Address:
Phone:
E-mail Address:

Legal Representation:
Mailing Address:
Phone:
E-mail Address:

Agent Name:
Mailing Address:
Phone:
E-mail Address:

PART TWO: Site Location Information 
County: City/Township: 

Parcel ID and/or Address: 

Legal Description (Section, Township, Range): 
Lat/Long (decimal degrees): 

Attach a map showing the location of the site in relation to local streets, roads, highways. 

Approximate size of site (acres) or if a linear project, length (ft.): 

PART THREE: General Project/Site Information 
prior to

N/A 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 124

item 10s



Background  

 
Resource Impacts  

Figure 1. Restoration Order Areas

Page 6 of 124

item 10s



 

Project Description – Proposed Action 

Page 7 of 124

item 10s



purpose

needed

Page 8 of 124

item 10s



Page 9 of 124

item 10s



 

Attachment C 
Avoidance and Minimization 

Project Purpose, Need, and Requirements

purpose
needed

Avoidance

Minimization

Off-Site Alternatives

N/A 

Page 10 of 124

item 10s



 

 

Attachment D 
Replacement/Compensatory Mitigation 

if

Replacement/Compensatory Mitigation via Wetland Banking

Wetland Bank 
Account #

County
Major 

Watershed #

Bank 
Service 
Area #

Credit Type
Number of Credits

However, applicants are advised not to enter into a binding agreement to purchase credits until the 
mitigation plan is approved by the Corps and LGU. 

Page 11 of 124

item 10s



Page 12 of 124

Appendix A
General Project/Site Location

item 10s



_̂

PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 8/16/2016     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 13 of 124

item 10s



P
ag

e 
14

 o
f 1

24
I

s

P
ID

 2
81

19
23

41
00

09

P
ID

 2
81

19
23

13
00

02

P
ID

 2
71

19
23

22
00

02

P
ID

 2
71

19
23

23
00

02

P
ID

 2
81

19
23

12
00

01

Pa
rc

el
 ID

 M
ap

R
el

ev
an

t P
ID

s

item 10s



Page 15 of 124

Appendix B
Restoration Order

item 10s



Minnesota Wetland 
Conservation Act 
Restoration Order 

The Commissioner of Natural Resources hereby orders Ernie Mayers and his/hers/its heirs, 

successors, and assigns to complete restoration of the wetland located at (legal description)East 1/2 
Section 28, T119N, R23W and the NW1/4 of Section 27, T119N, R23 West 

corresponding to Hennepin County PID's 2811923410009, 2811923130002, 

2711923220002, 2711923230002, and 2811923220002; Hennepin County   

State of Minnesota.

Name: Ernie Mayers

Address: 21600 Larkin Lane, Corcoran, MN  55340

Findings of Fact: Site visits were conducted on December 11, 2017 and again on May 

22, 2018 at the above mentioned properties by the Technical Evaluation Panel 

of Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission (Local Government Unit)which

includes a represenative from the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission,

the MN Board of Water and Soil Resources Area Wetland Specialist, the Local 

Soil and Water Conservation District represenative, the MN DNR Area 

Hydrologist and the MN DNR Conservation Officer.  During these inspections, a 

new access road from Larkin Lane into these parcels was observed along with 

two recent constructed drainge ditchs.  Additionally a drainage system (drain 

tile line with three surface inlets) was observed that appeared drain a 

historic wetland area. The ditch work areas were a)along the access road 

near Larkin Lane and b)along the west edge of PID 2711923220002 extending

from Hennepin County Ditch #3 south approximately 1700 feet. Subsequent work 

by the Technical Evaluation Panel, determined the following activities 

occurred without a permit from the Elm Creek Watershed Management Commission 

in violation of the MN Wetland Conservation Act as ammended;

1) Area 1; Access road construction impacted 4,995 square feet of MN WCA

jurisdictional wetland in two separate areas, and

2) Area 2; A ditch constructed as part of the access road partially or fully

drained an existing wetland basin approximately 0.3 acres in size along the

north boundary of PID's 2811923410009 and the south boundary of PID

Page 16 of 124

item 10s



2811923130002, and

3) Ditch work along the westerly property lines of PIDs 2711923220002 and

2711923230002, running from Hennepin County Ditch #3 south approximately

1,700 feet.  This work partially drained MN DNR Wetland 420W and adjacent MN

WCA jurisdictional wetlands, and

4) Drain tile work done between Kalk Road to near the southerly terminus of

the ditch work in #3 above, partially or fully drainded approximately 11

acres of MN WCA wetlands.

This order is issued pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 103G.2372 and MN Rule part 8420.0900. 
VIOLATION OF THIS ORDER IS A MISDEMEANOR

AND A DEED RESTRICTION COULD BE PLACED ON THE PROPERTY. 

You must either:

Provide for restoration of the wetland in the manner required by this order.  Complete restoration
must be accomplished on or before , 2018; or

Submit a complete wetland replacement plan, exemption, or no-loss application to the Elm
Creek Watshed Management Commission   within 30 days of receipt of this order.

Restoration shall be accomplished by doing the following:    
1) For areas 1a and 1b, remove 4,995 sq. feet of fill in the two areas of wetland impacted as a result
of the road access work.
2) Restore ditch area 2 near entry way to pre-construction conditions.  If pre-consturction
conditions cannot be determined, begin ditch construction at edge of wetland as determined and
grade to old sod elevations, or up to 1.0 feet below the old sod elevation, in the existing ditch at the
tree line area,
3) Restore ditch areas 3a and 3b to pre-construction conditions.
-In area 3a, refill the ditch to the adjacent elevations of the existing ground on both sides of the
constructed ditch. In area 3a, a small surface ditch can be established based on 1974 topographic
survey.  This ditch must match the existing DNRv 420W overflow swale elevation at its north end
and run 370' south, matching the historic ground elevations at that point.
- In area 3b, refill the ditch to its historic elevations.  If historic elevations cannot be determined,
the ditch elevations at the south end must match the existing drain tile that is at the beginning of the
ditch and it must terminate at the existing historic elevation at the power pole where it enters DNR
Wetland 420W.  An even ditch grade can be established between these two end points.
4) The Drain tile and surface inlets between Kalk Road and ditch area 3b must be removed or
disabled by methods approved by the TEP.  A non-perforated drain tile can be established between
Kalk Road and the ditch if approved by the Elm Creek Waterhsed Management Commission.

Attachments are a part of this document (check one)      Yes        No

6 attachements.  Overview Map, -RO Area 1a, -RO Area 1b, -RO Area 2, -RO
Areas 3a and 3b,  RO Area 4

Page 17 of 124

item 10s



The enforcement authority shall rescind this order if the landowner obtains approval for an after-the-fact 
replacement plan, exemption determination, or no-loss determination from the Elm Creek Watershed 
Management Commission. The contact person is James Kujawa at (612)348-7338.  If an after-the-fact 
approval is not received, the landowner/responsible party must restore the wetland as specified in this 
order. Upon completion of the restoration required by this order, the landowner must contact Stacey 
Lijewski at the Hennepin  County Soil and Water Conservation District (612)348-9938 and request that a 
Certificate of Satisfactory Completion be issued. 

If you choose to appeal the terms or conditions of this order, a written request must be submitted to the 
Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Executive Director within 30 days of receiving 
this order, along with a minimum filing fee of $500.  If a written request and filing fee is not submitted to 
BWSR within 30 days, this restoration order shall become final.   

Order 
Prepared by _________________________________________________ ___________________ _________ 

Signature Printed Name Date

Order 
Served by 

________________________________________ _______ ___________________ _________ 

Conservation Officer Signature Badge # Printed Name Date

Officer Issuance Record:  in person; or  by certified mail on / / 
[Date]

Distribute Copies To: Appeal and fee can be mailed to:
DNR Conservation Officer Minnesota BWSR
DNR Water Resources Enforcement Officer Executive Director
BWSR Wetland Specialist 520 Lafayette Road North 
Local Government Unit (LGU) St. Paul, MN  55155 
Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD)
Landowner 

Stacey Lijewski 8/2/2018

592 Leah Weyandt 8/9/2018

08 09 18   at 0800 hours

Page 18 of 124

item 10s



P
ag

e 
19

 o
f 1

24

item 10s



P
ag

e 
20

 o
f 1

24

item 10s



Page 21 of 124

item 10s



Page 22 of 124

item 10s



P
ag

e 
23

 o
f 1

24

item 10s



P
ag

e 
24

 o
f 1

24

item 10s



Page 25 of 124

Appendix C
Historic Ditch Analysis Report

item 10s



Page 26 of 124

item 10s



Page 27 of 124

item 10s



PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 1/26/2018     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 28 of 124

item 10s



Rush Creek - S
outh Fork

M-062-004-002

27042500

Unnamed Public Water Wetland
27042000

27042100 27042100

27042100

PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 8/16/2016     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 29 of 124

item 10s



PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 8/16/2016     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 30 of 124

item 10s



P
ag

e 
31

 o
f 1

24

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
A

re
a

item 10s



PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 8/16/2016     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 32 of 124

WETLAND

CROPPED

Open Ditch

Swale

No Channel

item 10s



PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 8/16/2016     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 33 of 124

CROPPED

WETLAND

Open Ditch

Swale

No Channel

Trees

SECTION CORNER

item 10s



PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 8/16/2016     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 34 of 124

Open Ditch

WETLAND

Ditch Trees Removed
Swale

Moist Soil Swale

DITCH

item 10s



PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 8/16/2016     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 35 of 124

Ditch

WETLAND

CROPPED

PASTURE

DITCH

DITCH

DITCH

item 10s



PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 8/16/2016     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 36 of 124

Ditch

WETLAND

DITCH

DITCH

Swale

PASTURE

item 10s



PROJECT LOCATION

Hennepin County
State of Minnesota

City of Corcoran
Hennepin County, MN

21600 Larkin Road
Corcoran, Hennepin County, MN

PID: Multiple

AE Comm.# 14451    Date: 1/26/2018     By: JLA

I

Anderson Engineering of Minnesota, LLC
13605 1st Avenue North
Suite 100
Plymouth, MN 55441
763-412-4000 (o)  763-412-4090 (f)
www.ae-mn.com

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING
Page 37 of 124

item 10s



P
ag

e 
38

 o
f 1

24

item 10s



Page 39 of 124

item 10s



Page 40 of 124

item 10s



Page 41 of 124

item 10s



Page 42 of 124

item 10s



Page 43 of 124

item 10s



Page 44 of 124

Appendix D
1947 and 1953 Historic Aerial Photos

item 10s



P
ag

e 
45

 o
f 1

24

L
oc

at
io

n 
of

 D
itc

h
in

 R
O

 A
re

a 
3

C
ou

nt
y 

D
itc

h 
#3

19
47

 A
er

ia
l P

ho
to

item 10s



P
ag

e 
46

 o
f 1

24

L
oc

at
io

n 
of

 D
itc

h
in

 R
O

 A
re

a 
3

19
53

 A
er

ia
l P

ho
to

C
ou

nt
y 

D
itc

h 
#3

item 10s



Page 47 of 124

Appendix E
NRCS Certified Wetland Determination Report

item 10s



Page 48 of 124

item 10s



Page 49 of 124

item 10s



Page 50 of 124

item 10s



Page 51 of 124

item 10s



Page 52 of 124

item 10s



Page 53 of 124

item 10s



Page 54 of 124

item 10s



Page 55 of 124

item 10s



Page 56 of 124

item 10s



Page 57 of 124

item 10s



Page 58 of 124

item 10s



Page 59 of 124

item 10s



Page 60 of 124

item 10s



Page 61 of 124

item 10s



Page 62 of 124

item 10s



Page 63 of 124

item 10s



Page 64 of 124

item 10s



Page 65 of 124

item 10s



Page 66 of 124

item 10s



Page 67 of 124

item 10s



Page 68 of 124

item 10s



Page 69 of 124

item 10s



Page 70 of 124

item 10s



Page 71 of 124

item 10s



Page 72 of 124

item 10s



Page 73 of 124

item 10s



Page 74 of 124

item 10s



Page 75 of 124

item 10s



Page 76 of 124

item 10s



Page 77 of 124

item 10s



Page 78 of 124

item 10s



Page 79 of 124

item 10s



Page 80 of 124

item 10s



Page 81 of 124

item 10s



Page 82 of 124

item 10s



Page 83 of 124

item 10s



Page 84 of 124

item 10s



Page 85 of 124

item 10s



Page 86 of 124

item 10s



Page 87 of 124

item 10s



Page 88 of 124

item 10s



Page 89 of 124

item 10s



Page 90 of 124

item 10s



P
ag

e 
91

 o
f 1

24

item 10s



P
ag

e 
92

 o
f 1

24

item 10s



Page 93 of 124

Appendix F
Hennepin County Ditch Survey 

Notification Letter

item 10s



Page 94 of 124

item 10s



Page 95 of 124Page 95 of 1

Area of Interest

RO Area 3

Orange boxes added over original letter to highlight area of interest
item 10s



Page 96 of 124

Appendix G
DNR Scanned PWI Map

item 10s



P
ag

e 
97

 o
f 1

24item 10s



Page 98 of 124

Appendix H
1998 NRCS Drainage Maintenance Request

item 10s



Page 99 of 124

Exhibit 1

item 10s



Page 100 of 124

item 10s



Page 101 of 124

item 10s



Page 102 of 124

item 10s



Page 103 of 124

Field 2

Field 3

item 10s



Page 104 of 124

item 10s



Page 105 of 124

item 10s



Page 106 of 124

item 10s



Page 107 of 124

Appendix I
Purchase Agreement for Wetland Banking Credits

Wetland Bank 1361

item 10s



$250.00
$16,987.16

$456.96
$69.28

$526.24
CREDITS TO BE SOLD 

Credit 
Sub-Group 

SWC (ac) Cost per Acre Wetland 
Type 

Topographic 
Setting 

Cost 

Subtotal (payable to Seller): $ 17,487.16 

Subtotal (payable to BWSR): $ 526.24 

TOTAL: $ 18,013.40 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR WETLAND BANKING CREDITS

Tom & Karen Grygelko Wetland Bank - Account #1361

Sellers: Tom & Karen Grygelko 
8940 Greenfield Road 
Greenfield, MN  55357 
(763) 498-7696 

Agent: Ben Hodapp 
Anderson Engineering 
13605 1st Ave N, Ste 100 
Plymouth, MN 55441 
(763) 412-4000 

Page 108 of 124

item 10s



Page 109 of 124

item 10s



Page 110 of 124

Appendix J
Purchase Agreement for Wetland Banking Credits

Wetland Bank 1643

item 10s



Page 1 of 2 

Wetland Credit Agency, LLC     12940 Overlook Road, Dayton, MN 55327     612-360-4700

v2.1_8-1-14
 

This Agreement for Purchase of Wetland Banking Credits (“Agreement”) is made this 29th day of January, 

2019 between Wetland Credit Agency, LLC (“Broker”) and Ernie Mayers (“Buyer”). (Broker and Buyer are 

collectively referred to as “Parties”).

WETLAND CREDIT ACCOUNT(S) 

Acct. No. County Major Watershed BSA Account Owner

1643 Hennepin 20 – Mississippi (metro) 7 R. Engstrom (“Seller”)

1. Buyer agrees to buy the wetland banking credits (“Credits”) listed below:

CREDITS TO BE SOLD 

Credit
Sub-

Group¹
Acres

Wetland 
Circ. 39 
Type²

Plant Community Type3 Cost per 
Acre

Account 
Number Total

A. 0.2293 3 shallow marsh $121,968.00 1643 $27,967.26

B. -- -- -- -- -- --

C. -- -- -- -- -- --

D. --- -- -- -- -- --

E. -- -- -- -- -- --

Totals 0.2293 $27,967.26 
Check here if additional credit sub-groups are part of this account and are listed on an attachment to this document.

¹A separate credit sub-group shall be established for each wetland or wetland area that has different wetland characteristics.
²Circular 39 types: 1, 1L, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, B, U.
3Wetland plant community type: shallow open water, deep marsh, shallow marsh, sedge meadow, fresh meadow, wet to 
wet-mesic prairie, calcareous fen, open bog or coniferous bog, shrub-carr/alder thicket, hardwood swamp or coniferous 
swamp, floodplain forest, seasonally flooded basin. See Wetland Plants and Plant Communities of Minnesota and 
Wisconsin (Eggers and Reed, 1997) as modified by the Board of Water and Soil Resources, United States Army Corps 
of Engineers.

2. Statement Regarding Credits: 

a) The Credits are deposited in an account in the Minnesota Wetland Bank administered by the 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (“BWSR”) pursuant to Minn. Rules Chapter 

8420.0700-.0760.

b) Seller owns the Credits and has the right to sell the Credits to Buyer.  
  

3. Buyer will pay a total of $27,967.26 for the Credits, as follows: 

a) $27,967.26 to be paid on the Closing Date defined and listed below.

Page 111 of 124

item 10s



Page 112 of 124

item 10s



Page 113 of 124

Appendix K
Hydric Soils Report

item 10s



Page 114 of 124

item 10s



45
° 
 5

' 4
4'

' N
93°  35' 51'' W

45
° 
 5

' 4
4'

' N

93°  34' 32'' W

45
° 
 5

' 8
'' N

93°  35' 51'' W

45
° 
 5

' 8
'' N

93°  34' 32'' W

N

M
ap

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n:

 W
eb

 M
er

ca
to

r  
 C

or
ne

r c
oo

rd
in

at
es

: W
GS

84
   

Ed
ge

 ti
cs

: U
TM

 Z
on

e 
15

N 
W

GS
84

Fe
et

M
et

er
s

M
ap

 S
ca

le:
 1

:7
,8

90
 if
 p

rin
te

d 
on

 A
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

(1
1"

 x
 8

.5
")

 sh
ee

t.

P
ag

e 
11

5 
of

 1
24

item 10s



P
ag

e 
11

6 
of

 1
24

item 10s



Page 117 of 124

item 10s



Page 118 of 124

item 10s



Page 119 of 124

item 10s



Page 120 of 124

item 10s



Page 121 of 124

item 10s



Page 122 of 124

item 10s



Page 123 of 124

item 10s



Page 124 of 124

item 10s



Interest Proposals ‐ Elm Creek
Technical Wetland Legal Admin

2019
Barr Engineering x x
Campbell Knutson PA x
Hennepin County Environment and Energy x x
Judie Anderson's Secretarial Service, Inc. x
ProSource x

2017       (S = selected)
Barr Engineering S S
Campbell Knutson PA S
Cardno x
Hennepin County Environment and Energy S S
Judie Anderson's Secretarial Service, Inc. S
Mergent x

2015       (S = selected)
Barr Engineering S S
Bay West x x
Campbell Knutson PA S
Cardno x
Hennepin County Environment and Energy S S
I+S Group x
ProSource x
RESPEC x
Judie Anderson's Secretarial Service, Inc. S

Z:\Elm Creek\Consultants\2019\Responses to Request for Interest Proposals

item 11a


	09b2)   Fish Lake Report Card 2018.pdf
	FishLake_CoverPage 2017
	Fish Lake Water Quality Report Card

	10al    2019-001 Fernbrook View Apts FOFv1.pdf
	Fernbrook View Apartments
	Maple Grove, Project #2019-001
	Project Overview:  This is a 4.85 acres rural residential lot located at the NE intersection of CSAH 81 at Fernbrook Lane in Maple Grove.  The applicant proposes to construct a 2 story, 42-unit apartment building.  This review will for compliance to t...




